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PART

THIS ANNUAL REPORT ONFORMI1O-K INCLUDING ITEM BUSINESS AND ITEM

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS CONTAINS CERTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING
OF SECTION 27A OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND SECTION 21E OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 WHEN USED IN THIS REPORT THE WORDS BELIEVE ANTICIPATE
THINK INTEND PLAN WILL BE EXPECT AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS IDENTIFY SUCH

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS SUCH STATEMENTS REGARDING FUTURE EVENTS AND/OR

OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES WHICH COULD CAUSE ACTUAL EVENTS OR OUR ACTUAL FUTURE RESULTS

TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT SUCH RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES INCLUDE AMONG OTHER THINGS RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH MARKET
ACCEPTANCE OF OUR SOFTWARE AND SERVICES OUR ABILITY TO IMPLEMENT OUR BUSINESS

PLAN COMPETITION MANAGEMENT OF GROWTH PRICING TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES THE

AVAILABILITY OF ANY NEEDED FINANCING AND OTHER RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT

MAY BE DETAILED FROM TIME TO TIME IN OUR REPORTS FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN LIGHT OF THE SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

INHERENT IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INCLUDED HEREIN THE INCLUSION OF

SUCH STATEMENTS SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS REPRESENTATION BY US OR ANY OTHER

PERSON THAT OUR OBJECTIVES AND PLANS WILL BE ACHIEVED

ITEM BUSINESS

General

Authentidate Holding Corp Authentidate or the company is provider of secure web-based software

applications and telehealth products and services that enable healthcare organizations to coordinate care for

patients and enhance related administrative and clinical workflows Authentidate and its subsidiaries provide

products and services that address variety of business needs for our customers including enabling healthcare

organizations to increase revenues improve productivity enhance patient care and reduce costs by eliminating

paper and manual work steps from clinical administrative and other processes
and enhancing compliance with

regulatory requirements Our web-based services are delivered as Software as Service SanS to our customers

interfacing seamlessly with billing and document management systems These solutions incorporate multiple

features and security technologies such as rules based electronic forms intelligent routing transaction

management electronic signatures identity credentialing content authentication automated audit trails and

remote patient monitoring capabilities Both web and fax-based communications are integrated into automated

secure and trusted workflow solutions

Our ExpressMDTM Solutions joint venture with EncounterCare Solutions Inc provider of technology and

services to the home healthcare marketplace provides in-home patient vital signs monitoring systems and

services to improve care for patients with chronic illnesses and reduce the cost of care by dehvenng results to

their healthcare providers via the Internet ExpressMD Solutions combines EncounterCare Electronic House

Ca11TM patient vital signs monitoring appliances with web-based management and monitoring software module

based on Authentidates Inscrybe Healthcare platform The joint venture also offers the ExpressMD Interactive

Voice Response IVR patient vital signs monitoring solution that provides an alternative for patients who

require flexible mobile solution for care plan reminders and vital signs monitoring Using any touch-tone

phone patients can answer their session questions and enter their vital signs test results verbally or by entering

their answers on their phone keypad Both solutions enable unattended measurements of patients vital signs and

related health information and are designed to aid weilness and preventative care and deliver better care to

specific patient segments who require regular monitoring of medical conditions Healthcare providers can easily

view each specific patients vital statistics and make adjustments to the patients care plans securely via the

Internet ExpressMD Solutions easy to use patient monitoring solutions are intended to provide patients with



increased peace of mind and improved condition outcomes through combination of care plan schedule

reminders and comprehensive disease management education The service provides intelligent routing to alert

on-duty caregivers whenever patients vital signs are outside of the practitioners pre-set ranges Healthcare

providers and health insurers are also expectedtobenefit by having additional tools to improvepatient care and

reduce overall in-person and emergency room patient visits

Authentidate currently operates its business in the United States with technology and service offerings that

address emerging growth opportunities based on the regulatory and legal requirements specific to each market

The business is engaged in the development and sale of web-based services largely based on our Inscrybe

platform and related capabilities and telehealth services through our ExpressMD Solutions joint venture In

recent years we have focused our efforts on developing and introducing solutions for use in the healthcare

information technology industry We believe there are several factors that will be favorable for the healthcare

information technology industry in the near future despite lingering weakness in the global economy Because

healthcare information technology solutions play an important role in healthcare by illlpro ing safetyefficiency

and reducing cost they are often viewed as more strategic than other capital purchases Most nited States

healthcare providers also recognize that they must inyest in healthcareinformationtechnology to meet

regulatory compliance and government reimbursement requirements and incentive opportunities In addition

government agencies as wellas politicians aild policymakers appear to agree thatthe growing cost of our

healthcare system is unsustainable Leaders of both political parties recognize that the intelligent use of

information systems will improve health outcomes and correspondingly drive down costs The broad

recognition that healthcare information technology is essential to help control healthcare costs and improve

quality contributed to the inclusion of healthcarejnformation technology incentives in the American Recovery

and Reinvestment Act ARRA The ARRA andaccouipanying Health Infqnnation Technology for Economic

and Clinical Health HITECH provisions include more than $35 billion in incentives for healthcare

organizations to modernize operations through meaningful use of healthcare infomation technology We
believe that these incentives are contributing to inçreaseddemandfor healthcare information technology

solutions and services in the United States

Another element in the United States marketplace is the recently passed healthcare reform legislation We

believe the legislation which promises todriye insurance coverage to an estimated 32 million dditinal

consumers could have many second order effects on our clients For example healthcare providers may face

increased volumes that could create capacity constraints and they may find it challengingto profitably provide

care at the planned reimbursement rates under the expanded coverage models We also expect additional

compliance and reporting challenges for our clients in the areas of pay-for-quality coding requirements and

waste fraud and abuse measures We believe the above factors create strong incentives for providers to

maximize efficiency and create the need for additional investments in healthcare information technology

solutions and services Thus while the currenteconomic environment has impacted our business we believe the

fundamental value proposition of healthcare information technology remains strong and that the healthcare

information technology industry will likely benefit as healthcare providers and governments continue tp

recognize that these solutions and services contribute to safer more efficient healthcare

General Business Developments during Fiscal Year 2011

During fiscal 2011 we have continued to take steps to refine our strategic focus complete our core service

offerings significantly expand our addressable markets manage operating costs and positionthe company for

long-term growth We are focused on refining and marketing Inscrybe Healthcare an automated and trusted

health information exchange and workflow management service targeting the needs of enterprises in the

healthcare market and our ExpressMD telehealth products and services As discussed above we believe our

business will benefit as the federal government healthcare reforms approved in March 2010 are implemented

and as trends in the U.S healthcare industry to significantly reduce costs shorten the length of hospital stays

reduce hospital readmissions shift patient care towards weliness and preventative care programs and

automate healthcare records and
processes

take hold Although we have taken steps to focus our business in



these areas our progress
will be impacted by the timing of customer contracts and implementations and the

market acceptance of our products and services

During this period we have also advanced the development of our ExpressMD telehealth service offering

and continued to refine the capabilities of our patient vital signs monitoring appliance Since receiving 510k
clearance from the FDA for the monitoring appliance in April 2009 we have been implementing our

manufacturing and sales plans for ExpressMD and have started to deploy units and services with customers

During fiscal 2011 the company also introduced the ExpressMD Interactive Voice Response IVR patient vital

signs monitoring solution that provides an alternative for patients who require flexible mobile solution for care

plan reminders and vital signs monitoring On April 11 2011 Authentidate announced that it had received

contract from the US Department of Veterans Affairsthe VA pursuant to which the company was selected

as supplier-to the VA for its Telehealth Program for home telehealth solutions The award is for national

contract and under this agreement the company will market its telehealth solutions to VA facilities throughout the

country The agreement consists of one year base period that commenced May 15 2011 and four option years

which are at the VAs sole discretion During the contract period the company will be committed to provide

subject to purchase orders from VA facilities telehealth devices and certain associated software solutions

During the initial base period of the agreement the contract has an estimated maximum potential value of

approximately $38.2 million depending on the ilumberof units actually purchased by VA facilities There is no

minimum purchase requitemnt under the contract The agreement has an estimated maximum potential value of

approximately $122.0 million assuming all contract extensions are exercised by the VA and the maximum

quantity of units are purchased by VA faôilities There can be no assurance that the VA will exercise any of the

option periods under the agreement nor can the company provide any assurances as to the actual amount rf

products and solutions if any that may ultimately be purchased by VA facilities under the agreement

The company had offered its proprietary content authentication technology in the form Of the USPS

Electronic Postmark USPS EPM However the companys contract with the United States Postal Service

USPS for the use of the USPS EPM brand was allowed to expire as of December 31 2010 in accordauce

with its terms The USPS and the company continue to work towards effecting smooth transition from the

USPS EPM brand The company will continueto provide customers with uninterrupted content authentication

and time and date stamping services under the Authentidate brand as it transitions fromthe USPS btand In

March 2011 the company began to market its Æontent authentication services as AuthentiProof Our

web-based services andsoftware applications are compliant with applicable digital signature rules and

guidelines

On April 2011 we completed the sale of all of the sharesof capital stock of our wholly-crtvned subsidiary

Authentidate Intematiotial AG Authentidate International to Exceet Group AGa Swiss corporation the

Purchaser Under the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement dated as of

March 2011 we sold and transferred all of the capital stock of Authentidate International to Purchaser for

purchase price of $1 433000 In addition the Purchasºralso agreed to acquire certain of our claimsregarding

our interest in Authentidate International inconsideration of the payment Of 70000 $97300 and to assume the

net liabilities of Authentidate International Following our sale of Authentidate International we no longer

operate in Germany In Germany the business was engaged in the development and sale of software applications

that provide electronic signature and time stamping capabilities for variety of corporate processes including

electronic billingandarchiving solutions and security technology offerings As described in greater detail in the

notes to our consolidated financial statements the results of operations cash flows and relatŁdassets and

liabilities Of our German subsidiary have been presented as discontinued operations and assets and liabilities of

discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements for all penods presented

We intend to continue our efforts to market our software applications web-based services and related

products in our target mrkets We also intend to focus on ideætifyingadditional applicatiotis and markets where

our technology can address customer needs



Our current revenues consist principally of transaction fees for web-based hosted software services From

our telehealth business we generate revenues from hardware sales monthly monitoring services and maintenance

fees For the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 three customers accounted for approximately 43% of our

consolidated revenues Growth in our business is affected by number of factors including general economic

and business conditions and is characterized by long sales cycles The timing of customer contracts

implementations and ramp-up to full utilization can have significant impact on results and we believe our

results over longer penod of time provide better visibility into our performance

Products and Services

We provide web-based software applications and telehealth solutions and services that accelerate patient

placement at care facilities or care providers ii speed care order referral completion and approval and

iii connect patients to their care providers through remote monitoring and communications Our solutions

incorporate workflow automation electronic signature and transaction management capabilities based on our

Inscrybe platform and remote patient monitoring solutions using our Electronic House Cal1TM and

ExpressMDTM IVR products and services Our services are designed for ease of use and flexibility and can be

easily customized to meet the needs of specific industries or companies Our products and services are scalable

facilitating the migration from existing paper processes and patient care practices The ability of Inscrybe to

permit customers to choose the modules they want to implement as well as the platforms ability to support

mixed-modal forms of communication contribute to the platforms functionality and versatility

Inscrybe Healthcare_Inscrybe Healthcare one of our main strategic initiatives is secure web-based

health information exchange and workilow automation solution that enables healthcare industry participants to

securely exchange and track variety of documents certificates authorizations and other information over

different modes of communication including electronic and fax delivery Inscrybe Healthcare incorporates

electronic signatures rules based electronic forms content authentication using AuthentiProof workflow

intelligence for routing and transaction management and identity credentialing and venfication Inscrybe

Healthcare allows users to simplify complex clinical and administrative processes required for patient care and

facilitates order
processing online review and electronic signature of healthcare documentation while validating

the identity of the parties involved Further it is designed to comply with Health Insurance Portability and

Accountability Act HIPAA guidelines We designed the system in modular fashion so it is easily configurable

to meet customer needs and allows for the migration from current paper-based processes to an efficient paperless

automated work environment It is used to track and manage all kinds of structured and unstructured data and can

be interfaced with existing in-house and external systems including Health Information Exchange

infrastructures Inscrybe Healthcare includes the following workflow automation modules

eReferralautomates the physician referral order entry and tracking process between physician offices

and homecare providers Physicians or their staff can initiate referrals and complete all associated

documentation requirements within the eReferral module Homecare providers can receive and process

the referral orders online work with the referral source to interpret and prioritize orders and complete

any supporting documentation

eCMNprovides an automated process for the exchange andmanagement of certificates of medical

necessity written orders and other supporting documentation required by healthcare
payors

for

reimbursement of medical equipment and service claims from home medical equipment suppliers In

addition unified information management and reporting interface can maximize productivity and

streamline compliance

ePOC enables online processing of plan of care forms and other required documentation between

home health agencies skilled care providers physicians and payors to facilitate timely patient care and

reimbursement By accelerating the
process online and eliminating paper the ePOC module reduces

physician and nurse paper handling time thereby saving time and minimizing system costs for home

health agencies and physicians



ePAautomates the processing and management of prior authorizations prior approvals and treatment

authorization requests required by state Medicaid programs and certain healthcare plans allowing care

providers to submit the required supporting documents electronically through secure HIPAA

compliant web interface The approved requests and supporting documents are instantly available for

online review which can expedite the claims process

eCAprovides an electronic submission and tracking process for documents that support
medical

reimbursement and claims With eCA healthcare providers can submit attachments of their claims to

healthcare payors including equipment catalogs price lists and other items either electronically or in

paper form via fax which are automatically linked to the appropriate filed claim

Inscrybe Hospital Dischargeenables hospital case managers social workers and discharge planners to

optimize the patient discharge process The Discharge module uses defined workflows for patient

discharge referrals eligibility verification and acceptance and automatic notifications to suitable care

facilities or home care providers It integrates with hospitals information or patient record system

resulting in more cost-effective discharge planning process and enhanced compliance and audit

capabilities

Physician Servicesprovides automated processes toenable physiciansto refer patients to other

physicians care facilities or home care providers ii send and receive sensitive infOrmation to and from

patienis using secure e-mail and iiitrack billable signatures and time spent managing patient care

plans to support reimbursement submissions

ExpressMDTMthe in-home ExpressMDTM solution integrates Electronic HouseCa11TM an advanced

in-home patient vital signs monitoring system with software interface based on the Inscrybe Healthcare

platform ExpressMD works with simple devices such as blood
pressure monitors weight scales

thermometers glucometers sleep apnea devices and wound care cameras for unassisted patient vital signs

measurement and monitoring The system allows for manual entry or automatically takes vital signs from

peripherals both wired and wireless devices and communicates with the practitioner over the Internet for

analysis and intervention Patients can access the information on the monitoring software interface to review

their oWn vital statistics history as well as to obtain reminders of their scheduled medications practitioner

instructions and therapy regimen The system also includes onscreen patient treatment disease management

education and intelligent routing to alert on-duty caregivers if any vital statistics fall outside of the range of

parameters pre-set by the practitioner The ExpressMD Interactive Voice Response IVR patient vital signs

monitoring solution offers patients an alternative to using dedicated vital signsin-home monitoring device

Using any touch-tone phone patients can answer their session questions and enter their vital signs test results

verbally or by entering their answers on their phone keypad TheIVR solution uses the same peripheral

devices as the in-home solution and answers to session questions and measurements are viewable by

caregivers on the same ExpressMD web-application The ExpressMD IVR solution is designed forpatients

who
require

flexible mobile solution for care plan reminders and vital signs monitoring Additionally

physicians and their staff can order supplies and services for patients using the Inscrybe Healthcare feature

provided by the system

Inscrybe Officea web-based service for business or personal use to securely and conveniently sign

seal and confirm receipt of important documents over the web The service supports multiple electronic

signatures on the same document provides optional features such as acknowledgment of receipt verification

of recipient identity content authentication using the AuthentiProof and audit trails Inscrybe Office can be

used for legally binding or compliance-dependent transactions such as business or personal contracts

agreements closing documents transcripts offer letters prescriptions authorizations and other important

documents

AuthentiProofJMa content integrity and time-and-date stamp application enables user to have digital

record of transaction created and stored by trusted third party that can be used to verify the content date time

and parties related to the transaction in the future AuthentiProof can be used to verify the authenticity of



document or file sent electronically as of specific point in time and allows users to detect whether or not

documents or files with an AuthentiProof seal have been altered or modified AuthentiProof incorporates our

proprietary content authentication technology

Sales and Marketing

We sell our web-based services and telehealth products and services through direct sales effort and reseller

arrangements Our resellers typically receive commission based on percentage of the value of customer

agreements we enter into due to their efforts In cases where our contracts have term exceeding one year we

generally defer service revenue derived from these contracts and recognize it over the life of the contract The

markets for healthcare devices and solutions include integrated delivery networks physician groups and

networks managed care organizations hospitals medical centers home health agencies pharmacies

governments and public health organizations

Supply Relationships

We use ATT Inc to provide and maintain secure hosting center at facility in New York to host our

web-based services We believe that there are sufficient alternative suppliers of these services We augment our

own staff of software developers by using third party consultants and our software and services incorporate

products and services which we license from unaffihiated third parties We also use contract manufacturer to

assemble our Electronic House Call telehealth monitor and several suppliers for various component parts and

services We believe that adequate alternative suppliers of these products and services exist on commercially

reasonable terms so as to mitigate any adverse impacts caused by the termination of any of our existing

relationships

Competition

We compete in markets for our web-based services and our telehealth products and services that are highly

competitive and rapidly changing Although we believe there is no single company that directly competes with

all of our services and solutions we do face intense competition from other companies with respect to our

various offerings Further we are aware of efforts by other companies to develop products or services to either

compete directly with our services solutions and products or that could be used as alternatives to our offerings

We believe that the principal competitive factors affecting the market for our services and solutions include

features such as ease of use quality/reliability of our offerings scalability features and functionality customer

service and support and price Although we believe that our services solutions and products compete favorably

in respect of all these factors there can be no assurance that we can maintain our competitive position against

current or potential competitors

These companies offer fax products web-based processing of medical forms signature solutions and patient

monitoring products and services that could compete with our services solutions and products Almost all of

these competitors are substantially larger or have more experience and market share than we do in their

respective markets In addition companies with which we do not presently directly compete may become

competitors in the future through their product development in the area of secure online services and telehealth

services and such companies may have greater financial technological and marketing resources than we do

Therefore these competitors may be able to respond more quickly than we can to new or changing opportunities

technologies standards and customer requirements Many of these competitors also have broader and more

established distribution channels that may be used to deliver competing products or services directly to customers

through bundling or Other means If such competitors were to bundle competing products or services for their

customers the demand for our products and services might be substantially reduced and the ability to distribute

our products successfully and the utilization of our services would be substantially diminished

New technologies and the expansion of existing technologies may increase competitive pressure We cannot

assure you that competing technologies developed by others or the emergence of new industry standards will not



adversely affect our competitive position or render our services or technologies noncompetitive or obsolete In

addition our markets are characterized by announcements of collaborative relationships involving our

competitors The existence or announcement of any such relationships could adversely affect our ability to attract

and retain customers As result of the foregoing and other factors we may not be able to compete effectively

with current or future competitors and competitive pressures that we face could materially harm our business

Patents and Trademarks

Presently we have one issued U.S patent We also have been granted license to one issued U.S patent

and one pending patent application by Authentidate International AG Some of the technology embodied in some

of our current products cannot be patented We have registered the trademarks Authentidate Inscrybe and

Inscrybe Office in the U.S the trademark Authentidate in Canada Mexico and the European Community

Inscrybe in the European Community and Canada Inscrybe Office and number of other trademarks as

Madrid Protocol international registrations We continue to take steps to protect our intellectual property rights

including filing additional trademark and patent applications where appropriate including for the trademark

AuthentiProof There can be no assurance that any patents or registrations will be issued or that any such

patents or registrations that do issue will be effective to protect our products and services or trademarks from

duplication by other manufacturers or developers or to prevent our competitors from offering similarproducts

and services

Research and Development

The market for our web-based services and telehealth products is characterized by rapid technological

change involving the application of number of advanced technologies including those relating to computer

hardware and software communication technologies mass storage devices electronic signatures content

authentication and other related technologies Our ability to be competitive depends upon our ability to anticipate

and effectively react to technological changes changing market conditions and the requirements of our

customers Product development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 were

$829000 $1016000 and $677000 respectively

Our product development activities are focused on enhancing our applications and services and developing

new application and services to address customer and market needs Current development efforts are focusedon

enhancing our current applications and services and developing additional applications for the healthcare market

We capitalize software development costs and amortize those costs in accordance with our policy disclosed in

Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Intellectual Property

Other companies operating in our market may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary

information or otherwise obtain access to our know-how In addition there can be no assurance that we will be

able to afford the expense of any litigation which may be necessary to enforce or defend our rights under any

patent Although we believe that the web-based services and telehealth products we sell do not and will not

infringe upon the patents or violate the proprietary rights of others it is possible that such infringement or

violation has occurred or may occur In the event that the web-based services and telehealth products we sell are

deemed to infringe upon the patents or proprietary rights of others we could be required to modify our offerings

or obtain license for the use and/or sale of such products There can be no assurance that in such an event we

would be able to do so in timely manner upon acceptable terms and conditions or at all and the failure to do

any of the foregoing could have material adverse effect upon our business In addition if our current or

proposed offerings are deemed to infringe upon the patents or proprietary rights of others we could under

certain circumstances become liable for damages or subject to an injunction which could also have material

adverse effect on our business It is our policy to investigate allegations of third party intellectual property rights

to the extent that they are brought to our attention or to the extent that we become independently aware of such



third party intellectual property rights to ensure that our current and proposed software and sçrvices do not

infringe on any such rights Although we have not received notice of any claims that our software or services are

infringing we cannot provide any assurances that our software or services do not infringe upon any other patents

including the patents
that we have investigated

With respect to our ExpressMD Solutions LLC joint venture pursuant to the limited liability company

agreement the LLC Agreement we entered into with our.coventurer EncounterCare Solutions Inc our

co-venturer granted ExpressMD Solutions licenses to the intellectual property utilized in its telehealth solutions

and services Accordingly our rights to such intellectual property are subject to the terms of this LLC

Agreement Under the LLC Agreement these licenses were granted on worldwide nonexclusive and perpetual

basis to enable the joint venture to produce and commercialize the telehealth offerings The LLC Agreement

additionally provides that the joint venture entity shall continue until terminated by mutual agreement of the

parties and that the entity shall be dissolved upon certain events includirg the expulsion bankruptcy or

dissolution of member the sale or transfers of all or substantially all of its assets or upon its merger into or

acquisition by another entity and if the members cannot agree on ongoing funding requirements in

accordance with the procedures set forth in the agreement

Employees

At June 30 2011 we employed 37 full-time employees throughout our operations including our semor

management None of our employees are represented by collective bargaining agreement and we believe that

our employee relations are satisfactory In the normal course of 1usiness we also use part-time employees and

contract with third parties to provide support for various projects

Government Regulation

Government Matters

Compliance with federal state local and foreign laws including laws enacted for the protection of the

environment has to date had no material effect upon our capital expenditures results of operations or

competitive position Although we do not anticipate any material adverse effects in the future based on the nature

of our operations no assurance can be given such laws or any future laws enacted will not have material

adverse effect on our business

Government Regulation of Medical Devices

Government authorities in the United States at the federal state and local levels and foreign countries

extensively regulate among other things the research development testing manufacture labeling promotion

advertising distribution sampling marketing and import and export .of medical devices In April 2009 we

received clearance of the telehealth device marketed by our joint venture Various federal state local and foreign

statutes and regulations also
govern testing manufacturing safety labeling storage distribution and record-

keeping related to such products and their marketing The process of obtaining these approvals and clearances

and the subsequent process of maintaining substantial compliance with appropriate federal state local and

foreign statutes and regulations can require the expenditure of substantialtime and financial resources In

addition statutes rules regulations and policies maychange and new legislation or regulations may be issued

that could delay such approvals

Under the Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act medical devices are classified into one of three classes

Class Class II or Class III The classification of device into one of these three classes generally depends on

the degree of risk associated with the medical device and the extent of control needed to ensure.safety and

effectiveness Class and II devices must be able to demonstrate safety and efficacy by adhering to set of

general controls including compliance with the applicable portions of the FDAs Quali.ty System Regulation

which sets forth good manufacturing practice requirements facility registration device listing and product



reporting of adverse medical events truthful and non-misleading labeling and proniotion of the device oniy for

its cleared or approved intendeduses Class II devices are also subject to these general controls and any other

special controls as deemed necessary by theFDA to ensure the safety and effectiveness of the device Review

and clearance by the FDA for these devices is typically accomplished through the so-called 510k pre-market

notification procedure When 510k clearance is sought sponsor must submit pre-market notification

demonstrating that the proposed device is substantially equivalent to legally marketed Class II device for

example device previously cleared through the 510k pre-market notification process If the FDA agrees that

the proposed device is substantially equivalent to the predicate device then 510k clearance tornàrket willbe

granted After devicereceives 510k clearance any modification that could significantly affect it safety or

effectiveness or that would constitute major change in its intended use requires new 510k clearance or

could require pre-market approval or PMA The FDA has categorized our teleheÆlth product as Class Ii device

Both before and after medical device is commercially distributed manufacturers and marketers of the

device have ongoing responsibilities under FDA regulations The FDA reviews design and manufacturing

practices labeling and record keeping andmanufacturers required reports of adverse experiences and other

information to identify potential problems with marketed medical devices DŁviŁe manufacturers are subject to

periodic and unannounced inspection by the FDA for compliance with the Quality System Regulation which sets

forth the current good manufacturing practice requirements that govern the methods used in and the facilities

and controls used for the design manufacture packaging servicing labeling storage installation and

distribution of all finished medical devices intended for human use

FDA regulations prohibit the advertising and promotion of medical device for any use outside the scope of

510k clearance or PMA approval or for unsupported safety or effectiveness claims Although the FDA does

not regulate physicians practice of medicine the FDA does regulate manufacturer communications with respect

to off-label use If the FDA finds that manufacturer has failed to comply with FDA laws and regulations or that

medical device is ineffective or poses an unreasonable health risk it can institute or seek wide variety of

enforcement actions and remedies ranging from public warning letter to more severe actions such as

fines injunctions and civil penalties

recallorseizureofproducts

operating restrictions partial suspension or total shutdown of production

refusing requests for 510k clearance or PMA approval of new products

withdrawing 510k clearance or PMA approvals already granted and

criminal prosecution

The FDA also has the authority to require repair replacement orrefund of the cost of any medical device

Third Party Reimbursement

Our telehealthproduct is usedfor medical purposes generally covered by government or private health

plans In general thirdparty payor only covers medical product or procedure when the plaiiadministrator is

satisfiud thartheproduct orprocedure improves health outcomes including quality of life Or fuTnctionai ability in

safe and cost-effective manner Even if device has received clearance or approval for marketing by the FDA
there is no assurance that third-party payors will cover the cost of the device and related procedures In many
instances third-party payors use price schedules that do not vary to reflect thecost of the products and equipment

used in performing those procedures In other -instances payment or reimbursement is separately available for the

products andrecjuipment used in addition to payment Or reimbursement for the procedure itself Even if coverage

is available third-party payors may place regtrictioas on the circumstances where they provide coverage or may
offer reimbursemetit that is not sufficient to cover the cost of our products
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Third-party payors who cover the cost of medical products or equipment in addition to allowing general

charge for the procedure often maintain lists of exclusive suppliers or approved lists of products deemed to be

cost-effective Authorization from those third-party payors is required prior to using products that are not On

these lists asa condition of reimbursement If our products are not on the approved lists healthcare providers

must determine if the additional cost and effort required in order to obtain prior authorization and the uncertainty

of actually obtaining coverage is justified by any perceived clinical benefits from using our products If hospitals

and physicians cannot obtain adequate reimbursement for our prodttcts or the procedures in which they are used

our business financial condition results of operations and cash flows could suffôr material adverse impact

Health Care Reform

On March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was signed into law and on March 30

2010 the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 was signed into law Together the two

measures make the most sweeping and fundamental changes to the U.S healthcare system since the creation of

Medicare and Medicaid The Health Care Reform laws include large number of health-related provisions to

take effect over the next four years including expanding Medicaid eligibility requiring most individuals to have

health insurance establishing new regulations on health plans establishing health insurance exchanges requiring

manufacturers to report payments or other transfers of value made to physicians and teaching hospitals and

modifying certain payment systems to encourage more cost-effective care and reduction of inefficiencies and

waste including through new tools to address fraud and abuse Effective in 2013 there will be 2.3% excise tax

on the sale of certain medical devices

Fraud and Abuse Laws

We are subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse which among

other things prohibit the offer or acceptance of remuneration intended to induce or in exchange for the purchase

of products or services reimbursed under federal healthcare program and the submission of false or fraudulent

claims with the government These laws include the federal Anti-Kickback Statute the False Claim Act and

comparable state laws These laws regulate the activities of entities involved in the healthcare industry such as

us by limiting the kinds of financial arrangements such entities may have with healthcare providers who use or

recommend the use of medical products including for example sales and marketing programs advisory boards

and research and educational grants In addition in order to ensure that healthcare entities comply with

healthcare laws the Office of Inspector General or OIG of the U.S Department of Health and Human Services

recommends that healthcare entities institute effective compliance programs To assist in the development of

effective compliance programs the OIG has issued model Compliance Program Guidance or CPG materialsfor

variety of healthcare entities which among other things identify practices that may implicate the federal Anti-

Kickback Statute and other relevant laws and describes elements of an effective compliance program Violations

of these laws can lead to civil and criminal penalties damages imprisonment fines exclusion from participation

in Medicare Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs and the curtailment or restructuring of our

operations Any such violations could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results

of operations or cash flows

HIPAA

Two federal crimes were created under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 or

HIPAA healthcare fraud and false statements relating to healthcare matters The healthcare fraud statute

prohibits knowingly and willfully executing scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit prograrn including

private payors The false statements statute prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying concealing or covering

up material fact or making any materially false fictitious or fraudulent statement in connection with the

delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits items or services Individually identifiable health information is

subject to an array of federal and state regulation Federal rules promulgated pursuant to HIPAA regulate the use

and disclosure of health information by covered entities Covered entities include individual andinstitutional

11



healthcare providers from which we may receive individually identifiable health information These regulations

govern among other things the use and disclosure of health information for research purposes and require the

co eed ert to obta1n the riLten authonzaLion of Lhe inthvidual before using or disclosing hedilh uifoiination

for research Failure the covered entity to obtain such authorization could subject the covered entity to civil

and criminal penalties We may experience delays and complex negotiations as we deal with each entity

differing interpretation of the regulations and what is required for compliance Also where our customers or
contractors are covered entities including hospitals universities physicians or clinics we may be required by the

HIPAA regulations to enter into business associate agreements that subject us to certain privacy and security

requirements In addition many states have laws that apply to the use and disclosure of health information and

these laws could also affect the manner in which we conduct our research and other aspects of our business Such

state laws are not preempted by the federal privacy law where they afford greater privacy protection to the

individual While activities to assure compliance with health information privacy laws are routine business

practice we are unable to predict the extent to which our resources may be diverted in the event of an

investigation or enforcement action with respect to such laws HIPAA regulations also require national standards

for some types Qf electronic health information transactions and the data elements used in those transactions

security standards to ensure the integrity and confidentiality of health information and standards to protect the

privacy of individually identifiable health.information Moreover the recently enacted Health Information

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act HITECH provisions of the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA and associated regulatory requirements extend many of the HIPAA

obligations formerly imposed only upon covered entities to business associates as well The extension of these

HJPAA obligations to business associates by law has created additional liability risks related to the privacy and

security of individually identifiable health information

Available Information

We file registration statements periodic and current reports proxy statements and other materials with the

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the

SECsPublic Reference Room at 100 Street NE Room 1580 Washington DC 20549 You may obtain

information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at -800-SEC-0330 The SEC
maintains web site at www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other

information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC including our filings We make our public

filings with the SEC including our Annual Report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current

reports on Form 8-K and all exhibits and amendments to these reports available free of charge on our Web site

http//wwwauthentidate.com as soon as reasonably.practicable after we file such material with the SEC We also

make available on our Web site reports filed by our executive officers and directors on Forms and

regarding their ownership of our securities These materials are available in the Investor Relations portion of

our Web site under the link SEC Filings We also use our website to make generally available important

information about our company Important information including press releases presentation and financial

information regarding our company is routinely posted on and accessible on the Investor Relations subpage of

our website which is accessible by clicking on the tab labeled Investors on our website home page Therefore

investors should look to the Investor Relations subpage of our web site for important information Information

contained on our Web site is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Corporate Information

Authentidate Holding Corp was organized in August 1985 as Bitwise Designs Inc and reincorporatedunder

the laws of the state of Delaware in May 1992 We changed our name to Authentidate Holding Corp in March

2001 Our executive office is presently located at the Connell Corporate Center 300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights New Jersey 07922 and our telephone number is 908 787-1700 Authentidate Inc was

organized as majority-owned subsidiary during our 2000 fiscal year and we presently own 100% of the

outstanding capital stock of this company ExpressMD Solutions LLC was formed in June 2008 as joint venture

with EncounterCare Solutions Inc and we presently own 50% of the membership interests of this company
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

As provided for under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 we wish to caution shareholders

and investors that the following important factors among others discussed throughout this Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 have affected and in some cases could affect our actual

results of operation and cause our results to dffer materially from those anticipated in forward looking

statements made herein Our business results of operations and financial condition may be materially and

adversely affected due to any of the following risks The risks described below are not the only ones we face

Additional risks we are not presently aware of or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our

business operations
The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks In assessing

these risks you should also refer to the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K including our financial statements and related notes

Risks Related to Our Business

Failure to increase our revenue and keep our expenses consistent with revenues could prevent us from

achieving and maintaining profitability

We incurred net losses of approximately $12555000 including loss of approximately $5769000 related

to discontinued operations for our German subsidiary $9005000 and $9367000 for the fiscal years ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively and had an accumulated deficit of approximately $168358000 at

June 30 2011 We have expended and will continue to be required to expend substantial funds to pursue

product development projects enhance our marketing and sales efforts and to otherwise operate our business

Therefore we will need to generate higher revenues to achieve and maintain profitability and cannot assure you

that we will be profitable in any future period Our prospects should be considered in light of the difficulties

frequently encountered in connection with the establishment of new business line which characterizes our

business such as the difficulty in creating viable market the significant related development and marketing

costs and the overall competitive environment in which we operate This risk may be more acute in light of our

disposition of our other operating segments Accordingly there can be no assurance that we will be able to

achieve profitable operations in future operating periods Our business results are likely to remain uncertain as

we are unable to reliably predict revenues from our current customers or our ability to derive revenues from our

joint venture Revenue levels achieved from our customers the mix of products and solutions that we offer our

ability to introduce new products as planned and our ability to reduce and manage our operating expenses
will

affect our financial results Consequently we may not be profitable in any future period

Our capital requirements have been significant and we may need to raise additional capital to finance our

operations

Our capital requirements have been and will continue to be significant We have been substantially

dependent upon private placements and registered offerings of our securities and on short-term and long-term

loans from lending institutions to fund such requirements We are expending significant amounts of capital to

develop promote and market our software services and products Due to these expenditures we have incurred

significant losses to date We used approximately $6465000 $8109000 and $8144000 in cash for continuing

operating activities for the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Our available cash

cash equivalents and marketable securities as of June 30 2011 totaled approximately $2424000 and we expect

to receive net proceeds of approximately $3638000 from registered direct offering in October 2011 We

expect our existing resources including the net proceeds generated from our recent offering revenues generated

from operations and proceeds received from the exercise of outstanding warrants of which there can be no

assurance to satisfy our working capital requirements for at least the next twelve months however these

resources may not be sufficient if we are required to redeem our outstanding shares of Series and Series

preferred stock within the next 12 months and we may attempt to renegotiate the terms of such securities No

assurances can be given however that we will be able to attain sales levels and support our costs through

revenues derived from operations generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy our other obligations or successfully
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modify the terms of our preferred securities If our available cash resources and projected revenue levels are not

sufficient to sustain our operations or otherwise meet our cash needs we will need to raise additional capital to

fund operations and to meet our obligations in the future To meet our financing requirements we may raise

funds through public or private equity offerings debt financings or strategic alliances Raising additional funds

by issuing equity or convertible debt securities may cause our stockholders to experience substantial dilution in

their ownership interests and new investors may have rights superior to the rights of our other stockholders

Raising additional funds through debt financing if available may involve covenants that restrict our business

activities and options There can be no assurance however that we will be successful in raising additional capital

or securing financing when needed or on terms satisfactory to the company If we are unable to raise additional

capital when required or on acceptable terms we will need to reduce costs and operations substantially which

could have matenal adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations Our future

capital requirements will depend on and could increase substantially as result of many factors including

our need to utilize significant amount of cash to support research and development activities and to

make incremental investments in our organization

our ability to achieve targeted gross profit margins and cost management objectives

our ability to reach break-even or profitability

the extent to which we consolidate our facilities and relocate employees and assets

the success of our sales and marketing efforts

the extent and terms of any development marketing or other arrangements including our joint venture

and

changes in economic regulatory or competitive conditions including the current financial crisis

Our revenues may be affected by changes in technology spending levels

In the past unfavorable or uncertain macroeconomic conditions and reduced global technology spending

rates have adversely affected the markets in which we operate Current economic conditions and uncertainty

about the recovery could reduce the demand for our products and negatively impact revenues and operating

profit We are unable to predict changes in general macroeconomic conditions and when global spending rates

will be affected Furthermore even if spending rates increase we cannot be certain that the market for our

products and solutions will be positively impacted If there are future reductions in either domestic or

international spending rates or if spending rates do not increase our revenues operating results and financial

condition may be adversely affected

Ongoing uncertainty in the credit markets and the financial services industry may negatively impact our

business results of operations financial condition or liquidity

For the past few years the credit markets and the financial services industry have been experiencing

period of unprecedented turmoil and upheaval characterized by the bankruptcy failure collapse or sale of

various financial institutions and an unprecedented level of intervention from the United States federal

government While the ultimate outcome of these events cannot be predicted they may have material adverse

effect on our liquidity and financial condition if our ability to obtain financing for operations or obtain credit

from trade creditors were to be impaired In additiOn the recent ecOnomic crisis could also adversely impact our

customers ability to finance the purchase of our products and solutions which may negatively impact our

business and results of operations

Healthcare policy changes including recent laws to reform the healthcare system may have

material adverse effect on us

Healthcare costs have risen significantly over the past decade There have been and continue to be

proposals by legislators regulators and third-party payors to keep these costs down Certain proposals if passed

14



could impose limitations on the prices we will be able to charge for our products or the amounts of

reimbursement available for our products from governmental agencies or third-party payors These limitations

could have material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations

On March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was signed into law and on March 30

2010 the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 was signed into law Together the two

measures make the most sweeping and fundamental changes to the healthcare system since the creation of

Medicare and Medicaid The Health Care Reform laws include large number of health related provisions to

take effect over the next four years including expanding Medicaid eligibility requiring most individuals to have

health insurance establishing new regulations on health plans establishing health insurance exchanges requiring

manufacturers to report payments or other transfers of value made to physicians and teaching hospitals and

modifying certain payment systems to encourage more cost-effective care and reduction of inefficiencies and

waste including through new tools to address fraud and abuse Effective in 2013 there will be 2.3% excise tax

on the sale of certain medical devices Further as administrative rules implementing healthcare reform under the

legislation are not yet finalized the impact of the healthcare reform legislation on our business is unknown and

there can be no assurances that healthcare reform legislation will not adversely impact either our operational

results or the manner in which we operate our business Healthcare industry participants may respond by

reducing their investments or postponing investment decisions including investments in our solutions and

services

In addition various healthcare reform proposals have also emerged at the state level We cannot predict the

exact effect newly enacted laws or any future legislation or regulation will have on us However the

implementation of new legislation and regulation mayflower reimbursements for our products reduce medical

procedure volumes and adversely affect our business possibly materially In addition the enacted excise tax may

matenally and adversely affect our operating expenses and results of operations

We may need to incur additional co5ts in our efforts to successfully commercialize the technology

supporting our content authentication service

In July 2007 we entered into new three-year license agreement with the U.S Postal Service USPS to

act as non-exclusive authorized service provider of the USPS Electronic Postmark EPM Pursuant to this

license agreement the USPS granted the company non-exºlusive worldwIde license to use its applicable

trademarks and other intellectual property rights for the EPM service in order to enable us to offer the EPM

service directly to the market The USPS defined and maintained the technical and operational standards for the

EPM service and served as backup verifier for all EPM transactions Aithentidate was thç first provider to be

authorized in new standards-based EPM service model created by the USPS to help ensure performance

standards and facilitate the development of multi-provider environment We operated the EPM service on

behalf of the USPS since March 2003 under strategic alliance agreement that expired on July 31 2007 This

license agreement was effective as of August 2007 and had been extended through December 2010 However

the license agreement was allowed to expire as of December 31 2010 in accordance with its terms The USPS

has notified the company that it hopes to develop revised framework for the next generation of the USPS EPM

and may revamp the program in the future The USPS and the company continue to work towards ensuring

smooth transition from the USPS EPM brand The company will continue to provide customers with

uninterrupted content authentication and time and date stamping services utilizing its proprietary intellectual

property rights under the Authentidate brand In March 2011 the company began to market its content

authentication services as AuthentiProoffM In addition this transition will not impact the performance or

capabilities of our other products and solutions including our suite of Incsrybe offerings and the telehealth

services provided through ExpressMDTM Solutions In light of these developments we may need to incur

additional costs in order to commercialize this technology
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We depend on growth in the software as service market and lack of growth or contraction in this market

could materially adversely affect our sales and financial condition

Our hosted software and wb-based solutions compete with other software as service solutions Demand

for our solutions and software offerings is driven by several factors including an increased focus on protecting

business critical applications government and industry regulations requiring data protection and integrity and

the growth in the market for software as service Segments of the computer and software industry have in the

past expenenced significant economic downturns and decreases in demand as result of changing market factors

change in the market factors that are driving demand for offerings of software as service could adversely

affect our sales profitability and financial condition

We depend on third parties for the manufacture and distribution of our telehealth appliance which may
result in delays and quality-control issues

We do not own or lease any manufacturing facilities Accordingly in order to market our telehealth solution

we purchase finished appliances from an unaffihated supplier In addition we use unaffihiated third parties to

provide distribution services for this solution If the agreements with these third parties are terminated or if they

do not perform their obligations under such agreements it could take several months to establish and qualify

alternative manufacturing and distributiOn partners for our products and we may no be able tO fulfill otir

customers orders in timely manner At the present time we believe that if existing third party relationships

terminate alternative providers are available on commercially reasonable terms However there can be no

assurance that the future production capacity of our current manufacturer will be sufficient to satisfy our

requirements or that alternative providers of manufacturing or distribution services will be available on

commercially reasonable terms or at all The failure to identify suitable alternative thanufacturers or distributors

could adversely impact our customer relationships and our financial condition In addition due to our use of

third-party manufacturers and distributors we do not have cOntrol over the timing of product shipments Delays

in shipment could result in the deferral or cancellation of purchases of our products which would harm our

results of operations in any particular quarter Net revenue for period may be lower than predicted if large

orders forecasted for that period are delayed or are not realized which could impact cash flow orresult ma
decline in our stock price

Our business may be adversely affected by legal proceedings

As described in detail in Item Legal Proceedings of Part of this Annual Report on Form 10 we have

been in the past and may become in the future involved in legal proceedings including the purported class

action complaints that were filed in federal court alleging our company and certain of Our current and former

directors and former officers viOlated the federal securities laws You should carefully review and consider the

various disclosures we make in our reports filed with the SEC regarding legal matters that may affect our

business Civil and criminal litigation is inherently unpredictable and outcomes can result in excessive verdicts

fines penalties and/or injunctive relief that affeôt how we operate our busines The expense of defending such

litigation may be substantial and the time required to defend the actions could divert management attention

from the day-to-day operations of Our business which could adversely affect our business results of operations

and casliflows We cannot predict with certainty the outcome of any legal proceedings in whichwe become

involved and it is difficult to estimate the possible costs to us stemming from any such matters In addition an

unfavorable outcome in such litigation could havea material adverse effeºt on oUr business results of Operations

financial position and cash flows

Our success is dependent on the performance of our management and the cooperation performance and

retention of our executive officers and key employees

Our business and operations are substantially dependent on the performance of our senior management team

and executive officers If our management team is unable to perform it may adversely impact our results of

operations and financial condition We do not maintain key person life insurance on any of our executive
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officers The loss of one or several key employees could seriously harm our büsiæess Any reorganization or

reduction in the size of our employee base could harm our ability to attract and retain other valuable employees

critical to the success of our business

If we lose key personnel or failto integrate replacement personnel successfully our ability to manage our

business could be impaired

Our future success depends upon the continued service of our key management technical sales finance

and other cntical personnel Other than with respect to employment agreements that we entered into with our

CEO and CFO our key personnel do not have employment agreements and we cannot assure you that we will be

able to retain them Key personnel have left our company in the past and there likely will be additional departures

of key personnel from time to time in the future The loss of any key employee could result in sigmficant

disruptions to our operations including adversely affecting the timeliness of product releases the successful

implementation and completion of company initiatives the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures and our internal control over financial reporting and the results of our operations In addition hiring

training and successfully integrating replacement sales and other personnel could be time consuming may cause

additional disruptions to our operations and may be unsuccessful which could negatively impact future

revenues

If the carrying value of our long-lived assets is not recoverable an impairment loss must be recognized

which would adversely affect our financial results

We evaluate our long lived assets including property and equipment goodwill acquired product rights and

other intangible assets wheueve events or circumstances occur which indicate that these assets might be

impaired As discussed more fully in Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on April 2011 we

completed the sale of our German subsidiaiy and information including goodwill related to such subsidiary has

been presented as disontinued operations for all periods presented In cotinection with the sale of the subsidiary

we recorded non-cash loss of approximaiely $5405000 related to the goodwill recorded in connection with the

acquisition of this subsidiary in 2002 The company initially recorded the estimated loss related to its German

subsidiary as non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $5400000 during the quarter ended December 31 2010

based pjimari1y on lowered expectations for growth in future revenues and cash flows certain unsolicited market

information regarding the business and uncertainty regarding the
recovery

in the market for comparable assets

As of June 30 2011 we had approximately $50000 of goodwill We will continue to evaluate the recoverability

of the carrying amount of our long-lived assets and we may incur substantiai impairment charges which could

adversely affect our financial results

Developing and implementing new or updated software and services and other product offerings may take

longer and cost more than expected

We rely ona combination of internal development strategic relationships licensing and acquisitions to

develop our software and services The cost of developing new software services and other productofferings

such as Inscrybe Healthcare and related modules and our telehealth offerings is inherently difficult to estimate

Our development and implementation of proposed software services or other product offerings may take longer

than originally expected require greater investment of cash resources than initially expected require more testing

than originally anticipated and require the acquisition of additional personnel and other resources Accordingly

we expect to face substantial uncertainties with respect to the performance and market acceptance of new

software and services and other product offerings If we are unable to develop new or updated software services

or other product offerings on timely basis and implement them without significant disruptions to the existing

systems and processes of our customers we may lose potential revenues and harm our relationships with current

or potential customers

17



The success of any of our product acquisition and licensing activities is subject to uncertainty and any

completed acquisitions or licenses may reduce our earnings be difficult to integrate not perform as

expected or require is to obtain additional financing

We regularly evaluate selective acquisitions and look to continue to enhance our product line by acquiring

rights to additional products and services Such acquisitions may be carried out through the purchase of assets

joint ventures and licenses or by acquiring other companies However we cannot assure you that we will be able

to complete acquisitions or in-licensing arrangements that meet our target criteria on satisfactory terms if at all

Successfully integrating product or service acquisition or in licensing arrangement can be lengthy and

complex process The diversion of our management attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in

connection with any of our acquisitions or arrangements could result in the disruption of our ongoing business or

inconsistencies in standards controls procedures and policies that could negatively affect our ability to maintain

relationships with customers suppliers employees and others with whom we have business dealings In addition

other companies including those with substantially greater resources than ours may compete with us for the

acquisition of product or in licensing candidates and approved products resulting in the possibility that we
devote resources to potential acquisitions or arrangements that are never completed If we do engage in any such

acquisition or arrangement we will incur variety of costs and we may never realize the anticipated benefits of

the acquisition or arrangement in light of those costs If we fail to realize the expected benefits from acquisitions

or arrangements we may consummate in the future whether as result of unidentified risks integration

difficulties regulatory setbacks or other events our business results of operations and financial cOndition could

be adversely affected

In addition our product acquisition and licensing activities may require us to obtain additional debt or

equity financing resulting in increased debt obligations or dilution of ownership to our existing stockholders as

applicable Therefore we may not be able to finance acquisitions on terms satisfactory to us if at all

New or updated software services and product offerings will not become profitable unless they achieve

sufficient levels of market acceptance winch may require significant efforts and costs

There can be no assurance that customers and potential customers will accept from us new or updated

software services and Other products The future results of our business will depend in significant part on the

success of our software services or other product offerings Current and potential customers may choose to use

similar products and services offered by our competitors or may not purchase new or updated software services

or products especially when they are initially offered and if they require changes in equipment or workflow For

software services and products we are developing or may develop in the future including through our

ExpressMDTM joint venture there can be no assurance that we will attract sufficient customers or that such

offerings will generate sufficient revenues to cover their associated development marketing and maintenance

costs Furthermore there can be no assurance that any pricing strategy that we implement for any new software

and services or other product offenngs will be economically viable or acceptable to the target markets Failure to

achieve broad penetration in target markets with respect to new or updated software services and product

offerings could have material adverse effect on our business prospects Further achieving market acceptance

for new or updated software services and product offerings is likely to require substantial marketing efforts and

expenditure of significant funds to create awareness and demand by potential customers

We do not have patents on all the technology we use which could harm our competitive position

Presently we have one issued U.S patent We also have been granted license to one issued U.S patent

and one pending patent application by Authentidate International AG Some of the technology embodied in some

of our current products cannot be patented We have registered the trademarks Authentidate Inscrybe and

Inscrybe Office in theU.5 the trademark Authentidate in Canada Mexico and the European Community

Inscrybe in the European Community and Canada Inscrybe Office and number of other trademarks as

Madrid Protocol international registrations We continue to take
steps to protect our intellectual property rights

including filing additional trademark and patent applications where appropriate including for the trademark
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AuthentiProof We rely on confidentiality agreements with our key employees to the extent we deem it to be

necessary We further intend to file patent applications for any new products we may develop to the extent that

we believe that any technology included in such products is patentable There can be no assurance that any

patents in fact will be issued or that any
such patents that do issue will be effective to protect our products and

services from duplication by other manufacturers or developers or to prevent our competitors from offenng

similarproducts and services

Further with respect to our telehealth offerings our co venturer has licensed certain intellectual property

assets to the joint venture vehicle under the limited liability company agreement entered into regarding this

entity Accordingly our nght to utilize any such intellectual property is subject to the terms of this agreement

Further and similar to the intellectual property
owned by us there can be no assurance that the intellectual

property
licensed to us through the joint venture will be effective to protect our products and services from

duplication by other manufacturers or developers or to prevent our competitors from offering similarproducts

and services

Other companies operating within our business segments may independently develop substantially

equivalent proprietary information or otherwise obtain access to our know-how much of which is maintained as

trade secrets In addition there can be no assurance that we will be able to afford the expense of any litigation

which may be necessary to enforce our rights under any patent Although we believe that the products we sell

including our telehealth offerings do not and will not infringe upon the patents or violate the proprietary rights of

others it is possible that such infringement or violation has occurred or may occur We have investigated patents

held by third parties of which we are aware and believe that our products.and services do not infringe on the

claims of these patents Although we have not received notice of any other claims that our products or services

are infringing we cannot provide any assurances that our products and services do not infringe upon any third

party patents including the patents we have investigated

In the event that products we sell or services we provide are deemed to infringe upon the patents or

proprietary rights of others we could be required to modify our products and/or services or obtain license for

the manufacture use and/or sale of such products andservices There can be no assurance that in such an event

we would be able to do so in timely manner upon acceptable terms and conditions or at all and the failure to

do any of the foregoing could have material adverse effect upon our business Moreover there can be no

assurance that we will have the financial or other resources necessary to defend against patent infringement or

proprietary rights violation action In addition if our products services or proposed products .or services are

deemed to infringe upon the patents or proprietary rights of others we could under certain circumstances

become liable for damages or subject to an injunction which could also have material adverse effect on our

business

Because we currently derive majority of our revenues from few hosted software and web-based service

offerings any decline in demand for these offerings could severely harm our ability to generate revenues

We currently derive majority of our revenues from limited number of hosted software and web based

service offerings In addition our focus on building our business is concentrated on markets for hosted

software and web-based services where content integrity workflow automation electronic signatures time

and date stamping and web-based services are important to customers As result we are particularly

vulnerable to fluctuations in demand for these offerings whether as result of competition product

obsolescence technological change customer spending or other factors If our revenues derived from our

hosted software and web-based service offerings were to decline significantly our business and operating

results would be adversely affected As result if our relationships with significant customers were disrupted

we could lose significant percentage
of our anticipated revenues which could have material adverse effect on

our business
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We depend on limited number of customers for substantial portion of our revenues and the loss of or

significant reduction in purchases by one or more of these customers could adversely affect our

operating results

We receive significant amount of our revenues from limited number of customers Most of our customer

orders for our telehealth business including any business we may derive from our agreement with the U.S

Department of Veterans Affairs are expected to be made on purchase order basis which does not generally

require any long-term commitments nor any minimum purchase requirements Therefore these customers may
alter their past purchasing behavior with little or no notice to us for various reasons If our customers alter their

past or expected purchasing behavior or if we encounter any problems collecting amounts due from them our

financial condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted

Some of our hosted software and web-based service offerings have long and unpredictable sales cycles

which may impact our quarterly operating results

Transactions for some of our hosted software and web-based service offerings may require customers to

undertake customized installations to integrate the solutions into their legacy systems and require them to modify

existing business practices The period from our initial contact with potential customer until the execution of an

agreement is difficult to predict and can be in excess of six months The sales cycles for these transactions can be

long and unpredictable due to number of uncertainties such as

customers budgetary constraints

the need to educate potential customers about our software and service offerings

the timing of customers budget cycles

delays caused by customers internal review processes

customers willingness to invest resources and modify their network infrastructures to take advantage of

our offenngs and

for sales to government customers governmental regulatory approval and purchasing requirements

We are unable to control or influence many of these factors Further we have experienced delays in the pace

of adoption and use by our customers of our transaction-based offerings such as inscrybe Healthcare which has

adversely affected our earnings We may experience similardelays with our other products and services and

products and services currently under development During the sales cycle and the implementation period we

may expend substantial time effort and money preparing contract proposals negotiating contracts and

implementing solutions without receiving any related revenue In addition many of our expenses are relatively

fixed in the short term including personnel costs and technology and infrastructure costs Accordingly our

inability to generate sufficient revenues from these offerings has direct impact on our results of operations

Our contract award with the U.S Department of Veterans Affairs consistent with U.S government

contacts generally includes special contracting requirements that give the government the ability to

unilaterally control our contracts

In April 2011 we announced that we had received contract award from the U.S Department of Veterans

Affairs the VA pursuant to which the company was selected as supplier to the VA for its Telehealth

Program for home telehealth solutions The award is for national contract and under this agreement the

company will market its telehealth solutions developed by its Express MD joint venture to VA facilities

throughout the country The agreement consists of one year base period that commenced May 15 2011 and

four option years which are at the VAs sole discretion There is no minimum purchase requirement under the

contract There can be no assurance that the VA will exercise any of the option periods under the agreement nor

can the company provide any assurances as to the actual amount of products and solutions if any that may

ultimately be purchased by VA facilities under the agreement
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In addition U.S government contracts typically contain unilateral termination provisions for the

government and are subject to audit and modification by the government at its sole discretion which will subject

us to additional risks These risks include the ability of the U.S government unilaterally to

suspend or prevent us for set period of time from receiving new contracts or extending existing

contracts based on violations or suspected violations of laws or regulations

terminate our contracts including if funds become unavailable or are not provided to the applicable

governmental agency

delay the issuance of the requisite security clearances for our employees which we are pursuing

necessary for the company to perform under the agreement or revoke such clearances

reduce the scope and value of our contracts and/or revise the timing for work to be performed

audit and object to our contract-related costs and fees including allocated indirect costs

control and potentially prohibit the export of our products

claim rights to products including intellectual property developed under the contract and

change certain terms and conditions in our contracts

The U.S government will be able to terminate its contract with us either for its convenience or if we default

by failing to perform in accordance with the contract schçdule and terms Termination-for-convenience

provisions generally enable us to recover only our costs incurred or committed settlement expenses and profit

on the work completed prior to termination Termination-for-default provisions do not permit these recoveries

and would make us liable for excess costs incurred by the US go/ernment in procuring undelivered items from

another source

Due to the current economic downturn the accompanying fall in tax revenues and the U.S governments

efforts to stabilize the economy the US government may be forced or choose to reduce or delay spending in the

healthcare administration field which could decrease the likelihood of future government contract awards the

likelihood that the government will exercise its right to extend its existing contracts with us and/or the likelihood

that the government would procure products from us

Our business with the VA is subject to audit by the government and negative audit could adversely

affect our business

U.S government agencies routinely audit and investigate government contractors These agencies review

contractors performance under its contracts cost structure and compliance with applicable laws regulations and

standards Audits may also review the adequacy of and contractors compliance with its internal control

systems and policies including the contractOr purchasing property estimating compensation and management

information systems Any costs found to be improperly allocated to specific contract will not be reimbursed

while such costs already reimbursed must be refunded If an audit uncovers improper or illegal activities we may

be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions including

termination of contracts

forfeiture of profits

suspension of payments

fines and

suspension or prohibition from conducting business with the U.S government

In addition we could suffer serious reputational harm if allegations of impropriety were made against us
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Laws and regulations affecting government contracts make it more costly and difficult for us to

successfully conduct our business

We must comply with numerous laws and regulations relating to the formation administration and

performance of government contracts which can make it more difficult for us toretain our rights under these

contracts These laws and regulations affect how we conduct business with government agencies Among the

most significant government contracting regulations that affect our business are

the Federal Acquisition Regulation or FAR and agency-specific regulations supplemental to the

Federal Acquisition Regulation which comprehensively regulate the procurement formation

administration and performance of government contracts

the business etbcs and public rntegnty obligations which govern conflicts of interest and the hiring of

former government employees restrict the granting of gratuities and funding of lobbying activities and

incorporate other requirements such as the Anti-Kickback Act the Procurement Integrity Act the False

Claims Act and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

export and import control laws and regulations and

laws regulations and executive orders restricting the use and dissemination of information classified for

national security purposes and the exportation of certain products and technical data

Any changes in applicable laws and regulations could restrict our ability to maintain our existing contracts

and obtain new contracts which could materially adversely affect our revenues and results of operations

The failure to properly manage our growth could cause our business to lose money

We are using our sales and marketing efforts in order to develop and pursue existing and potential market

opportunities This growth is expected to place significant demand on management and operational resources

In order to manage growth effectively we must implement and improve our operational systems and controls on

timely basis If we fail to implement these systems and controls our business financial condition results of

operations and cash flows may be materially and adversely affected

Our hosted software and web-based services and web site may be subject to intentional disruption

Although we believe we have sufficient controls in place to prevent intentional disruptions such as software

viruses specifically designed to impede the performance of our softwar and web-based serviØes we may be

affected by such efforts in the future Further despite the implementation of security measures this Infrairructure

or other systems that we interface with including the Internet and related systems may be vulnerable to physical

break-ins hackers improper employee or contractor access programming errors attacks by third parties or

similardisruptive problems resulting in the potential misappropriation of our proprietary information or

interruptions of our services Any compromise of our security whether as result of our own systems or systems
that they interface with could substantially disrupt our operations harm our reputation and reduce demand for

our services

Performance problems with our systems or system failures could cause us to lose business or incur

liabilities

Our customer satisfaction and our business could be harmed if we experience transmission delays or failures

or loss of data in the systems we use to provide services to our customers including transaction-related services

These systems are complex and despitetesting and quality control we cannot be certain that problems will not

occur or that they will be detected and corrected promptly if they do occur In providing these services we rely

on internal systems as well as communications and hosting services provided by third parties such as the

Internet To operate without interruption both we and the service providers we use must guard against

damage from fire power loss and other natural disasters
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communications failures

software and hardware errors failures or crashes

security breaches computer viruses and similardisruptive problems and

other potential interruptions

We have experienced periodic system interruptions in the past and we cannot guarantee that they will not

occur again In the event of catastrophic event at our data center or any third party facility we use we may

experience an extended period of system unavailability which could negatively impact our business Further if

such an event caused the loss of stored data it could have material adverse impact on our business or cause us

to incur material liabilities Although we maintain insurance for our business we cannot guarantee that our

insurance will be adequate to compensate us for all losses that may occur or that this coverage will continue to be

available on acceptable termS or in sufficient amounts

In addition some of our web-based services may at times be required to accommodate higher than

expected volumes of traffic At those times we may experience slower response times Or system failures Any
sustainOdOr repeated interruptions or disruptions in these systems or slow down in their response times could

damage our relationships with customers Further the Internet has experienced and is likely to continue to

experience significant growth in the number of users and the amount of traffic If the Internet continues to

experience increased usage the Internet iæfrastructare may be unable to support the demands placed on it which

could harm its reliability and performance Any significant interruptions in our services or increases in response

time could result in loss of potential or existing users of services and if sustained or repeated could reduce the

attractiveness of our services

We are subject to product liability risks associated with the production marketing and sale of products

used in the healthcare industry

The production marketing and sale of devices used in the health-care industry have inherent risks of

liability in the event of product failure or claim of harm caused by product operation Furthermore even

meritless claims of product liability maybe costly to defend against The commercialization of the telehealth

device exposes us to such claims These types of product liability claims may result in decreased demand for this

product injury to our reputation related litigation costs and substantial monetary awards to plaintiffs We
attempt to limit by contract our liability however the limitations of liability set forth in the contracts may not be

enforceable in certain jurisdictions or may not otherwise protect us from liability for damages We may also be

subject to claims that are not covered by contract such .as claim directly by patient Although we currently

maintain product liability insurance we may not have sufficient insurance coverage and we may not be able to

obtain sufficient coverage at reasonable cost Our inability to obtain product liability insurance at an acceptable

cost or to otherwise protect against potential product liability claims could inhibit the commercialization of any

products that we develop If we are sued for any injury caused by our products or processes then our liability

could exceed our product liability insurance coverage and our total assets

We need to comply with ongoing regulatory reqwrements applicable to our telehealth product and our

ability to generate revenue from this product is subject to our ability to obtain acceptable prices or an

adequate level of reimbursement from payors of healthcare costs

Our telehealth product is medical device that is subject to extensive regulation in the United States Unless

an exemption applies each medical device that we wish to market in the United States must receive either 10k
clearance or premarket approval from the U.S Food and Drug Administration or the FDA before the product

can be sold Either process can be lengthy and expensive The FDAs 510k clearance procedure also known as

premarket notification is the process we have used for our current telehealth product The regulatory clearance

for our telehealth product provides for its use for its intended purposes In addition the manufacturing labeling

packaging adverse event reporting storage advertising promotion distribution and record-keeping for approved
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products are subject to extensive regulation If the FDA determines that our promotional materials or activities

constitute promotion of an unapproved use or we otherwise fail to comply with other FDA regulations we may
be subject to regulatory enforcement actions including warning letter injunction seizure civil fine

suspensions loss of regulatory clearance prodüØt recalls or product seizUres In the more egregious cases
criminal sanctions civil penalties or disgorgement of profits are possible The subsequent discovery of

previously unluiown problems may also result in restrictions on the marketing of our products and could include

voluntary or mandatory recall or withdrawal of products from the market Further wecannot predict the

likelihood nature or extent of adverse government regulation that may arise from future legislation or

admimstrative action If we are not able to maintain regulatory compliance we will not be permitted to market

our products and our business would

In addition our ability to commercialize our telehealth product successfully will depend in part on the

extent to which appropriate coverage and reimbursement levels for the cost of this product are obtained by us or

by our direct customers from governmental authorities private health insurers and other organizations The

ability of customers to obnappropriate reimbursement f9r their products and services from private and

governmentalpayors is critical totheuccess of medical technologydevice companies as the availability of

reimbursement affects which product customers purchase and hepricesthey are willing to pay-The cost
containment measures that healthcare payors and providers are instituting .and the effect of any healthcare reform

could materially and adversely affectour ability to generate revenues from this product and our profitability In

addition given ongoing federal and state government initiatives directed at lowering the total cost of healthcare

the United States Congress an slate legislatures will likely continue to focus on healthcare reform andthe

reform of theMedicare and Medicaidpayment systems While cannot predict whether any proposedcost
containment measures will be adopted the announcement or adoption of these proposals could reduce the price
that we receive for our telehealth product in the future We cannot predict the outcomes of any of legislative or

regulatory efforts at reducing costs of providing healthcare and regulatory changes in thisregard may have
matenal adeise effect on our business

The healthcare industry is highly regulated at the local state and federal level

In addition to regulatory requirements concerningthe commercialization of medical devices we are subject
to significant and wideranging number of regulations both wihin the United States and elsewhere such as

regulations in the areas of healthcare fraud aiid thesecurity and privacy of patient data

Healthcare Fraud Federal and state governients continue to enhance regulation of and increase their

scrutiny over practices involving healthcare fraud affecting healthcare providers whose services are reimbursed

by Medicare Medicaid and other government healthcare programs Our healthcare provider clients are subject to

laws and regulations on fraud and abuse which among other things prohibit the direct or indirect payment or

receipt of any remuneration for patient referrals or arranging for or recommending referrals or dther business

paidfor in whole or in part by these federal or state healthcare programs Federal enforcement personnni have
substantial funding powers and remedies to pursue suspected or perceived fraud and abuse The effect of this

government regulation on our clients is difficult to predict Many of the regulations applicable to our clients and
that may be app1icble to us including those relating to marketing incentives offered in connection

with medical
device sales are vague or indefinite and have not been

interpreted by thecourts They may be interpreted or

applied by prosecutorial regulatory or judicial authonty manner that could broaden their applicability to us

or require our clients to make changes in their operations or the way in which they deal with us If such laws and
regulations are determined to be applicable to us and if we fail to cothply with any applicable laws and

regulations We could be subject to civil and criminal penalties sanctions or other liability including exclusion

from government health programs which could have material adverse effect on our business results of

operations and financial condition

Security and Privacy of Patient information Federal state and local laws regulate the confidentiality of

patient records and the circumstances under which those records may be released These regulations govern both

24



the disclosure and use of confidential patient medical record information and require the users of such

information to implement specified security measures United States regulations currently in place governing

electronic health data transmissions continue to evolve and are often tnclar and difficult to apply Similarly

laws in non-U.S jurisdictions may have imilar or even stricter requirements related to the treatment of patient

information In the United States HIPAA regulations require national standards for some types of electronic

health information transactions and the data elements used in those transactions security standards to ensure the

integrity and confidentiality of health information and standards to protect the privacy of individually identifiable

health information Covered entities under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996

HIPAA which include healthcare organizations such as our clients our employer clinic business model and our

claims transmission services are required to comply with he privacy standards the transaction regulations and

the security regulations Morçover the recently enacted Health Information Technology for Economic and

Clinical Health Act HITECH provisions of the Amencan Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA and

associated regulatory requirements extend many of the HIPAA obligations formerly imposed only upon covered

entities to business associates as well As business associate of our clients who are covered entities we were in

most instances already contractually required to ensure compliance with the HIPAA regulations as they pertain to

handling of covered client data However the extension of these HIPAA obligations to business associates by

law hascreated additional liability risks relatedto the privacy and security of individually idetitifiable health

information Evolving HIPAA and HITECH -related laws or regulations andregulations in ndn-U.S jurisdictions

could restrict the ability of our clients to obtain use or disseminate patient information This could adversely

affect demand for our solutions if they are not re-designed in timely manner in order to meet the requirements

of any new interpretations or regulations that seek to protect the privacy and security of patient data or enable our

clients to execute new or modified healthcare transactions We may need to expend additional capital software

development and other resources to modify our solutions and.devices to address these evolving data security and

privacy issues Furthermore otir failure to maintain confidentiality of sensitive personal information in

accordance with th applicable regulatory requirements cOuld damage our reputation nnd expose us tO breach of

contract claims although we contractually limit liability when possible and where permitted fities and

penalties

If we are unable to generate sufficient demand for our current telehealth product or our joint venture is

otherwise unsuccessful we may not be able to recover our inventory and other investments Further

modifications to our current telehealth product may require new marketing clearances or approvals or

require us to cease marketing or recall the modified products until such clearances or approvals are

obtained

In connection with our manufactunng and sales plans for the ExpressMDTM Solutions telehealth service we

have purchased certain components and contract manufacturing services for the productiOn of the monitoring

appliance Our ability to recover our investment in this venture including in building inventories of our current

telehealth products is subject to risks If we are unable to generate sufficient demand for this product or the joint

venture is otherwise unsuccessful or is terminated we may not be able to recover our costs in acquiring these

assets As described above under the LLC Agreement the joint venture shall continue until terminated by mutual

agreement of the parties and the entity shall be dissolved upon certain events including the expulsion

bankruptcy or dissolution of member the sale or transfers of all or substantially all of its assets or upon its

merger into or acquisition by another entity and If the members cannot agree on ongoing funding

requirements in accordance with the procedures set forth in the agreement In the event that this occurs we may

need to write-off material portion of the value of these assets and our financial condition may be adversely

affected As of June 30 2011 total inventory was valued at approximately $4.6 million and as of such date we

had advanced approximately $1.7 million to the joint venture to fund its operations

Further any modification to an FDA-cleared medical device that could significantly affect its safety or

effectiveness or that would constitute major change or modification in its intended use requires new

FDA 510k clearance or possibly premarket approval The FDA requires every manufacturer to make its own

determination as to whether mOdification requires new 510k clearance or premarket approval but the
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FDA may review and disagree with any decision reached by the manufacturer In the future we may make
modifications to our telehealth products and in appropriate circumstances determine that new clearance or

approval is unnecessary Regulatory authorities may disagree with our decisions not to seek new clearance or

approval and may require us to obtain clearance or approval for modifications to our products If that were to

occur for previously cleared or approved product we may be required to cease marketing or recall the modified

device until we obtain the
necessary clearance or approval Under these circumstances we may also be subject to

significant regulatory fines or other penalties If any of the foregoing were to occur we may be unable to recover
the cost of our investments in our telehealth business and our financial condition and results of operations could
be negatively impacted

If our suppliers for our telehealth product fails to comply with the FDAs Quality System Regulation or

QSR and other applicable postmarket requirements our manufacturing operations could be disrupted
our product sales and profitability could suffer and we may be subject to wide variety of FDA
enforcement actions

After device is placed on the market numerous regulatory requirements apply We are subject to

inspection and marketing surveillance by the FDA to determine our compliance with all regulatory requirements
Our failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements could result in the FDA or court instituting

wide variety of enforcement actions against us including public warning letter recall of products fines or
civil penalties seizure or detention of our products withdrawing 510k clearance already granted to as and
criminal prosecution The manufacturing processes of some of our suppliers must comply with the FDAs
Quality System Regulation or QSR which governs the methods used in and the fatilities and controls used for
the design testing manufacture control quality assurance installation servicing labeling packaging storage
and shipping of medical devices The FDA enforces the QSR through unannounced.inspections If one of our

suppliers fails QSR inspection or if corrective action plan adopted by supplier is not sufficient the FDA
may bring an enforcement action and our operations could be disrupted and our manufacturing delayed We are
also

subject to the FDAs general prohibition against promoting our products for unapproved or off-label uses
the FDAs adverse event reporting requirements and the FDAs reporting requirements for field correction or

product removals The FDA has recently placed increased emphasis on its scrutiny of compliance with the QSR
and these other postmarket requirements If we or one of our suppliers violate the FDA

requirements or fail to

take adequate corrective action in response to any significant compliance issue raised by the FDA the FDA can
take various enforcement actions which could cause our product sales and profitability to suffer

Our hosted software and web-based services and other product offerings may not be accepted by the

market which would seriously harm our business

Demand and market acceptance for our currently available hosted software and web-based services and
other product offerings remain subject to high level of uncertainty Achieving widespread acceptance of these

or future offerings will continue to require substantial marketing efforts and the expenditure of significant funds

to create and maintain brand recognition and customer demand for such offerings Demand for our software
services and other product offerings depends on among other things

the perceived ability of our offerings to address real customer problems

the perceived quality price ease-of-use and
interoperability of our offerings as compared to our

competitors offerings

the market perception of the ease or difficulty in deploying our software or services especially in

complex network environments

the continued evolution of electronic conmierce as viable means of conducting business

market acceptance and use of new technologies and standards

the ability of network infrastructures to support an increasing number of users and services
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the pace
of technologicaichange and ourability to keepiip with these changes and

general economic conditions which influence how much money our customers and potential customers

are willing to allocate to their information technology budgets

There can be no assurance that adequate marketing arrangements will be made and continued for our

products and services and there can be no assurancethat any of these offerings will ever achieve or maintain

widespread market acceptance or that such offerings will be profitable

If we cannot continuously enhance our hosted software and web based service offerings in response to

rapid changes in the market our business will be harmed

The softwarebased services industry and computer industry are characterized by extensive research and

development efforts which result in the frequent introduction of new products and services which render existing

products and services obsolete Our ability to competesuccessfully in the future will depend in large part on our

ability to maintain technically competent research anddevelopment staff arid our ability to adapt to

technological changes in the industry and enhance and improve our hosted software and web-based service

offerings and successfully develop and market new offerings that meet the changing needs of our customers

Although we are dedicated to continued improvement of our offerings with view towards satisfying market

needs with the most advanced capabilities there can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to do so on

regular basis and remain competitive with products offered by other manufacturers At the present time we do

not have targeted level of expenditures for research and development We will evaluate all opportunities but

believe the majority of our research and development will be devoted to enhancements of our existing offerings

If our hosted software and web based service offerings are not competitive our business will suffer

We are engaged in the highly competitive businesses developing hosted software and web-based

workflowmangement services and telehealth solutions These markets are continually evolving and in some

cases to rapid technological change Many of our competitors have greater financial technical product

development marketing and other resources than we do These organizations may be better known than we are

and have more customers than we do Wecannotprovideassurance that we will be able tocompete successfully

against these organizations We believe that the principal competitive factors affecting our markets include

performance ease of use quality/reliabilityof our offerings scalability features and functionality price and

customer service and support There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully incorporate these

factors into our software and web-based services and compete against current or future competitors or that

competitive pressure we face will not harm our business If we are unable to develop and market products to

compete with the products of competitors our business will be materially and adversely affected

Our business including Inscrybe Healthcare and our telehealth appliance and service and our electronic

signing solutions are relatively new business lines and although the level of competition for these offenngs is

uncertain at this point in time the field of software-based solutions in which we compete is highly competitive

There can be no assurances however that any of our offenngs will achieve market acceptance

We also expect that competition will increase as result of industry consolidations and the formation of new

companies with new innovative offerings Current and potential competitors have established or may establish

cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties to increase the ability of their software and

service offerings to address the needs of our prospective customers Accordingly it is possible that new

competitors or alliances among competitors may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share Increased

competition is likely to result in price reductions reduced operating margins and loss of market share any of

which could harm our business
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Our hosted software and web-based services are complex and are operated in awide variety of computer

configurations which could result in errors or product failures

Our hosted software and web-based services are complex and may contain undetected errors failures or

bugs that may arise when they are first introduced or when new versions are released These offerings may be

used in large-scale computing environments with different operating systems system management software and

equipment and networking configurations which may cause errors or failures in our offerings or may expose

undetected errors failures or bugs in such offerings Otircomputer environments are often

characterized by wide variety of configurations that make pre-release testing for programming or compatibility

errors difficult and time-consuming Despite testing by us and by others errors failures or bugs may not be

found in new products or releases after commencement of commercial use Errors failures or bugs in our

offerings could result in negative publicity returns loss Of Or delay iii thärket acceptance of our hosted softwaie

or web-basedservicesor claims by customers or others Alleviatingthese problems could require significant

expenditures of our capital and resources and could cause interruptions delays or cessation of our licenses which

could cause us to lose exiting or potential customers and would adversely affect our financial conditions results

of operations andcash flows Most of our license agreements with customers contain provisions designed to limit

our exposure to potential productliability claims It is possible however that these provisions may not prove

effective in limiting ourliability.

We have significant amount of net operating loss carry forwards whkh we may not be able to utilize in

certain circumstances

At June 30 2011 we had net operating loss or NOL carry forwards for federal income tax purposes of

approximately $132000000 available to offset future taxable income Under Section 382 of the Internal

Revenue Code following an ownership change special limitations apply to the use by loss corporation of

its NOL carry forwards arising bgfôre the bWnership change and iihet unrealized 1ui1t-in losses if Such

losses existed immediately before the ownership change and exceed statutory tliteshold amount recognized

during the five years following the ownership changei and ii are referred tocollectively as the Applicable

Tax Attributes After an ownership change the amount of the loss corporation taxable income for each post

changotaxable year that may be offset by the Applicable Tax Attributes is limited to the product of the 1ong
term tax-exempt rate published by the IRS for the month of the ownership change multiplied by the value of

the loss corporations stock the Section 382 Limitation To the extent that the loss corporations Section 382

Limitation in giyen taxable year exceeds its taxable income for the year that excess increases the Section 382

Limitation in future taxable years

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price is volatile and could decline

The
price

of our common stock has been and is likely to continue to be volatile Our stock
price during the

fiscal
year ended June 30 2011 traded as low as $0 38 per

share and as high as $1 60
per share We cannot assure

you that your initial investment in our common stock will not fluctuate significantly The market price
of our

common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to number of factors some of which are beyond Our

control including

quarterly variations in our operating results

announcements we make regarding significant contracts acquisitions dispositions strategic

partnerships or joint ventures

additions or departures of key personnel

the introduction of competitive offerings by existing or new competitors

uncertainty about and customer confidence in the current economic conditions and outlook
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reduced demand for any given software or web-based service offering and

sales of our common stock

In addition the stock market in general including companies whose stock is listed on The NASDAQ
Capital Market have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been disproportionate to

the operating performance of these companies Broad market and industry factors may negatively affect the

market price of our common stock regardless of our actualopeEating performance

We are currently not in compliance with The NASDAQ Capital Market $1.00 minimum bid price

requirement and failure to regain and maintain compliance with this standard could result in delisting and

adversely affect the market price and liquidity of our common stock

Our common stock is currently traded on The NAS.LAQ Capital Market under the symbol ADAT If we

fail to meet any .of thecontinued listing standards of The NASDAQ Capital Market our common stock will be

delisted from The NASDAQ Capital Market These continued listing standards include specifically enumerated

criteria such asa $1.00 minimum closing bid price On September 19 2011 we received letter from The

NASDAQ Stbck Market advising that the company did not meet the minimum $1.00 per share bid price

requirement for continued inclusion on The NASDAQ Capital Market pursuant to NASDA Marketplace

Listing Rule 550a2 The letter stated that we have until March 19 2012 to regain compliance If we do not

regain compliance during this period we will be eligible for an additional 180 calendar days to comply with the

minimum bid price requirement provided that we meet the initial listing criteria other than the minimum bid

price requirement and provide written notice of our ntentionto cure the deficiency during the secon4 compliance

period To regain compliance with the applicable listing rule the closing bid price of our common stock must

meet or exceed $1.00 per share for minimum often consecutive business days during the 180 .day grace period

If this occurs Nasdaq will provide us with written notification of compliance If we.do not regaincompliance

during the initial grace period and are not eligible for an additional grace period NASDAQ will provide written

notice that our common stock is subject to delisting In that event we may appeal such determination to

hearings panel We may not be able to regain compliancewith the Listing Rule Further this deficiency notice

relates exclusively to our bid price deficiency.We may be delisted during the applicable grace periods for failure

to maintain compliance with any other listing requirement which may occur

If-our common stock were to be delisted from The NASDAQ Capital Market trading of our common stock

most likely will be conducted in the over-the-counter market on an electronic bulletin board established for

unlisted securities such as the OTC Bulletin Board Such trading will reduce the market liquidity of our common

stock As result an investor would find it more difficult to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations for the

price of our common stock If our common stock is delisted from The NASDAQ Capital Market and the trading

price remains below $5.00 per share trading in our common stock might also become subject to the requirements

of certain rules promulgated under the Exchange Act which require additional disclosure by broker-dealers in

connection with any trade involving stock defined as penny stock generally any equity security not listed

on national securities exchange or quoted on Nasdaq that has market price of less than $5.00 per share

subject to certain exceptions Many brokerage firms are reluctant to recommend low-priced stocks to their

clients Moreover various regulations and policies restrict the ability of shareholders to borrow against or

margin low-priced stocks and declines inthe stock price below certain levels may trigger unexpected margin

calls Additionally because brokers commissions on low-priced stocks generally represent higher percentage

of the stock price than commissions on higher priced stocks the current price of the common stock can result in

an individual shareholder paying transaction costs .that represent higher percentage of total share value than

would be the case if our share price were higher This factor may also limit the willingness of institutions to

purchase our common stock Finally the additional burdens imposed upon broker-dealers by these requirements

could discourage broker-dealers from facilitating trades in our common stock which could severely limit the

market liquidity of the stock and the ability of investors to trade our common stock
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Since we have not paid dividends on our common stock you may not receive income from this investment

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock since our inception and do not contemplate or

anticipate paying any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future Earnings if any will be used to

finance the development and expansion of our business

Trading in our stock over the last twelve months has been limited so investors maynot be able to sell as

much stock as they want at prevailing prices

The average daily trading volume in our common stock for the Iwelve months ended June 30 2011 was

approximately 166000 shares If limited trading in our stock continues it may be difficult for investors to sell

their shares in the public market at any given time at prevailing prices Moreover the market price for shares of

our common stock may be made more volatile because of the relatively low volume of trading in our common

stock When trading volume is low significant price movement can be caused by the trading in relatively small

number of shares Volatility in our common stock could cause stockholders to incur substantial losses

Additional financings could result in dilution to existing stockholders and otherwise adversely impact the

rights of our common stockholders

Additional financings that we may require in the future will dilute the percentage ownership interests Of our

stockholders and may adversely affect our earnings and net book value per share In addition we may not be able

to secure any such additional financing on terms acceptable to us if at all We have the authority to issue

additional shares of common stock and preferred stock as well as additional classes or series of warrantSor debt

obligations which may be convertible into any one or more classes or series of ownership interests We are

authorized to issue 75 million shares of common stock and million shares of preferred stock Subject to

compliance with the requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market such securities may be issued without the

approval or other consent of our stockholders

Wefiled shelf registration statement on Form S3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission in

August 2009 which was declared effective by the Commission on September 30 2009 Under this registration

statement we may sell from time to time in one or more public offerings shares of our common stock shares of

our preferred stock debt securities or warrants to purchase common stock preferred stock or debt securities or

any combination of such securities After giving effect to our registered direct offering completed in October

2011 there is approximately $29 million available for future issuances under this registration statement subject

to SEC limitations This disclosure shall not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy the

securities nor shall there by any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which an offer solicitation or sale

would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of such jurisdiction Any offer of

the securities will be solely by means of theprospectus included in the registration statement and one or more

prospectus supplements that will be issued at the time of the offering

In the event that any future financing should be in the form of be convertible into or exchangeable for

equity securities and upon the conversion or exercise of such securities investors may experience additional

dilution Moreover we may issue undesignated shares of preferred stock the terms of which may be fixed by our

board of directors and which terms may be preferential to the interests of our common stockholders We have

issued preferred stock in the past and our board of directors has the authority without stockholder approval to

create and issue one or more additional series of such preferred stock and to determine the voting dividend and

other rights of holders of such preferred stock Any debt financing if available may involve restrictive covenants

that impact our ability to conduct our business The issuance of any of such series of preferred stock or debt

securities may have an adverse effect on the holders of common stock
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If we are required to redeem the shares of our Series Preferred Stock our financial condition may be

adversely affected

In connection with our recent private placement we filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware

Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights and Number of Shares of Series 15% convertible

redeemable preferred stock or the Series Designation The Series Designation provides for the mandatory

redemption of all outstanding shares of Series preferred stock upon their stated maturity date on April 13

2012 which is the 18 month anniversary of the original issue date unless prior to such date our shareholders

approve
the conversion of the shares of Series preferred stock into shares of our common stock If we are

required to redeem the shares of Series preferred stock we will be required to pay to the holders of the shares

of Series preferred stock total redemptiOn price equal to 102.5% of the stated value of the Series shares

plus dividends which would be $2500000 Following our recent special meeting of shareholders held on

August 23 2011 our shareholders have declined to approve the conversion of the Series preferred stock on

two occasions Consistent with our obligations under the purchase agreement entered into with the purchasers of

the Series preferred stock we will call one or more additional meetings of our shareholders at which

shareholders will
again

be requested to approve the conversion of the shares of Series preferred stock In

addition if at the maturity date of the Series preferred stock any shares of our Senes preferred stock remain

outstanding we will be required to redeem all such outstanding shares of Series preferred stock immediately

prior to the redemption of the Series preferred stock There are currently 28 000 shares of Series preferred

stock outstanding and the total redemption payment for the Series preferred stock is equal to $700 000 plus any

accrued but unpaid dividends thereon as of such redemption date Accordingly the redemption of these

securities may have an adverse effect on our cash position

The number of shares of our common stock outstanding has increased substantially as result of our

recent financings and the exercise or conversion of the warrants and shares of preferred stock issued in

these transactions could result in further dilution to holders of our common stock

Upon the closing of our private placement on October 13 2010 we issued to group of institutional and

other accredited investors total of 500 000 shares of our common stock plus 250 000 shares of Series

preferred stock which are convertible into an maximum of 6125 000 shares of common stock at the initial

conversion price of $0 40 including all shares issuable in lieu of cash dividends for the 18 month term and

common stock warrants to purchase total of 250 000 additional shares of common stock The issuance of

these securities resulted in substantial dilution to stockholders who held our common stock prior to the private

placement Further the conversion of the shares of Series preferred stock and exercise of warrants issued in

this private placement may result in further dilution to the holders of our common stock As of June 30 2011 the

number of shares issued to the purchasers in this private placement and warrants exercised to date represents

approximately 16.7% of our outstanding common stock without giving effect to the conversion of the shares of

Series preferred stock or the exercise of the oütstaæding common stoºk warrants The conversion of the shares

of Series preferred stock is subject to the approval of our stockholders in accordance with applicable Nasdaq

requirements and under the purchase agreement with the investors we are obligated to seek shareholder approval

for the conversion of the shares of Series preferred stock As result these stockholders if acting together

may have significant influence over the outcome of any stockholder vote other than any proposal to approve the

conversion of such shares including the election of directors and other significant business matters that require

stockholder approval Such other significant business matters could include for example the approval of

mergers or other business combination transactions

In addition in connection with the registered direct offering of common stock and warrants we announced

on October 2011 we will issue an additional 5874998 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase

937 497 shares of common stock This represents approximately 11 3% of our outstanding common stock after

the offering without giving effect to the exercise of the warrants The sale of these shares of common stock and

any conversion of the shares of preferred stock and exercise of warrants subject to shareholder approval as

discussed above may adversely affect the market price of our common stock and our stock price may decline

substantially
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The exercise of our outstanding options and warrants or conversion of our outstanding shares of

convertible preferred stock may depress our stock price and dilute your ownership of the company

As of June 30 2011 the following options and warrants were outstanding

Stock options to purchase 4444000 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.39 to

$6.61 per share not all of which are immediately exercisable The weighted average exercise price of

the outstanding stock options is $2.27 per share These stock options are employee and non-executive

director options

Warrants to purchase 6820000 shares of common stock with weighted average exercise price of

$0.74 per share inclusive of the warrants issued in our recent private placement

In addition there are currently outstanding 28000 shares of our Series convertible preferred stock and

250 000 shares of our Series preferred stock The holder of the Series convertible preferred stock may

convert these shares into shares of our common stock at conversion pnce equal to $1 40
per

share Accordingly

the outstanding 28 000 shares of Series convertible preferred stock are presently convertible into an aggregate

of 500000 shares of our common stock which will be available for immediate resale in accordance with the

provisions
of Rule 144 under the Secunties Act Further as described above the shares of Series preferred

stock and all accrued dividends thereon will convert into maximum 016 125 000 shares of our common stock

at an initial conversion price of $040 effective upon the approval of our stockholders If our stockholders

approve the conversion of the shares of Series preferred stock then all shares of Series preferred stock will

automatically convert into shares of our common stock

To the extent that these securities are exercised or converted dilution to our shareholders will occur

Moreover the terms upon which we will be able to obtain additional equity capital may be adversely affected

since the holders of these securities can be expected to exerôise or convert them at time when we would in all

likelihood be able to obtain any needed capital on terms more favorable to us than the exercise and conversion

terms provided by those securities Further in the event the conversion price of our outstanding shares of

convertible preferred stock is lower than the actual trading price on the day of conversion the holders could

immediately sell their converted common shares which would have dilutive effect on the value of the

outstanding common shares Furthermore the significant downward pressure on the trading price of our common

stock as preferred stock holders converted these securities and sell the common shares received on conversion

could encourage short sales by the holders of preferred stock or other shareholders This would place further

downward pressure on the trading price of our common stock Even the mere perception of eventual sales of

common shares issued on the conversion of the shares of preferred stock could lead to decline in the trading

price of our common stock

Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law could discourage or prevent takeover even if an

acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholders

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws as well as provisions of Delaware law could make

it more difficult for third party to acquire us even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders These

provisions include

authorizing the issuance of blank check preferred that could be issued by our board of directors to

increase the number of outstanding shares and thwart takeover attempt

prohibiting cumulative voting in the election of directors which would otherwise allow less than

majority of stockholders to elect director candidates and

advance notice provisions in connection with stockholder proposals that may prevent or hinder any

attempt by our stockholders to bring business to be considered by our stockholders at meeting or

replace our board of directors

Together these provisions may delay deter or prevent change in control of us adversely affecting the

market price of our common stock
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ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no unresolved staff comments

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our executive offices and certain operations are located at the Connell Corporate Center 300 Connell Drive

5th Floor Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

We entered into the lease agreement for our executive offipes on July 11 2005 The lease was for term of

ten years and four months with commencement date of October 2005 and covers approximately 19700 total

rentable square feet The annual rent in the first year was $324000 increasing to $512000 in year and

increasing at regular intervals until year
10 when the annual rent was approximately $561000 Effective

February 2010 we amended our lease to reduce the annual rent to approximately $512000 for the remaining

term and extended the lease term for one year through January 2017 The lease also provides us with one-time

option to renew the lease for term of five years at the then-current market rate As part of the lease agreement

we posted letter of credit securing our lease payments which was reduced to approximately $256000

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Between June and August 2005 six purported shareholder class actions were filed in the United States

District Court for the Southern District of New York the District Court against our company and certain of

our current and former directors and former officers Plaintiffs in those actions alleged that defendants violated

Sections 10b and 20a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of

1933 The securities law claims were based on the allegations that we failed to disclose that our August 2002

agreement with the USPS contained certain performance metrics and that the USPS could cancel the agreement

if we did not meet these metrics that we did not disclose complete and accurate information as to our

performance under and efforts to renegotiate the USPS agreement and that when we did disclose that the USPS

might cancel the agreement the market price of our stock declined On October 2005 theCourt consolidated

the class actions under the caption In re Authentidate Holding Corp Securities Litigation C.A No 05 Civ 5323

LTS and appointed the Illinois State Board of Investment as lead plaintiff under the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act The plaintiff filed an amended consolidated complaint on January 2006 which asserted

the same claims as the prior complaints and also alleged that Authentidate violated the federal securities laws by

misrepresenting that it possessed certain patentable technology On July 14 2006 the District Court dismissed

the amended complaint in its entirety certain claims were dismissed with prejudice and plaintiff was given leave

to replead those claims whichwere not dismissed with prejudice In August 2006 plaintiff filed second

amended complaint which did not assert any claims relating to the companys patents or under the Securities Act

of 1933 but which otherwise was substantially similar to the prior complaint The second amended complaint

sought unspecified monetary damages The company moved to dismiss the second amended complaint on

November 13 2006 On March 26 2009 the District Court dismissed with prejudice the second amended

complaint The lead plaintiff filed an appeal On March 12 2010 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Second

Circuit issued an order affirming in part and vacating and remanding in part the March 26 2009 order of

dismissal On December 23 2010 the company and certain of its current and former directors and former

officers entered into settlement of the consolidated class actions with the lead plaintiff As set forth more fully

in the Stipulation of Settlement upon final approval of the settlement by the District Court among other things

the class will consist of all persons who purchased the companys shares between July 16 2004 and May 27

2005 ii all claims of all class members whether class individual direct or derivatively arising out of or

related to the plaintiffs allegations will be dismissed with prejudice and released and iii payment of $1.9

million will be made for the benefit of the settlement class which will be funded by the companys insurance

carrier On February 2011 the District Court entered an order that preliminarily approved the Stipulation of

Settlement preliminarily certified settlement class of all persons who purchased the companys common stock

between July 16 2004 and May 27 2005 inclusive and scheduled hearing for July 20 2011 to determine
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whether to grant final approval of the settlement The court granted final approval of the settlement and

certification of the class at the hearing and the settlement was effective as of August 23 2011

in addition to the class action complaints four purported shareholder derivative actions were filed against

certain current and former directors and former officers of the company in June and July 2005 in the S.D.N.Y

These federal court derivative actions were based on substantially the same events and allegations as the original

class action complaints and asserted claims that Authentidate was injured by an alleged breach of fiduciary duty

waste mismanagement violations of Sarbanes-Oxley and misappropriation of inside information The

derivative complaints sought among other things damages equitable relief restitution and payment of costs

and expenses incurred in the litigation including legal fees Plaintiffs in the derivative actions entered into

Court-approved stipulation providing for the consolidation of their actions and the selection of Maxine Philips as

the lead plaintiff Plaintiffs filed consolidated complaint on November 14 2005 which defendants moved to

dismiss on January 13 2006 on the ground that plaintiffs had not made proper demand on the board of

directors On March 20 2006 before the motion to dismiss was decided plaititiffs in the federal court derivative

action voluntarily dismissed their complaint without prejudice On April 2006 the court held hearing to

confirm among other things that plaintiffs had not received any payment or other consideration for the dismissal

of their claims At the hearing plaintiffs agreed to file motion seeking court approval for the dismissal

Plaintiffs filed this motion on April 18 2006 and the court entered an order dismissing the consolidated

complaint on May 2006 Subsequently on May 25 2006 the plaintiffs sent letter to the board of directors

demanding that it file derivative suit on behalf of the company which asserts the same claims as the complaint

which plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed only weeks earlier

On-December 13 2005 purported shareholder derivative action was filed in the Supreme Court of New

York Schenectady County entitled Elkin Goldman et al No 2005-2240 Plaintiff in that action demanded

that our board of directors file derivative action on behalf of the company against nine of its current and former

directors and former officers The complaint asserts the same claims that are alleged in the derivative actions in

the S.D.N.Y The board of directors following recommendation from committee of the Board composed of

outside non-employee directors who were advised by independent outside counsel concluded that commencing

litigation as demanded by Elkin is not in our best interest There were no further pleadings or proceedings in

that action

Management believes that these legal matters individually or in aggregate will not have material adverse

effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows in as much as the company believes its

current liability insurance is adequate to cover all reasonably anticipated costs settlements and judgments with

respect to these proceedings However litigation such as described above is subject to inherent uncertainties and

there can be no assurance that management opinion of the anticipated effect of these matters will be correct or

that it will not change in the future

In addition we are subject to other claims and litigation arising inthe ordinary course of business Our

management considers that any liability from any reasopably foreseeable disposition of such other claims and

litigation individually or in the aggregate would not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial

position results of operations or cash flows

ITEM REMOVED AND RESERVED
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUiTY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol ADAT The

following is the range of high and low sales prices for our common stock on The NASDAQ Capital Market for

the periods indicated below

High Low

Fiscal Year 2011

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Fiscal Year 2010

1st Quarter $1.81

2nd Quarter $1.74

3rd Quarter $1.19

4thQuarter $1.11

As of September 15 2011 there were approximately 500 holders of record of our common stock We
believe that there are approximately 6500 holders of our common stock

On September 19 2011 we received letter from The NASDAQ Stock Market advising that the company

did not meet the minimum $1.00 per share bid price requirement for continued inclusion on The NASDAQ
Capital Market pursuant to NASDAQ Marketplace Listing Rule 5550a2 The letter stated that we have until

March 19 2012 to regain compliance If we do not regain compliance during this period we will be eligible for

an additional 180 calendar days to comply with the minimum bid price requirement provided that we meet the

initial listing criteria other than the minimum bid price requirement and provide written notice of our intention to

cure the deficiency during the second compliance period To regain compliance with the applicable listing rule

the closing bid price of our common stock must meet or exceed $1.00 per share for minimum of ten

consecutive business days during the 180 day grace period If we do not regain compliance during the initial

grace period and are not eligible for an additional grace period NASDAQ will provide written notice that our

common stock is subject to delisting In that event we may appeal such determination to hearings panel There

can be no guarantee that we will be able to regain compliance with the applicable listing rule

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock since our inception We do not expect to pay any

dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future and plan to retain earnings if any to finance the

development and expansion of our business Further our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes our board of

directors to issue Preferred Stock with preferential right to dividends We currently have 28000 shares of

Series Preferred Stock outstanding which have the right to receive dividends equal to an annual rate of 10% of

the issue price payable on semi annual basis and 250 000 shares of Series Preferred Stock outstanding

which have the right to receive dividends equal to an annual rate of 15% of the issue price payable in stock at

conversion if approved by our stockholders or in cash at maturity

Sales of Unregistered Securities

For the quarter ended June 30 2011 an aggregate of 19492 restricted shares of our common stock were

earned by non-executive directors and were issued in July 2011 in lieu of portion of the cash fees earned for

their service as members of our board of directors pursuant to our 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option

Plan as amended The shares were issued pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Section 42
of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

$0.86

$0.68

$0.63

$1.60

$0.50

$0.38

$0.40

$0.53

$0.38

$0.93

$0.96

$0.51
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Repurchase of Equity Securities

There were no stock repurchases during the year ended June 302011

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

Disclosure pursuant to this item is provided below in Item 12 of this Annual Report

Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph shall not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange

Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by

reference into any filing of Authentidate under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act

Comparison of Cumulative Total ReturnJune 30 2007 to June 30 2011

Set forth below is line graph comparing the total cumulative return on Authentidate common stock and

the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Computer Index Authentidate common stock is listed for trading

in the Nasdaq Capital Market under the trading symbol ADAT The comparisons in the graph below are based on

historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future performance of Authentidate common stock

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return
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Listed below js the value of $10000 investment at each of the fiscal year ends presented

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return at June 30

2006 2007 2008 2009 2O10 2011

ADAT $10000 5811 1547 $4528 2377 $4528
Nasdaq CompositeIndex $10000 $11985 $10557 $8448 9711 $12769

Nasdaq Computer Index $10000 $12558 $11707 $9691 $11591 $15200

Assumes $10000 was invested at June 30 2006 in Authentidate and each Index presented

The comparison indices were chosen in good faith by management Most of our peers are divisions of large

multi-national companies therefore comparison is not meaningful Through the first three quarters of

fiscal2007 we were involvedin three distinctbusinesses document imaging software security software and

computer systems integration for which there is no peer comparison Subsequently wedivested our

document imaging and systems integration segments As the Nasdaq Computer Index is comprised

primarily of software internet and similar companies management believes that the relevance of the

selected indices is not compromised by virtue of this divestiture

.1
..

36



ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data are derived from our consolidated financial statements which have

been audited The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements

including the related notes Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and the other financial information included elsewhere in this Report

Year Ended June 30

in thousands except per share amounts 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Statement of Operations Data

Continuing operations

Revenues 2795 2419 2790 2298 1663

Operating expenses 946 11 296 12 153 18 125 18 906

Loss 786 9047 813 14 423 15 299

Net loss 12 555 9005 367 15 811 15 063

Basic and diluted net loss per common share 29 25 27 046 044

Other Financial Data

Continuing operations

Net cashused by operating activities 6465 8109 8144 $14745 $14156
Net cashprovidedused by investing activities ... 1680 156 689 1425 2267
Net cash provided used by financing activities 3509 52 53 53
Net increase decrease in cash cash equivalents and

marketablesecurities
.... 1069 4756

Net cash providedused by discontinued operations 14260 296
8885

131

16723 13575

90 2202

Balance Sheet Data

Current assets 229 080

Current liabilities 290 526

Working capital 4939 554

Marketable securities

Total assets 10 835 20 544

Total long term liabilities 140 140

Redeemable preferred stock 931

Shareholders equity 4474 14 878

Excludes purchases and sales of marketable securities

Certain marketable securities were reclassed to long-term assets in FY 2008

8977 $13338

2590 320
6387 10118

3950

22270 31551

140 140

19540 28191

34094

5379

28715

48704

140

43185
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Authentidate Holding Corp Authentidate or the company is provider of secure web based software

applications and telehealth products and services that enable healthcare organizations to coordinate care for

patients and enhance related administrative and clinical workflows Authentidate and its subsidiaries provide

products and services that address variety of business needs for our customers including enabling healthcare

organizations to increase revenues improve productivity enhance patient care and reduce costs by eliminating

paper and manual work steps from clinical administrative and other processes and enhancing compliance with

regulatory requirements Our web-based services are delivered as Software as Service SaaS to our customers

interfacing seanilessly with billing and document management systems These solutions mcorporate multiple

features and security technologies such as rules based electronic forms intelligent routing transaction

management electronic signatures identity credentiahng content authentication automated audit trails and

remote patient monitoring capabilities Both web and fax based communications are integrated into automated

secure and trusted workflow solutions

Our ExpressMDTM Solutions joint venture with EncounterCare Solutions Inc provider of technology and

sØrvies to the home healthcare marketplace provides in-home patient vital signs monitoring systems and

services to improve care for patients with chronic illnesses and reduce thea cost of care by delivering results to

their healthcare providers via the Internet ExpressMD Solutions combines EncounterCares Electronic House

CallTM patient vital signs monitoring appliances with web-based management and monitoring software mddule

based on Authentidate Inscrybe Healthcne platform The joint venture also offers the ExpressMD Interactive

Voice Response IVR patient vital signs monitoring solution that provides an alternative for patients who

require flexible mobile solution for care plan reminders and vital signs monitoring Using any touch-tone

phone patients can answer their session questions and enter their vital signs test results verbally or by entering

their answers on their phone keypad Both solutions enable unattended measurements of patients vital signs and

related health information and are designed to aid wellness and preventative care and deliver better care to

specific patient segments who require regular monitoring of medical conditions Healthcare providers can easily

view each specific patient vital statistics and make adjustments to the patient care pians securely via the

Internet ExpressMD Solutions easy to use patient monitoring solutions are intended to provide patients with

increased peace of mind and improved condition outcomes through combination of care plan schedule

reminders and comprehensive disease management education The service provides intelligent routing to alert

on-duty caregivers whenever patients vital signs are outside of the practitioners pre-set ranges Heaithcare

providers and health insurers are also expected to benefit by having additional tools to improve patient care and

reduce overall in-person and emergency room patient visits

Authentidate currently operates its business in the United States with technology and service offerings that

address emerging growth opportunities based on the regulatory and legal requirements specific to each market

The business is engaged in the development and sale of web-based services largely based on our Inscrybe

platform and related capabilities and telehealth services through our ExpressMDTM Solutions joint venture In

recent years we have focused our efforts on developing and introducing solutions for use in the healthcare

information technology industry We believe there are several factors that will be favorable for the healtbcare

information technology industry in the near future despite lingering weakness in the global economy Because

healthcare information technology solutions play an important role in healthcare by improving safety efficiency

and reducing cost they are often viewed as more strategic than other capital purchases Most United States

healthcare providers also recognize that they must invest in healthcare information technology to meet

regulatory compliance and government reimbursement requirements and incentive opportunities In addition

with government agencies as well as politicians and policymakers appear to agree that the growing cost of our

healthcare system is unsustainable Leaders of both political parties recognize that the intelligent use of

information systems will improve health outcomes and correspondingly drive down costs The broad

recognition that healthcare information technology is essential to help control healthcare costs and improve
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quality contributed to the inclusion of healthcare information technology incentives in the American Recovery

and Reinvestment Act ARRA The ARRA and accompanying Health Information Technology for Economic

and Clinical Health HITECH provisions include more than $35 billion in incentives for healthcare

organizations to modernize operations through meaningful use of healthcare information technology We
believe that these incentives are contributing to increased demand for healthcare information technology

solutions and services in the United States

Another element in the United States marketplace is the recently passed healthcare reform legislation We
believe the legislation which promises to drive insurance coverage to an estimated 32 million additional

consumers could have many second order effects on our clients For example healthcare providers may face

increased volumes that could create capacity constraints and they may find it challenging to profitably provide

care at the planned reimbursement rates under the expanded coverage models We also expect additional

compliance and reporting challenges for our clients in the areas of pay-for-quality coding requirements and

waste fraud and abuse measures We believe the above factors create strong incentives for providers to

maximize efficiency and create the need for additional investments in heaithcare information technology

solutions and services Thus while the current economic environment has impacted our business we believe the

fundamental value proposition of healthcare information technology remains strong and that the healthcare

information technology industry will likely benefit as healthcare providers and governments continue to

recognize that these solutions and services contribute to safer more efficient healthcare

For number of years we have experienced net losses and negative cash flow from operating activities Our

principal activities during this period have focused on developing new products and services hiring management

refining our business strategies and repositioning our businesses for growth Although we believe we are well

positioned for such growth we expect to continue to generate net losses and negative cash flow for the

foreseeable future as we seek to expand our potential markets and generate increased revenueS See Liquidity

and Capital Resources In July 2010 we closed on the sale of certain non-core assets from which we received

net proceedsof approximately $2.35 million and in October 2010 we completed private placement of our

securities with certain institutional and accredited investorsfrom which we receivednet proceeds of

approximately $4.46 million The private placement was conducted pursuant tO Section 42 of the Securities Act

of 1993 as amended and Rule 506 of Regulation promulgated thereunder On April 2011 we completed

the sale of all of the shares of capital stock of our wholly-owned subsidiary Authentidate International AG

Authentidate International to Exceet Group AG aSwiss corporation the Purchaser Underthe terms of

the Share Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement dated as of March 2011 we sold and transferred

all of the capital stock of Authentidate International to Purchaser for purchase price of $1.43 million In

addition the Purchaser also agreed to acquire certain of our claims regarding our interest in Authentidate

International in consideration of the payment of 70000 $97300 and to assume the net.liabilities of

Authentidate International Following our sale of Authentidate International we no longer operate
in Germany

As described in greater detail in the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements the results of operations

cash flows and related assets and liabilities of our German subsidiary have been presented as discontinued

operations and assets and liabilities of discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements for all

periods presented As discussed below in October 2011 we completed registered direct offering with certain

institutional and/or accredited investors from which we expect to receive net proceeds of approximately $3.64

million

During fiscal 2011 we have continued to take steps to refine our core service offerings significantly expand

our addressable markets manage operating costs and position the company for long-term growth We are focused

on refining and marketing Inscrybe Healthcare an automated and trusted health information exchange and

workflow management service targeting the needs of enterprises in the healthcare market and our ExpressMDTM

telehealth products and services As discussed above we believe our business will benefit as the federal

government healthcare reforms approved in March 2010 are implemented and as trends in the U.S healthcare

industry to significantly reduce costs shorten the length of hospital .stays reduce hospital readmissions shift

patient care towards wellness and preventative care programs and automate healthcare records and processes take
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hold Although we have taken steps to focus our business in these areas our progress will be impacted by the

timing of customer contracts and implementations and the market acceptance of our products and services

During this period we have also advanced the development of our ExpressMDTM telehealth service offerings
and continued to refine the capabilities of our patient vital signs monitoring appliance Since receiving 510k
clearance from the FDA for the monitoring appliance in April 2009 we have been implementing our

manufacturing and sales plans for ExpressMDTM and have started to deploy units and services with customers
During fiscal 2011 we introduced the ExpressMD IVR service and on April 11 201 Authentdiate announced
that it had received contract from the U.S Department of Veterans Affairs the VA pursuant to which the

company was selected as supplier to the VA for its Telehealth Program for home telehealth sOlutions The
award is for national contract and under this agreement the company will market its telehealth solutions to VA
facilities throughout the country The agreement consists of one year base periodthat commenced May 15
2011 and four optionyearswhich are at the VAs sole discretion During the contract period the company will

be committed to provide subject to purchase orders from VA facilities teiehealth devices and certain associated
software solutions During the initial base period of the agreement the contract has an estimated maximum
potential value of approximately $38.2 million depending on the number of units actually purchased by VA
facilities There is no minimum purchase requirement under the contract The agreement has an estimated
maximum potential value of

approximately $122.0 million assuming all contract extensions are exercised by the
VA and the maximum quantity df units are purchased by VA facilities There can be no assurance that the VA
will exercise any of the option periods under the agreement nor can the company provide any assurances as to the

actual amount of products and solutions if any that may ultimatelybe purchasedby VA facilities the

agreement

The cotupany had offered its proprietary content authentication technology in the form of the USPS
Electronic Postmark USPS EPM However the companys contract with the United States Postal Service
USPS for the use of the USPS EPMbrand was allowed to expire as of DecembØr3 2010 in accordance
with its terrns The USPS andthe company continue to work towards effecting smooth transition from the

USPS EPM brand In March 2011 thecompany began to market its content authentication services as
AuthentiproofrM The conipanywili continue to provide customers with uninterrupted content authentication and
time and date stamping services under the Authentidate brand as it transitions from theUSPS brand

Our current revenues consist principally of transactionfees for web-based hosted software services From
our telehealth business we generate revenues from hardware sales monthly monitoring services and maintenance
fees Growth in our business is affected by number of factors including general economic and business

conditions and is characterized by long sales cycles The timing of customer contracts implementations and

ramp-up to full utilization can have significant impact on results and we believe our results over alonger period
of time provide bettor visibility into our performance

We intend to continue our effortsto market our web-based services and related products in our target
markets We also intend to focus on identifying additional applications and markets where ourtechnoiogy can
address customer needs

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our

consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission The preparation of our
consolidated financial statements and related notes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

requires us to make estimates which include judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets liabilities revenue and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities We have
based our estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances Weevaluate our estimates on regular basis andmake changes accordingly Actualresults
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may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions To the extent that there are material

differences between these estimates and actual results our financial condition or results of operations will be

affected

critical accounting estimate is based on judgments and assumptions about matters that are uncertain at the

time the estimate is made Different estimates that reasonably could have been used or changes in accounting

estimates could materially impact our financial statements We believe that the policies described below

represent our critical accounting policies as they have the greatest potential impact on our consolidated financial

statements However you should also review our Summary of Significant Accounting Policies beginning on

page F-7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and equipment software development costs patent costs trademarks

and licenses are reviewed for impairment using an undiscounted cash flow approach wheuiever events or changes

in circumstancçs such as significant changes in the business climate changes in product offerings or other

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not berecoverable

Software Development Costs

Software development and modification costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological feasibility

are capitalized and amortized based on anticipated revenue for the related product with an annual minimum equal

to the straight line amortization over the remaining economic life of the related products generally three years

Amortization expense is included in depreciation and amortization expense

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is derived from transaction fees for web-based hosted software and related services and post

contract customer support services Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

delivery has occurred the selling price is fixed and collectibihty is reasonably assured Multiple element

arrangements are assessed to determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of accounting

multiple element arrangement is separated into more than one unit of accounting if all of the following criteria

are met the delivered item has value to the customer on standalone basis there is objective and reliable

evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items in the arrangement if the arrangement includes general right

of return relative to the delivered items and delivery or performance of the undelivered item is considered

probable and substantially in our control If these criteria are not met then revenue is deferred until such criteria

are met or until the penod over which the last undelivered element is delivered which is typically the life of the

contract agreement If these criteria are met we allocate total revenue among the elements based on the sales

price of each element when sold separately which is referred to as vendor specific objective evidence or VSOE

Revenue from web-based hosted software and related services and post contract customer support services

is recognized when the related service is provided and when required accepted by the customer Revenue from

multiple element arrangements that cannot be allocated to identifiable items is recognized ratably over the

contract term which is generally one year

Management Estimates

Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenue and expenses Examples include estimates of loss

contingencies and product life bycles assumptions such as elements comprising software arrangement

including the distinction between upgrades/enhancements and new products when technological feasibility is

achieved for our products the potential outcome of future tax consequences and determining when investment
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or other impairments exist We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the

inability of our customers to make required payments We make estimates on the future recoverability of

capitalized amounts we record valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when we believe it is more

likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized and we make assumptions in connection with the

calculations of share-based compensation expense Actual results and outcomes may differ from managements
estimates judgments and assumptions We have based our estimates on historical experience and on various

assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and we evaluate our estimates on

regular basis and make changes accordingly Historically our estimates relative to our critical accounting
estimates have not differed materially from actual results however actual results may differ from these estimates

under different conditions If actual results differ from these estimates and other considerations used in

estimating amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements the resulting changes could have material

adverse effect on our consolidated statement of operations and in certain situations could have material

adverse effect on liquidity and our financial condition

Share-Based Compensation

We apply the accounting guidance regarding stock compensations to account for employee and director

stock compensation Share-based employee compensation expense is determined using the Black-SchOles option

pricing model which values options based on the stock price at the grant date the exercise price of the option the

expected life of the option the estimated volatility expected dividend payments and the risk-free interest rate

over the expected life of the options

The company computed the estimated fair values of all share-based compensation using the Black Scholes

option pricing model and the assumptions set forth in the following table The company based its estimate of the

life of these options on historical
averages over the past five

years and estimates of expected future behavior The

expected volatility was based on the companys historical stock volatility The assumptions used in the

companys Black-Scholes calculations for fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Weighted

Average
Risk Free Dividend Volatility Option Life

Interest Rate Yield Factor Months

Fiscal year 2011 8% 0% 107% 48

Fiscalyear2Olo 25% 0% 103% 48
Fiscal year 2009 3.2% 0% 66% 48

The Black Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions Because the

company employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and
because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate in

management opinion the
existing models may not provide reliable single measure of the fair value of share

based compensation for employee stock options Management will continue to assess the assumptions and

methodologies used to calculate estimated fair value of share-based compensation as circumstances change and

additional data becomes available over time which may result in changes to these assumptions and

methodologies Such changes could materially impact the companys fair value determination

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents

marketable securities and trade accounts receivable To reduce credit risk we place our cash cash equivalents
and investments with several high credit quality financial institutions and typically invest in AA or better rated

investments We monitor our credit customers and we establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon
factors

surrounding the credit risk of specific customers historical trends and other information
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The following analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year 2010

Revenues were $2 795 000 for the year ended June 30 2011 compared to $2419 000 for the prior year

period These results reflect an increase of approximately 16% in revenues from increases in transaction volumes

and new customer projects

Cost of revenues decreased to $1896000 for the year ended June 30 2011 compared to $2016000 for the

same period in the prior year This decrease is due primarily to lower hosting and license fees offset in part by

higher maintenance and telecom expenses

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses decreased to $6024000 for the year
ended June 30

2011 compared to $7055000 for the prior year period The decrease is due primarily to our cost management

activities for the period

Product development expenses were $829000 for the yearended June 30 2011 compared to $1016000 for

the prior year period Product development expenses fluctuate period to period based on the amounts capitalized

Total spending for the year including capitalized amounts was $829000 compared to $1096000 for the prior

year reflecting our cost management activities

Depreciation and amortization expense was $1197000 forthe yar ended June 30 2011 compared to

$1209000 for the prior year period This change is due primarily to an decrease in amortization of capitalized

software

Interest and other income was $365000 for the
year

ended June 30 2011 compared to $363000 for the

prior year period due primarily to the sale of non-core assets discussed below The year
ended June 30 2011

reflects gain on the sale of certain non-core assets of approximately $351000 offset in part by lower interest

and rental income for the year as result of such sale For the year ended June 30 2010 other expense included

non-cash expense of $533000 to amortize deferred financing costs related to standby financing commitment

discussed more fully in Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which resulted in net expense

for the period

The loss on the sale and related operations of our German subsidiary discussed in the Overview section

above was approximately $5769000 or $0.13 per share for the
year

ended June 30 2011 The company

initially recorded goodwill impairment charge during the quarter ended December 31 2010 based primarily on

lowered expectations for growth in future revenues and cash flows certain unsolicited market information

regarding the business and uncertainty regarding the recovery in the market for comparable assets The company

reclassified this amount to discontinued operations for the year ended June 30 2011

Net loss from continuing and discontinued operations for the year
ended June 30 2011 was $12555000 or

$0 29 per share compared to $9 005 000 or $0 25 per share for the prior year period The net loss for the year

reflects higher revenues and lower expenses from our cost management activities the gain on thesale of certain

non core assets and the loss on the sale and operations of our German subsidiary discussed above Operating

results for discontinued operations were not significant for the year ended June 30 2011

Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year 2009

Revenues were $2419000 for theyear ended June 30 2010 compared to $2790000 for theprior year

period These results reflect decrease in revenues due to the Medco acquisition of Liberty Medical and

43



the related expiration of our contract with Liberty at the end of March 2009 which offset growth from new

customers and other increases in transaction volumes

Cost of revenues increased to $2016000 for the year ended June 30 2010 compared to $1872000 for the

same period in the prior year This increase is due primarily to higher license maintenance and data center

expenses

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses 4ecresed to $7055000 for the year ended June 30

2010 compared to $8 132 000 for the pnor year The decrease reflects otjr cost management activities for the

period and lower share based compensation expense The prior year period includes state payroll tax credit of

approximately $326000 offset by the write off of deferred deal expenses of approximately $907000 related to

the termination of our deal with Parascript

Product development expenses were $1 016 000 for the year
ended June 30 2010 compared to $677 000 for

the prior year Product development expense fluctuates period to period based on the amounts capitalized Total

spending forthe year including capitalized amounts was $1096000 compared to $1192000 for the prior year

reflecting our cost management activities

Depreciation and amortization expense was $1209000 for the year ended June 30 2010 compared to

$1472000 for the prior year period This decrease is due primarily to the decrease in spending on capitalized

software and fixed assets

Other income expense includes interest and other income for theperiods and the amortization of non-cash

deferred financing costs for the year ended June 30 2010 Interest and other income decreased to $363000 for

the year ended June 30 2010 compared to $550000 for the prior year The decrease in interest and other income

is due primarily to lower interest rates and lowercÆsh and investment balances during the current period As

discussed more fully in Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements during the quarter ended

December 31 2009 we recorded non-cash expense of $533000 to amortize the deferred financing costs related

to the Standby COmmitmentwe entered into in September 2009 which expired in connection with our capital

raiseinDeceniber2OC9

Net loss from continuing and discontintied operations for the year ended June 30 2010 was $9005000 or

$0.25 per share compared to $9367000 or $0.27 per share for the prior year The decrease in net loss reflects

the revenue fluctuations cost management activities and other matters discussed above

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our operations and product development activities have required substantial capital investment to date Our

primary sources of funds have been the issuance of
equity

and the incurrence of third party debt In February

2004 we sold 360 370 common shares in private placements pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act of

1933 and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder and received net proceeds of approximately $69100000 after

payment of offering expenses and broker commissions The proceeds received.from this financing have been

used to provide funding for our operations and product development activities In addition we completed

$3 400 000 registered direct offenng of shares of common stock and warrants in December 2009 and received

net proceeds of approximately $3 500 000 from this financing and the related warrant exercises As described in

greater detail in Notes 17 and 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form

10-K in July 2010 we completed the sale of certain non-core assets and received net proceeds of approximately

$2350000 in October 2010 the company completed the sale of $5000000 of its securities to institutional and

accredited investors in private placement transaction under Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1993 as

amended and Rule 506 of Regulation promulgated thereunder and received net proceeds of approximately

$4460000 from this transactitn and in April 2011 the company completed the sale of all of the shares of capital

44



stock of its wholly-owned subsidiary Authentidate Itemational AG Authentidate International to Exceet

Group AG Swiss corporation and received net proceeds of approximately $1 300 As described in greater

detail in Note 25 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on

October 2011 the company entered into agreements pursuant to which it will issue 5874998 shares of our

common stock and 2937497 warrants to purchase shares of our common stock to institutional and/or accredited

investors in registered direct offering from which we expect to receive net proceeds of approximately

$3638000 We are using the proceeds from these transactions for working capital and general corporate

purposes including supporting the rollout of our ExpressMDTM telehealth products and services

For the
year

ended June 30 2011 expenditures for data center equipment and other assets totaled

approximately $611000 and expenditures for software licenses totaled approximately $60000 We have

developed and intend to continue to develop new applications to grow our business and address new markets

During the quarter ended September 30 2009 we filed with the SEC registration statement on Form S-3

and pre-effective amendment to such registration statement under the Securities Act The shelf registration

was declared effective by the SEC on September 30 2009 and allows us to sell from time to time in one or

more public offerings shares of our common stock shares of our preferred stock debt securities or warrants

to purchase common stock preferred stock or debt securities or any combination of such securities for

proceeds in the aggregate amount of up to $40 million Following our registered direct offering in October

2011 there is approximately $29 million availableunder this registrationstatement for future transactions

subject to SEC limitations The terms of any .suh future offerings if any and the type of equity or debt

securities would be established at the time oftheoffering This disclosure shall not constitute an offer to sell

or solicitation of an offer to buy the securities nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any

jurisdiction in which an offer solicitation or sale would be unlawful priorto registration or qualification under

the securities laws of such jurisdiction Any offer of the securities will be solely by means of the prospectus

included in the registration statement and one or more prospectus supplements that will be issued at the time

of the offering

Cash Flows

At June 30 2011 cash cash equivalents and marketable securities amounted to approximately $2424000

and total assets at that date were $10835000 Since June 30 2010 cash cash equivalents and marketable

securities increased approximately $1069000 from the sale of non-core assets and the issuance of company

securities offset by cash used principally to fund operating losses product development activities joint venture

investments changes in working capital and capital expenditures during the year ended June 30 2011 Cash used

for the period includes investments in joint venture inventory and operations of approximately $600000 and

$699000 respectively and the prepayment of certain insurance premiums and maintenance contracts We expect

to continue to use cash to fund operating losses product development activities joint venture investments and

capital expenditures for the foreseeable future

Net cash used by operating activities for the year ended June 30 2011 was approximately $6465000

compared to $8109000 for the prior year period This change reflects our cost management activities offset in

part by the joint venture investments and prepayments discussed above

Net cash provided by investing activities excluding purchases and sales of marketable securities was

$1680000 for the
year

ended June 30 2011 compared to use of $156000 for the prior year period This

change is due primarily to net proceeds from the sale of non-core assets discussed above

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended June 30 2011 was approximately $4557000

compared to $3509000 for the prior year period These amounts are due primarily to the private placement

transaction in October 2010 and the registered direct offering in December 2009 discussed above
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Cash flows from discontinued operations were not significant for the periods Net proceeds from the sale of

these operations and related items amounted to approximately $1300000 and are included in investing activities

for discontinued operations

To date we have been largely dependent on our ability to sell additional shares of our common stock or

other securities to obtain.financing to fund our operating deficits product development activities capital

expenditures and joint venture activities Under our current operating plan to grow our business our ability to

improve operating cash flow has been highly dependent on the market acceptance of our offerings As mentioned

in the Overview Section we believe that the company will benefit from the federal government healthcare

reforms and industry trends focused on automation and cost reduction Based on our business plan we expect our

existing resources including the net proceeds generated from our recent offering revenues generated from

operations and proceeds received from the exercise of outstanding warrants of which there can be no assurance

to satisfy our working capital requirements for at least the next twelve months however these resources may not

be sufficient if we are required to redeem our outstanding shares of Series and Series preferred stock within

the next 12 months and we may attempt to renegotiate the terms ofsuch securities No assurances can be given

however that we will be able to attain sales levels and support our costs through revenues derived from

operations generate sufficient cashflow to satisfy our other obligations orsuccessfully modify the terms of our

preferred securities In addition there can be no assurance that the company will be successful in raising

additional capital or securing financing when needed or on terms satisfactory to the company If we are

unsuccessful in raising additional capital we will need to reduce costs and operations substantially If we raise

additional funds by selling shares of common stock or convertible securities the ownership of our existing

shareholders will be diluted Further if additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity or debt

securities such additional securities may have powers designations preferences or rights senior to our.currently

outstanding secunties Any inability to obtain required financing on sufficiently favorable terms could have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

Our future capital requirements may vary materially from those now planned The amount of capital that we

will need in the future will depend on many factors including

our relationships with suppliers and customers

the market acceptance of our software and services

the levels of promotion and advertising that will be required to launch our new offerings and achieve

and maintain competitive position in the marketplace

pnce discounts on our products and services to our customers

our pursuit of strategic transactions

our business product capital expenditure and research and development plans and product and

technology roadmaps

the level of accounts receivable and inventories if any that we maintain

capital improvements to new and existing facilities

technological advances and

our competitors response to our offerings

Financing Activities

Except as discussed above we have not engaged in any external financing activities in fiscal 2011 and 2010

Other Matters

The events and contingencies described below have impacted or may impact our liquidity and capital

resources
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Presently 28000 shares of our Series preferred stock originally issued in private financing in October

1999 remain outstanding As of October 2004 our rigbtto redeem these shares of Series preferred stock is

vested Accordingly we have the right to repurchase such shares at redemption price equal to $25.00 per share

plus accrued and unpaid dividends The holder however has the right to convert these shares of preferred stock

into an aggregate of 500000 shares of our common stockat conversion rate of $1.40 In the event we elect to

redeem these securities the holder will be able to exercise its conversionright subsequent to the date that we

issue notice of redemption but prior to the deemed redemption date as would be set forth in such notice As of

June 30 2011 no shares of the Series preferred stock have been redeemed

In connection with our private placement of securities in October 2010 we entered into Securities

Purchase Agreement with selected institutional and accredited investors to sell and issue $5.0 million of units of

our securities In the aggregate we agreed to sell 1250000 units of securities at price of $4.00 per unit with

the units consisting of total of 7500000 shares of common stock 1250000 shares of Series 15%

Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock the Series Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase an additional

6250000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share We received net proceeds at the

closing of approximately $4.46 million after the deduction of offering expenses In connection with this

transaction we filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware Certificate of Designations Preferences and

Rights and Number of Shares of Series 15% convertible redeemable preferred stock or the Series

Designation The Series Designation provides for the mandatory redemption of all outstanding shares of Series

preferred stock upon their stated maturity date which is April 12 2012 the 18 month anniversary of the

original issue date unless prior to such date our shareholders approve the conversion of the shares of Series

preferred stock into shares of ow common stock If we are required to redeem the shares of Series preferred

stock we will be required to pay to the holders of the shares Of Series preferred stock total redemption price

equal to 102.5% of the stated value of the Series shares plus dividends which would be $2500000 In

addition if at the maturity date of the Series preferred stock any shares of our Series preferred stock remain

outstanding we will be required to redeem all such outstanding shares of Series Bpreferred stock immediately

prior to the redemption of the Series preferred stock There are currently 28000 shares of Series preferred

stock outstanding and the total redemption payment for theSeries preferred stock is equal to $700000 plus any

accrued but unpaid dividends thereon as of such redemption date Accordingly the redemption of these

securities may have an adverse effect on our cash position To date our stockholders have not approved the

conversion of the Series Preferred Stock and the company will continue to seek such shareholder approval in

accordance with the terms of the agreements entered into with the holders of the Series Preferred Stock until

such approval is obtained or the occurrence of the maturity date

Between June and August 2005 several purported shareholder class and derivative actions were filed

against our company and certain current and former directors and former officers The complaints and current

status of these actions are described in detail under the caption Legal Proceedings appearing in Item of

Part ofthis Annual Report on Form l0-K December 23 2010 the company and certain of its current and

former directors and former officers entered into settlement of the consolidated class actions with lead

plaintiff As set forth more fully in the Stipulation of Settlement upon final approval by the District Court

among other things the class will consist of all
persons

who purchased the companys shares between

July 16 2004 and May 27 2005 ii all claims of all class members whether class individual direct or

derivatively arising out of or related to the plaintiffs allegations will be dismissed with prejudice and

released and iii payment of $1.9 million will be made for the benefit of the settlement class which will be

funded by the companys insurance carrier On February 2011 the District Court entered an order that

preliminarily approved the Stipulation of Settlement preliminarily certified settlement class of all persons

who purchased the companys common stock between July 16 2004 and May 27 2005 inclusive and

scheduled hearing for July 20 2011 to determine whether to grant final approval of the settlement At this

hearing the District Court granted final approval of the settlement and certification of the class and the

settlement was effective as of August 23 2011
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Commitments

Office Lease Commitments

We entered into the dease agreement for our executive offices on July 11 2005 The lease was for term of

ten years and four months with commencement date of October 2005 and covers approximately 19700 total

rentable square feet The annual rent in the first year was $324000 increasing to $512000 in year and increasing

at regular intervals until year 10 when the annual rent will be approximately $56 1000 Effective February 2010

we amended our lease to reduce the annual rent to approximately $512000 for the remaining lease tenn and

extended the lease term for one year through January 2017 The lease also provides us with one-time option to

renew the lease for term of five years at the then-current market rate As part of the lease agreement we posted

letter of credit securing our leasepaymentswhich was reduced to approximately $256000

Contractual Commitments

summary of the contractual commitments associated with our lease obligations asof June 30 2011 is as

follows in thousands

Less than More than

Total year years years years

Total operating leases $2 859 $512 $1 536 $811

On February 2011 we entered into agreements with each of our chief executive officer andchief financial

officer in order to continue the compensation modification program implemented in February 2010 Pursuant to

these agreementsboth officers agreed to continue the rednction in their base salary to 85% of their original base

salaryuntil uôh time the company achieves cashflow breakeven as measured through the fiscal quarter

ending September 30 2012 Putsuant to these continuationagreements the term cash flow breakeven was

modifiedfrom the definition adopted when we originally implement this program and is now defined to mCan

that the company has achieved positive cash flow from operations for two consecutive fiscal quarters ending no

later than the end of the fiscal quarter ending September 30 2012determined by reference to the revenues and

other amounts received by the company from ita operations The term cash flow from operations however

shall not include amounts received from the utle lease or disposition of fixed or capital assets except for

amounts received in the ordinary course of business or ii any subsidiary company capital expenditures

interest income and expense and other non-operating items as determined in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles in the United States as consistently applied during the periods involved In

consideration forthese agreements we granted these officers options to purchase such number of shares of

common stock as isequal to 15% of theirbaSo salary Accordingly we granted our chief executive officer 43500

options and granted tour chief financial Officer 39000 options The options were granted under the companys

2010 Employee Stock Option Plan are exercisable for period of 10 years at per share exercise price of $0.44

and shall only vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that the company achieves cash flow

breakeven as defined above or in the event of termination of employment either without cause or for good

reason as such terms were defined in the employment agreements we previously entered with each such officer

Further in connection with the continuation of the above-referenced compensation modification program

all other employees of the company were granted options to purchase shares of common stock under the

companys 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan in consideration for the continued salary reduction Under this

program the company reduced the salaries of non-executive employees earning $110000 per annum or less by

10% and reduced the salaries of its other non-executive employees by 15% and in consideration for such

modification awarded these employees options to purchase such number of shares of common stock as is equal

to the foregone salary as measured over one-year period Accordingly we granted our non-executive

employees total of 397050 options Under this program employees base salary will revert to its prior level

upon the company achievement of cash flow breakeven as defined above or if otherwise specified by the

board of directors to be earlier The options awarded to non-executive employees will vest on the date that the
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company achieves cash flow breakeven as defined above and shall have the same exercise price and expiration

date as the options granted to our executives In addition in connection with the foregoing we also amended the

vesting for the options granted in February 2010 to our employees including executive officers when we first

implemented the compensation modification program The amendment provides that the measurement period to

determine whether thevesting criteria of achieving cash flowfrom operations has been satisfied shall expire at

the end of the fiscal quarter ending September 30 2012

With respect to our joint venture in accordance with the terms of the LLC Agreement we made an initial

capital contribution of $50000 upon the establishment of ExpressMD Solutions and were required to contribute

up to $400000 in additional capital in the event the joint venture satisfies certain operating targets However to

facilitate the development of the business of the joint venture we have already advanced funds in excess of the

foregoing amount To date the companys total advanpes to the joint venture are approximately $1732000

Although we expect to recover these advances as the joint venture generates revenues there can be no assurance

that such amountswill be recovered In a4ition we may decide to advance additional amounts to further joint

venture activities Additionally the company has also acquired inventory with carrying value of approximately

$4569000 at June 30 2011 which relates to the joint venture See Note of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements Investment in Joint Venture for additional information regarding this matter

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not created and are not party to any special-purpose or off-balance sheet entities for the ptirpose

of raising capital incurring debt or operating parts of our business that are not consolidated into our financial

statements We do not have any arrangements or relationships with entities that are nOt consolidated into our

financial statements that are reasonably likely to materially affect our liquidity or the availability of o.ir capital

resources We have entered into various agreements by which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party

with respect to certam matters Generally these indemnification
provisions are included in contracts arising in

the normal course of business under which we customarily agree to hold the jndemnified party harmless against

losses arising from breach of representations relaed to such matters as intellectual property rights Payments by

us under such indemnification clauses are generally conditioned on the other party making claim Such claims

are generally subject to challenge by us and to dispute resolution procedures specified in the particular contract

Further our obligations under these .anangernent may be limited in terms of time and/or amount and in some

instances we may have recourse against third parties forcertainpayments made by us It is not possible to

predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under these indemnification agreements due to the

conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts of each particular agreement Historically we have not

made any payments under these agreements that have been material individually or in the aggregate As of

June 30 2011 we were not aware of any obligations under such indemnification agreements that would require

material payments

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The impact of general inflation on our operations has not been sigtiificant to date and we believe inflation

will continue to have an insignificant impact on us

Present Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In May 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement

Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S

GAAP and IFRSs which provides converged guidance of the FASB and the IASB for common requirements for

fair value measurements and for disclosing information about fair value measurements including consistent

meaning of the term fair value The amendments in this ASU are to be applied prospectively and for public

entities are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early application by

public entities is not permitted We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated

financial statements
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In June2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2011-05 Comprehensive Income

Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive income which provides an entity the option to present the total of

comprehensive income the components oF net income and the components of other comprehensive income

either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separatebut consecutive statements

In both choices an entity is required to present each component of net income along with total net income each

component of other comprehensive income along with total for other comprehensive income and total

amount for comprehensive income ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other

comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity but does not change the items

that must be report in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be

reclassified to net income.Forpublic entities the amendimnts are effectivefor fiscal years and interim
within those years beginning after December ITS 2011 Early adoption is permitted We are currently evaluating

the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have approximately $980000 invested in short-term investments as of Jnne 30 2011 We are nOt

exposed to significant financial market risks from chairges inforóign currency exchange rates and are only

minimally impacted by changes in interest rates However in the future we may enter into transactions

denominated in non-U.S currencies or increase the level of our borrowings which could increase our exposure.

to these market risks We have not used and currently do not contemplate using any derivative financial

instruments

Interest Rate Risk

At any time fluŁtuatiOns in interest rates could affect interest ernings on our cash and marketable

securities We believethatthe effectif any of reasonably possible near term changesiæintrest rates on our

financial position results of operatiOns and cash flows would not be material CUrrently we do not hedge these

interest rate exposures The primary objective of otir investment activities is to preserve capital We have not

used derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio

At June 30 2011 our unrestricted cash and marketable securities totaled approximately $2424000 of

which approximately $980000 was invested in money market investments The remainder of our cash was in

non-interest bearing checking accounts used to pay operating expenses For mOre information on our investments

see NOte of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Financial Statements are annexed hereto at Part IV Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We have had no disagreements with our accountants on any accounting or financial disclosures

ITEM 9AT CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procelures

Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15e or 15d-15e under the Exchange Act as of the end of the

period covered by this report have concluded that based on the evaluation of these controls and procedures our

disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level to ensure that information

required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed
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summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms and that such

informatiOn is accumulated and communicated to our management including our chief executive officer and

chief financial officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Our management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer do not expect that our

disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud control system

no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the

objectives of the control system are met Further the design of control system must reflect the fact that there

are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Becaªse of the

inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all

control issues and instances of fraud if any within our company have been detected Our management however

believes our disclosure controls and procedures are in fact effective to provide reasonable assurance that the

objectives of the control system are met

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management under the supervision of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer is

responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Our internal control over

financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles The companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and

iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition

use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer conducted an evaluation of

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2011 In making this evaluation

management used the framework in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on our evaluation under the framework

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework our management has concluded that our internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of June 30 2011

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting

firm regarding our internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not sUbject to attestation

by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that

permit us to provide only managements report in this annual report

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our system of ihternai control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a 15f

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during our fiscal
year ended June30 2011 that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

The information set for the under the caption Sales of Unregistered Secunties in Item of Part II of this

Annual Report on Form 10
regarding issuances of equity secunties is incorporated herein by reference
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRETORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Management

Our executive officers and directors are as follows

Name Age Office

Connell Benjamin 62 Chief Executive Officer President and Director

Edward Shendan 76 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Todd Borus 38 Director

David Luce 50 Director

John Waters 66 Director

William Marshall 59 Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Pnncipal Accounting Officer

Our by laws provide that the number of persons on the board of directors shall be between three and fifteen

persons as determined by the board of directors Our board of directors currently consists of five members All

directors hold office until the next annual meetiig of shareholders or until their successors are elected and

qualify Officers are elected annually by and serve at the discretiOn of the board of directors There are no

familial relationships between or among any of our officers or directors

On February 2011 i-larry Silver annotified us of his decision not to stand fOr reelectionto our board

Mr Ranjit Singh who has served as director of our company since January 2005 decided not to stand for

reelection to the board on March 10 2011 Following our annual meetingof stockholders held on May 2011
the resignations of Messrs Silverman and Singh became effective

Biographical Information

The pnncipal occupations and bnef summary of the background of each director and executive officer is as

follows

Drectors and Executive Officers

Connell Ben Benjamin was elected to our board of directors on May 2011 and was appointed Chief

Executive Officer as of such date Mr Benjamin was appointed as the President of Authentidate Holding Corp

on November 26 2007 Pnor to that he led our technology team from January 2005 when he joined the

company as Senior Vice President Products and Technology and has been the chief architect of many of our

technology initiatives Mr Benjamin started his career in 1973 with ATT Bell Labs where he led number of

initiatives in research product development and manufacturing processes He was the Vice President of RD for

all ATT Consumer Products until his transition to Lucent Technologies in 1996 as part of Lucent spin-off

from ATT At Lucent as Vice President in the wireless husihess unit he served in various roles leading

product development and customer technical support activities Mr Benjamin subsequently joined Lucent Digital

Radio as Senior Vice President of Product Management in September 1999 Following Lucent Digital Radios

merger into Ibiquity Digital Corporation in August 2000 he continued to serve as the Co-Chief Operating Officer

until August 2003 Prior to joining us Mr Benjamin was actively involved as an advisor and equity investor in

software and web-services startups Mr Benjamin received aJ3SEE and an MSEE from the Polytechnic Institute

of Brooklyn He is also graduate of The Executive Program from the Darden Graduate School of Business

Edward Sheridan joined our board of directors in June 1992 and was appointed as Chairman of the

Board on March 2009 From 1985 to the present Mr Sheridan served as the President of Sheridan

Management Corp From 1975 to 1985 Mr Sheridan served as the Vice President of Finance and Chief

Financial Officer of AMF From 1973 to 1975 he was Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Fairchild
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Industries From 1970 to 1973 he was the Vice President Corporate Finance of F.S Smithers From 1967 to

1970 Mr Sheridan was the Director of Acquisitions of Westinghouse Electric From 1964 to 1967 he was

employed by Corporate E4uities Inc veitture capital firm Mr Shidan holds an M.B.A from Harvard

University and .A from Dartmouth College

Todd Borus M.D was elected to our board of directors on May 2011 Dr Borus is board certified

orthopedic surgeon in Vancouver WA and Portland OR Since August 2006 Dr Borus has been partner with

Northwest Surgical Specialists private orthopedic surgery group based in Vancouver WA Dr Bores is

affiliated with the Southwest Washington Medical Center and Legacy Salmon Creek Hospital and since January

2010 Dr Bores has held the position of Section Chief Department of Orthopedic Surgery at Legacy Salmon

Creek Hospital Dr Borus graduated with degree in econonms from Williams College and attended medical

school at the Mount Sinai school of medicine in New York City His orthopedic surgery training was completed

at the University of Michigan From August 2005 to July 2006 Dr Borus completed fellowship training in

adult reconstruction and joint replacement surgery at the Brigham and Womens Hospital Harvard University in

Boston MA In addition since January 2009 Dr Borus has served on the Physician Advisory Council of the

Southwest Washington Medical Center and currently serves as consultant to Mako Surgical Corp medical

device company Dr Borus is the brother of Justin Bores the manager of the general partner of Lazarus

Investment Partners LLLP which is the beneficial owner of approximately 13 7% of our common stock

David Luce joined our board of directors in February 2003 From 1990 to August 2009 Mr Luce was

Senior Vice President of Fixed Income Sales with Barclays PLC formerly Lehman Brothers Prior to joining

Lehman Brothers Mr Luce served as Vice President Fixed Income Sales at Kidder Peabody Mr Luce also

currently acts as private investment banker raising venture and mezzanine capital Mr Luce serves on the board

of directors of Issimo Food Group Inc Mr Luce graduated from Duke University in 1983 with B.A in

Economics

John Waters joined our board of directors in July 2004 and served as our Executive Vice President

Chief Administrative Officer from July 2O04throCgh January 2006 From October 2006 through April 2008

Mr Waters served as the Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and director of Avantair From December 2005 to

September 2006 Mr Waters served as consultant to Avantair From 1967 to August 2001 Mr Waters held

various positions at Arthur Andersen LLP including Partner in ChargeEntertainment Industry Program
Partner in ChargeManufacturing Industry Program and Partner in Charge AuditTransaction Advisory

Industry Program Upon his retirement from Arthur Andersen LLP in August 2001 he formed John Waters

Consulting
LLC an entity that provided merger and acquisition services to several pnvate equity organizations

primarily located in New York City Mr Waters has served on the board of directors of iGambit Inc since

November 2009 and is the Chairman of the Compensation Committee of its board Mr Waters received

bachelor degree in Business Administration from lona College and is Certified Public Accountant

William Marshalljoined Authentidate Holding Corp as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in

February 2006 Mr Marshall brings more than 25 years of experience as Chief Financial Officer audit partner

and senior management advisor to Authentidate Most recently he served as Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer for NEON Communications Inc former publicly traded provider of optical networking solutions

from 2001 to January 2005 when the company was acquired As part of planned reorganization in June 2002

NEON filed petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code from which itwas discharged in

December 2002 From September 1999 to September2001 he was Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for

Vitts Networks Inc provider of high-speed Internet communications In connection with the telecom industry

downturn Vitts Networks filed Chapter 11 petition in December 2000 and was liquidated during 2001 From

1995 to September 1999 he served as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for Viisage Technology Inc

software technology company where he led the companysinitiai public offering in 1996k From 1987 to 1994

Mr Marshall was Partner at KPMG LLP where he provided audit accounting financial and SEC reporting

54



business advisory public offering and merger and acquisition services for variety of growing middle market

companies Prior to 1987 Mr Marshall held various positions in audit and business advisory services at KPMG
LLP Mr Marshall has B.S in Accounting from Elizabethtown College in Pennsylvania and is Certified

Public Accountant

Qualifications of Directors

The following table summarizes the specific experience qualifications attributes or skills of our directors

that led our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to conclude that such person should serve as

director of Authentidate

Relevant Experience and Qualifications

Significant leadership and business experience and technological expertise Has served

as our chief executive officer since May 2011 as our President since November 2007

and as our Chief Technology Officer from January 2005 until becoming our President

Served in number of executive capacities with technology and communications

companies including ATT Consumer Products Lucent Technologies and Ibiquity

Digital Corporation

Edward Sheridan ... Significant leadership business and financial experience including previously serving

as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of AMF and Fairchild Industries Breadth

of knowledge about Authentidates business given service on our board since 1992and

current service as Chair an

Significant knowledge of the healthcare industry and pOssessing heaithcare leadership

and management experience through his medical practice particularly his role as

Section Chief Department of Orthopedic Surgery at Legacy Salmon Creek Hospital

and service on the Physician Advisory Council of the Southwest Washington Medical

Center Experience in advising medical device company based on his consultancy

with Mako Surgical Corp

David Luce Significant business and financial experience including serving as Senior Vice

President with Barclays Capital formerly Lehman Brothers and background in private

investment banking Breadth of knowledge about Authentidate business as result of

service on our board since 2003

John Waters Significant business accounting and financial experience including previously serving

as Chief Financial Officer of Avantair Inc and various executive positions at Arthur

Andersen LLP Breadth of knowledge about Authentidate business as result of

service onour board since 2004 and as former executive officer of our company

Meetings of the Board of Directors Independence

During the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 our board of directors met on fifteen occasions and acted on

unanimous written consent on two occasions No member of the board of directors attended less than 75% of the

aggregate number of the total number of meetings of the board of directors or ii the total number of meetings

held by all committees of the board of directors during the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 Our independent

directors meet in executive sessions periodically during the course of the year

Our board of directors currently consists of five individuals three of whom are currently independent

directors as defined in the Marketplace Rules of TheNASDAQ Stock Market Our independent directors are

Edward Sheridan Todd Borus M.D and John Waters Our board determined on August 2009 in

connection with its approval of an award of 500000 options to Mr Luce that Mr Luce would no longer satisfy

the independence criteria of The NASDAQ Stock Market following such grant as such grant was in consideration

for services rendered in connection with our ExpressMDrM Solutions joint venture

Nominees

OConnell Benjamin

Todd Borus M.D
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Committees of the Board of Directors

The board of directors presently has four committees

Audit Committee

Management Resources and Compensation Committee

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Executive Committee

Audit Committee The members of the Audit Committee are presently Edward Shridaii Todd Borus

and John Waters Mr Sheridan currently serves as Chairman of this committee From the beginning of our

2011 fiscal year and until the effectiveness of his resignation from the board on May 2011 Harry Silverman

served as the Chairman of our Audit Committee Each of the individuals that served on the Audit Committee

dunng our fiscal year ended June 30 2011 is an independent member of our board of directors In addition the

board of directors has determined that the members of the Audit Committee meet the additional independence

cntena required for audit committee membership set forth in 1ule 10 promulgated by the SEC under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The Audit Committee acts to acquire acoinpiete understanding of our audit functions ii review with

management the finances financial condition and our interim financial statements iiireview with our

independent auditors the year-end financial statements and iv review implementation with the independent

auditors and management any action recommended by the independent auditors Our board of directors adopted

Restated and Amended Charter governing the activities of the Audit Committee which is available on our

corporate website at www.authentidate.com under the following tabs about uscorporate governanceBoard

CommitteesAudit During the fiscal year
ended June 30 2011 the Audit Committee met on five occasions

Audit Committee Financial Expert Our board of directors has determined that Audit Committee member

John Waters is our audit committee financial expert as defined under applicable SEC regulations and is an

independent member of our board

Management Resources and Compensation Committee The members of the Management Resources and

Compensation Committee are currently John Waters Edward Sheridan and Todd Borus each of whom is

an independent member of our board of directors Mr Waters presently serves as the chairman of this committee

From the beginning of our 2011 fiscal year and until the effectiveness of their resignation from the board on

May 52011 Harry Silverman and Ranjit Singh served as members of this cOmmittee and Mr Singh served

as its Chairman The functions of this committee include adminiStration of our stock option programs and the

negotiation and review of all employment agreements of our executive officers During the fiscal year
ended

June 30 2011 this committee held two meetings The Management Resources and Compensation Committee has

authority to select engage compensate and terminate independent compensation consultants legal counsel and

such other advisors as it deems necessary and advisable to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities and

functions The Management Resources and Cornpensaiion Committee is governed by written charter approved

by our board of directors which is available on our corporate website at www.authentidate.com under the

following tabs about uscorporate gôvernance--Board CommitteesManagement Resouices and

Compensation

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee The members of this committee are John Waters

Edward Sheridan and Todd Borus each of whcim is an independent member of our board of directors

Mr Waters currently serves as the Chairman of this committee Our board of directors has adopted charter

governing the activities of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee which may be viewed online

on our web site at www.authentidate.com under the following tabs aboutuscorporate governanceBoard

CommitteesNominating and Corporate Governance Pursuant to its charter this committees tasks include

reviewing and recommending to the board issues relating to the boards composition and structure establishing

56



criteria for membership and evaluating corporate policies relating to the recruitment of board members

implementing and monitoring policies regarding principles
of corporate governance in order to ensure the

boards compliance with its fiduciary duties to the company and its stockholders and making recommendations

regarding proposals submitted by stockholders During the fiscal year ended June 30 2010this committee held

one meeting

Executive Committee We established our Executive Conmittee on December 72005 The members of this

committee are David Luce Edward Sheridan and OConnell Benjamin Mr Luce currently serves as

Chairman of this committee The primary purpose
of the Executive Committee is to exercise the authority of the

board when the board is not in session subject to certain limitations For example the Executive Conmiittee has

no power or authority to make alter or repeal any by-law or any resolution or resolutions of the directors

designating an Executive Committee ii elect appoint or remove any executive officer or director iiiapprove

any transaction in whichany member of the Executive Committee may have direct or indirect interest

iv approve the borrowing of any money greater than $500000 per transaction in the aggregate vapprove any

agreement to acquire the entirety or majority of any business or major assets of any other person or entity

vi change our principal business vi designate or authorize the issuance of any shares of preferred stock

vii undertake private placement or financing transaction involving debt or equity securities in excess of

$500000 or viii vary by more than 10% any budget previously approved by the board During the fiscal year

ended June 30 2011 the Executive Committee did not meet

Corporate Governance

We maintain corporate governance page on our corporate
website which includes important information

about our corporate governance practices including our Corporate Governance Principles our Code of Ethics

and Business Conduct and charters for the committees of the board of directors The corporate governance page

can be found at www.authentidate.com by clicking on about us corporate governance

Board Leadership Structure

Pursuant to our corporate governance policies in the event the board elects to appoint the chief executive

officer as the Chairman of the Board the board shall also appoint an independent member of the board to serve

as Lead Director who shall be responsible for coordinating the activities of the other independent directors and

to perform various other duties Our Chairman Edward Sheridan is an independent director

Boards Role in Oversight of Risk

The board of directors does not have separate risk oversight body but rather manages risk directly The

board of directors mitigates risks through discussing with management the appropriate level of risk for the

company and evaluating the risk information received from management These risks include financial

technological competitive and operational risks Further the Audit Committee receives updates from senior

management and assesses risk in satisfaction of their risk management role in accordance with the Audit

Committee charter Our Audit Committee charter provides that the Audit Committee is responsible for

monitoring material financial and operating risks of the company On quarterly basis management reports to

the Audit Committee regarditig our various risk areas In addition each of the other committees of the board of

directors considers risks within its area of responsibility

Procedures for Determining Executive and Director Compensation

The Management Resources and Compensation Committee was formed to among other things assist our

board of directors in the discharge of its responsibilities with respect to compensation of our executive officers

and non-employee directors In accordance with its charter the compensation committee has authority to

determine the amount form and terms of compensation of our chief executive officer and other officers and to
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take such action and to direct us to take such action as it deems necessary or advisable to compensate our chief

executive officer and other offlcers in manner consistent with its determinations and shall deliberate and vote

on all such actions outside the presence of our chief executive officer and other officers The committee is

responsible for reviewing at least annually the performance of our chief executive officer and other officers

including in light of any goals and objectives established for such performance and in light of such review

determining each officers compensation In accordance with its charter the committee also has authority to

establish our general compensation policies and practices and to administer plans and arrangements established

pursuant to such policies and practices In addition the committee has authority to administer our equity

compensation programs including without limitation to recommend the adoption of such plans to recommend
the reservation of shares of our common stock for issuance thereunder to amend and interpret such plans and the

awards and agreements issued pursuant thereto and to make awards to eligible persons under the plans and

determine the terms of such awards including any such awards to our chief executive officer and other officers

With respect to non-employee director compensation the committee reviews such compensation practices and

policies and makes recommendations to our board of directors as to the amount form and terms of non-employee
director compensation

The Management Resources and Compensation Committee did not retain outside consultants during the

2010 or 2011 fiscal years to assist it in implementing these policies or making specific decisions relating to

executive compensation However the committee does from time to time review general information
regarding

the compensation practices of other companies including some that may compete with Authentidate for the

services of its executives and employees and that information is factor used by the committee in its decisions

and in its
general oversight of compensation practices However the committee does not use that information to

generate specific compensation amounts or targets Instead in each compensation decision the committee

exercises its business judgment regarding the appropriateness of types and amounts of compensation in light of

the value to the company of specific individuals

With respect to fiscal 2011 compensation for our executives the Management Resources and Compensation
Committee took into account recommendations made by the Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer

of Authentidate with respect to determinations of the types and amounts of compensation to be paid to the other

executive officers and also discussed with the Chairman of the Beard and the chief executive officer the
types

and amounts such individuals believed would be appropriate to pay each of them in light of the amounts being
recommended for the other executives Authentidates senior management generally applies similarphilosophy
and similarpolicies to determine the compensation of officers and managers who are not executive officers and

reports to the Management Resources and Compensation Committee regarding these matters

Within the context of the overall objectives of our compensation program we determined the specifiŁ

amounts of compensation to be paid to each of our executives during fiscal 2011 based on number of factors

including our understanding of the amount of compensation generally paid by similarly situated companies to

their executives withsimilar roles and responsibilities our executives performance during the fiscal year in

general and as measured against predetermined company and individual performance goals the roles and

responsibilities of our executives the individual experience and skills of and expected contributions from our

executives the amounts of compensation being paid to our other executiyes our executives historical

compensation and performance at our company and any contractual commitments we have made to our

executives regarding compensation Such information is reflected in the Summary Compensation Table under

Executive Compensation below

As discussed in greater detail below under the caption Non-Employee Director Compensation In

connection with its consideration of new equity plan for our non-employee directors the Management
Resources and Compensation Committee in June 2011 engaged Frederic Cook Co Inc nationally

recognized compensation consulting firm to provide advice
regarding the companys non-employee director

compensation policies and practices and present the conmiittee with its assessment and recommendations

Following F.W Cooks assessment and taking its recommendations into account the committee made
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recommendation to our board of directors regarding new equity incentive plan as well as modifications to the

companys current director compensation policy In July 2011 our board of directors adopted the policy

recommended by the committee With respect to executive officer compensation the Management Resources

and Compensation Committee did not engage F.W Cook in 2011 Although F.W Cook had previously provided

such services to our company in 2007 it has not provided any services to us since then apart from those

described above

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors and executive

officers and persons who own directly or indirectly more than 10% of registered class of our equity securities

to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes

in ownership of common stock and other equity securities we issue Officers directors and greater than 10%

shareholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16a forms that they file

Based solely on review of the copies of such reports
received by us webelieve that all Section 16a filing

requirements applicable to our officers directors and 10% shareholders were complied with during the 2011

fiscal year

Code of Ethics

On July 31 2003 our board of directors approved the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for our

company Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct covers all our employees and Directors including our

President and Chief Financial Officer During the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 we did not waive any

provisions of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct Our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct was filed as

Exhibit 14 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2003 We have also posted our

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct on our Web site at http//www.authentidate.com and may be fornd as

follows

From our main Web page first click on About Us

Then click on Corporate Governance

Next under Corporate Governance click on Code of Ethics

We will post any amendments to or waivers from our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct at that location
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ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Executive Compensation

The following table sets fOrth certain information concerning all cash and non-cash compensation awarded

to earned by or paid to our President our Chief Financial Officer and certain of our other executive officers the
Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 and 2010

Summary of Executive Compensation

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Non-Equity Deferred

Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Fiscal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year

OConneilBenjamin 2011 $246500$ $137915 $384415

ChiedExectitive Officer and 2010 $238125 31270 $269395
President

WilliamA Marshall 2011 $221000 12447 $233447
Chief Financial Officer and 2010 $243750 28035 --- $271785
Treasurer

JanC Wendenburg 2011 $214257 $60300 $20773 $295330
Chief Executive Officer 2010 $290 698 $26 807 $317 505

AuthentidateTntemational

A.G

Mr Benjamin was appointed to office of President effective November 26 2007 and was appointed chief executive officer on May
2011

On May 2009 we entered into new employment agreement with Mr Benjamin The agreement was effective January 2009 for an

initial term expiring December 31 2009 Mr Benjamins base salary was $290000 per annum from January 1200910 March 31 2009

and effective as of April 2009 through December 31 2009 Mr Benjamins base
salary was reduced to $222500 However

Mr Benjamins base
salary under the agreement would have been retroactively increased to the rate of $357500 in the event either

the company achieved breakeven operations as defined in the employment agreement prior to the end of the 2009 calendar year or

ii change of control as defined in the employment agreement occurred prior to December 31 2009 Such events did not transpire

Our Named Executive Officers may receive performance-based bonus of up to 50% of their base salary if certain performance targets

are met pursuant to their respective employment agreements with us Other than as described in Note below as of date hereof no

bonus amounts for fiscal 2011 have been determined or awarded No bonus amounts were paid for fiscal 2010

Reflects the grant date fair value of the options granted during the period that are expected to vest Estimated value of stock options

represents the expense as calculated in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718 CompensationStock

Compensation discussion of the methods used to calculate these values may be found in Note to our Consolidated Financial

Statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011

Annual salary bonus and other compensation amounts are paid in Euros Amounts reported are based on Euros converted to US dollars

at an average exchange rate of 0.735 and 0.7224 dollars for the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

Other compensation for Mr Wendenburg includes automobile and related expenses

On February 18 2010 compensation modification program was implemented Pursuant to this program Mr Benjamin and Mr Marshall

accepted reduction in their current base salary to 85% of their base salary until such time as the company achieves cash flow breakeven

as deferred This was continued through the 2011 fiscal year

Effective as of April 2011 upon the closing of the Companys disposition of its Authentidate International A.G subsidiary

Mr Wendenburg is no longer named executive officer of the Company
In connection with our disposition of Authentidate International AG we agreed to make bonus payment to Mr Wendenburg equal to

5% of the net sale price received by us in consideration of his efforts in connection with the transaction

Discussion of Summary Compensation Table

summary of certain material terms of our compensation plans and arrangements is set forth below Each

of the primary elements of our executive compensation is discussed in detail below In the descriptions below

we highlight particular compensation objectives that we have designed our executive compensation program to

address However it should be noted that we have designed the various elements of our compensation program to

60



complement eachother and thereby collectively serve all of our executive compensation objeCtives Accordingly

whether or not specifically mentioned below we believe that each element of our executive compensation

program to greater or lesser extent serves each of our compensation objectives

Base Salaty

The base salaries payable tO our named executive officers reflect the initial base salaries that we negotiated

with them at the time of their initial employment or promotion and our subsequent adjustments to these amounts

to reflect market increases the growth and stage of development of our company our executives performance

and increased experience any changes in our executives roles and responsibilities and other factors

Employment agreements
which we have entered into with each of Messrs Benjamin Marshall and Wendenbutg

are summarized below

As described in greater detail below under the caption Executive mpensationEmployment

Agreements with Named Executive Officers on February 18 2010 we entered into agreements with each of

OConnell Benjamin our chief executive officer and president and William Marshall our chief financial

officer to implement compensation modification program approved by the Management Resources and

Compensation Committee of the board ofdirectors Pursuant to these agreements both our chief executive

officer and chief financial.officer agreed to accept reduction in their base salary to 85% of their current base

salary until such time as we achieve Cash FlowBreakeven as defined in such agreements In consideration for

their agreement to accept reduction in their base salary we granted such officers options to purchase such

number of shares of common stock as is equal to 15% of their base salary Accordingly we granted our chief

executive officer 43500 options and granted our chief financial officer 399000options The options were granted

under the our 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan are exercisable for period of ten 10 years at per
share

exercise price.of $1.01 and shall only vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that we

achieve cash flow breakeven or in the event of.a terminatiOn of employment either witi out cause or for

good reason .as such terms are defined in .th.e employment agreements pre4iously entered into between .us and

our chief executiveofficer and chief financial officer On February 2011 we entered into agreements with our

chief executive officer and chief financial officer to continue the foregoing compensation modification program

Pursuant to such agreements we also granted these officers new options under our 2010 Employee Stock Option

Plan upon comparable terms as in 2010 The options granted to Messrs Benjamin and Marshall on February

201 lare exercisable at $0.44 per share In addition in connection with the foregoing we also.amended the

vesting for the options granted in February 2010 to our employees including executive officers The amendment

provides that the measurement period to determine whether the vesting criteria of achieving Cash Flow

Breakeven has been satisfied shall expire at the end of the fiscal quarter ending September 30 2012

During the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 the base salary of Mr Benjamin was $246500 reflecting the

impact of the salary modification agreements discussed above During fiscal 2011 the base salary .of

Mr Marshall was $221000 also reflecting the salary modification agreements discussedabove During fiscal

2011 the base salary of Mr Wendenburg was 210000 reflecting no change from the rate we compensated him

during fiscal 2010

Equity Compensation

Stock option awards provide our executive officers with the right to purChase shares of our common stock at

fixed exercise price typically for period of up to ten years subject to continued employment with our

company Stock options are earned on the basis of continued service to us and generally vest over three years

beginning with one-third vesting one year after the date of grant with the balance then vesting in equal monthly

installments over the following two year period Such vesting is intended as an incentive to such executive

officers to remain with us and to provide long-term incentive However we have also .sought to base vesting of

options on overall corporate performance For example as discussed above the options grantedto our named

executive officers in connection with the compensation modification agreements they entered into with us in
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February 2010 and February 2011 will vest either on the date determined that we achieve Cash Flow Breakeven

or in the event of termination of employment either without cause or for good reason as such terms are

defined in their employment agreements with us

Optins are generally exercisable for limited period of time after termination of employment other

than termination for cause if vested subject to certain rights that were negotiated in connection with the

employment agreements we entered into with our named executive officers We do not require that any portion

of the shares acquired be held until retirement we do not have policy prohibiting director or executive officer

from hedgingthe economic risks of his or her stock ownership and we do not have any minimum stOck

ownership requirements for executive officers and directors Stock options have been granted pursuant to our

2000 Employees Stock Option Plan the 2000 Plan and our 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan the 2010

Plan which served as our primary equity incentive plan for our employees and other eligible participants until

the adoption of the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan in August 2011 See Payments Upon Termination or

Change-in-Control for discussion of the change-in-control provisions related to stock options. The exercise

price of each stock option granted under our equity compensation plans is based on the fair market value of our

common stock on the grant date and the Management Resources and Compensation Committee may set the

exercise price of the options granted to our named executive officers at price equal to or greater than the fair

market value in order to reinforce the incentive nature of the award Options granted in fiscal 2011 have an

exercise price equal to the market price on the grant date which was considered appropriate by the Management

Resources and Compensation Committee based on the market price of our common stock

During our 2011 fiscal .year option awards were granted to our named executive officers in connection.with

the compensation modification agreements described in greater detail above We granted such officers options to

purchase suchnumber of shares of common stock as is equal to 15% of their base salary Accordingly we

granted our chief executive officer 43500 options and granted our chief financial officer 39000 options These

optionswere granted under our2010 Employee Stock Option Plan are exercisable for period of 10 years at

per
share exercise priceof $0.44 and shall only vest andbecome exercisable upon either the date determined that

the company achieves Cash Flow Breakeven as defined above or in the event of termination of employment

either.without cause or for good reason as such terms were defined in the employment agreements we

previously entered with each such officer In connection with these awards we also amended the vesting for the

options granted in February 2010 to our employees including executive officers The amendment provides that

the measurement period to detrmine whether the vesting criteria ofÆchieving cash flow from operations has

been satisfied shall expire atthe .end of the fiscal quarter ending September 30 2012

Further.with respect to Mr Benjamin onApril 14 2011 we granted him an option to purchase 150000

shares of our common stock in April 2011 following the companys receipt of contract award from the U.S

Department of Veterans Affairs These latter options are exercisable for ten years at per share exercise price of

$1.14 Of this amount 50000 options vested on the grant date and the remaining options vest in two equal

annual installments on the first two anniversaries of the grant date

Employment Agreements with Named Executive Officers

The following are summaries of the employment agreements with our named executive officers The

agreements provide the general framework and some of the specific terms for the compensation of the named

executive officers See Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control below for discussion of payments

due to our named executive officers upon the termination of his employment or change-in-control of our

company

As described above on February 18 2010 we entered into agreements with each of our chief executive

officer and our chief financial officer in order to implement compensation modification program approved by
the Management Resources and Compensation Committee of the board of directors On February 2011 we
entered into agreements with each of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer in order to continue
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the compensation modification program implemented in February 2010 Pursuant to these agreements both our

chief executive officer and our chief financial officer agreed to accept reductioti in their base salary to 85% of

their current base salary until such time as we achieve Cash Flow Breakeven After giving effect to the February

2011 agreements the term Cash Flow Breakevºn means that the company has achieved positive cash flow

from operations for two consecutive fiscal quarters ending no later than the efid of the fiscal quarter ending

September 30 2012 determined by reference to the revenues and other amounts received by the company from

its operations The term cash flow from operations does not include amounts received from the sale lease

or disposition of fixed or capital assets except for amounts received in the ordinary course of business or

ii any subsidiary company capital expenditures interest income and expense and other

non operating items as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United

States as consistently applied during the periods involved In consideration for these agreements in February

2010 and February 2011 we granted these officers options to purchase such number of shares of common stock

as is equal to 15% of their base salaryas described above

oConnell Benjamin

On September 2011 we entered into new employment agreement with OConnell Benjamin our Chief

Executive Officer and President The following is summary description of the terms of the 2011 employment

agreement the 2011 Employment Agreement

The 2011 Employment Agreement is effective as of September 2011 and expires June 30 2012

unless sooner terminated as provided therein Under the employment agreement Mr Benjamins base

salary is $290000 per annum however Mr Benjamin agreed to accept 15% of his base salary in the

form of employee stock options in accordance with the terms of that certain Compensation Modification

Agreement entered into with the. company as of February 2011 The employment agreement provides

that base salary shall automatically increase by $50000 per annum in the event that the company

achieves cash flow breakeven as defined in the employment agreementduring our fiscal year ending

June 30 2012

Mr Benjamin shall receive one-time bonus of$150000 if our common stock has closing price at or

above $2.40 for 30 consecutive trading days during our fiscal year ending June 30 2012 In addition he

shall be eligible for an additional bonus in the discretion of the Management Resources and

Compensation Committee of not less than 50% of base salary in the event that the cotnpany during the

fiscal year ending June 30 2012 achieves cash flow breakeven and ii the company or its

subsidiary executes firm sales contracts resulting in the sale during the fiscal
year ending June 30

2012 of at least 7500 units of the companys telehealth product offerings

Under the agreement Mr Benjamin was granted options to purchase 300 000 shares of our common

stock at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of execution of

the employment agreement Thisoption grant is subject to the following vesting provisions 100000

of such options are subject to time-based vesting with 33.3% of the options vesting on the first

anniversary of the grant date and the balance of such amount vesting.in equal monthly installments

thereafter over the subsequent 24 months ii 100000 of such options shall vest in the event the

company or jts subsidiary executes firm sales contracts during the fiscal year ending June 30 2012 for

at least 7500 units of its telehealth product offerings and iii 100000 of such options shall vest in the

event the company achieves cash flow breakeven during the 2012 fiscal year The options are

exercisable for term of ten years

In the event of the termination of employment by the company without cause or by Mr Benjamin for

good reason as those terms are defined in the employment agreement or in the event Mr Benjamins

employment is terminated due to his disability he would be entitled to severance payment of

12 months of base salary continued participation in the companys health and welfare plans until the

later of the expiration date of the agreement or the end of the month of the one-year anniversary of the

termination of his employment and all compensation accrued but not paid as of the termination date
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In addition in the event the company decides not to renew the agreement or if the company and

Mr Benjamin are unable to reach agreement on the terms of new agreement prior to the expiration

date the he will be entitled to the severance payment and other benefits described above in addition in

the event of Change in Control of the company as defined in the employment agreement

Mr Benjamin would have the right to terminate his employment for any reason within limited period

of time following the change of control and such termination would be deemed for good reason

In the event of the termination of Mr Benjamin employment by the company without cause or by

Mr Benjamin for good reason orif upon the expiration of the employment agreement his

employment is not renewed the conditions to the vesting of the options granted to the Executive under

the 2011 Employment Agreement shall be deemed void and all such awards shall be immediately and

fully vested and exercisable

The 2011 Employment Agreement contains confidentiality obligations that survive termination and

non-solicitation and non-competition obligations that end on the first anniversary of the date of

cessation of Mr Benjamins employment

William Marshall

Mr Marshall our chief financial officer and treasurer entered into an at will employment agreement with us

effective as of February 15 2006 The following is summary of Mr Marshalls employment agreement

Annual base salary of $260 000

Annual bonus targeted at 50% of base salary in the discretion of the board or if the board so designates

theManagement Resources and Compensation Committee of the board based on the annual

performance of the company except that the bonus for the fiscal year ending June 30 2006 shall be

guaranteed pro rata from the date his employment commenced Mr Marshall was also provided with

an allowance of $75000 for reimbursement of temporary living and relocation expenses and will be

covered by health and similarbenefits made available to the companys senior management

Grant of options to purchase 300000 shares of the our common stock at an exercise price of $4.50

which options vest as follows 100000 shares vest on the one-year anniversary of the date of grant and

the balance of 200000 options shall vest monthly as long as Mr Marshall continues to be an employee

of the company in equal amounts over the subsequent 24 months

Mr Marshall will be entitled to severance payment of 12 months in accordance with the terms of his

employnent agreement

With respect to the options granted to Mr Marshall in the event his employment is terminated by the

company without Łause or by him for good reason then all options granted to him shall become

immediatelyfully vested and the exercise period in which he may exercise such options shall be

extended to the duration of the original tm of the option In the event Mr Marshalls employment is

terminated by Authentidate for cause then all options granted and not exercised as of the termination

date shall terminate immediately and be null and void In the event that Mr Marshall terminates his

employment other than for good reason then the options to the extent vested as of the termination

date shall remain exercisable in accordance with their terms for period of three months following the

termination date but in no event after the expiration of the exercise penod

The employment agreement contains confidentiality obligations that survive indefinitely and

non-solicitation and non-competition obligations that end on the first anniversary of the date of

cessation of Mr Marshalls employment

Jan Wendenburg

On June 29 2007 Authentidate Holding Corp and its owned subsidiary Authentidate International AG
entered into new one year service agreement with Mr Jan Wendenburg the chief executive officer of

64



Authentidate International AG The service agreement was effective as of July 2007 and was renewed for

another one year term effective July 2010 with no changes Effective as of April 2011 upon the closing of

our disposition of its Authentidate International A.G subsidiary Mr Wendenburg is no longer named

executive officer of the company and the companys obligations under this agreement Were assumed by the

purchaser of the subsidiary The following is summary of the agreement we had with Mr Wendenburg

Annual base salary of 210000

Commencing with the fiscal year beginning July 2007 and for each fiscal
year during the term of the

service agreement the Supervisory Board of Authentidate International AG shall establish an Executive

Bonus Plan for the CEO which will provide for the payment of bonus of up to maximum of 50% of

the base salary The bonus shall be contingent on the achievement of certain financial metrics to be

established by the Supervisory Board In the event the financial metrics are not achieved the amount of

the bonus if any shall be determined by the Supervisory Board in its sole discretion

Mr Wendenburg shall be eligible to receive equity based compensation in the sole discretion of the

Management Resources and Compensation Committee of the board of directors of the company

For the duration of one year post-contractual restriction of competition Mr Wendenburg shall be

entitled to compensation amounting to 50% of his base salary in effect at the time of termination

provided however such non-competition compensation shall be credited towards the severance

payment payable to Mr Wendenburg following termination of his employment

Authentidate Holding Corp agreed to guarantee Authentidate Internationals obligations with respect to

the payment of Mr Wendenburgs base salary severance payment and disability payment

The employment agreement contains confidentiality obligations that survive indefinitely and

non-solicitation and non-competition obligations that end on the first anniversary of the date of

cessation of Mr Wendenburg employment In accordance with the requirements of German law in the

event of the extraordinary terminationof the service relationship for important reasons the party

terminating the relationship shall have the right to terminate the post-contractual non-competition

covenant in which event we will have no further obligation to pay the non competition compensation
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Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to outstanding equity awards at June 30 2011

with respect to the Named Executive Officers

Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

Options Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Equity Incentive Plan

Incentive Plan Awards
Awards Market or

Number of Number of Number of Payout Value of

Securities Securities Number of Market Value Unearned Unearned
Underlying Underlying Shares or of Shares or Shares Units or Shares Units or
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Units of Stock Units of Stock Other Rights Other Rights

Options Options Exercise Expiration That Have That Have Not That Have Not That Have Not
Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date Not Vested Vested Vested Vested

if

William Marshall .. 300000

50000

Jan Wendenburg 7. 150000

25000

500c0

Stock option grants reported in the table above were granted under and are subject to our 2000 and 2010 Plans The option expiration

date shown above is the normal expiration date and the last date that the options may be exercised For each Named Executive Officer

the unexercisable options shown above are also unvested Unvested shares are generally forfeited if the Named Executive Officers

employment terminates except to the extent otherwise provided in an employment agreement For information regarding the effect on

vesting of options on the death disability or termination of employment of Named Executive Officer or change in control of our

company see Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control below If Named Executive Officers employment is terminated by
us for cause options including the vested portion are generally forfeited The exercisable options shown above and any unexercisable

options shown above that subsequently become exercisable will generally expire earlier than the normal expiration date if the Named
Executive Officers employment terminates except as otherwise

specifically provided in the Named Executive Officers employment
agreement For description of the material terms of the Named Executive Officers employment agreements see Employment
Agreements With Named Executive Officers above

Effective January 17 2007 we amended all of the outstanding options held by our employees solely to modify the expiration date to be

ten years from the original grant date

On May 2009 OConnell Benjamin was granted 400000 options This option grant vests as follows 133333 shares will vest in the

event the company realizes at least $1800000 of quarterly revenues from sales of its Inscrybe software and services prior to the end of

the 2009 calendar year 133334 shares will vest on the company achieving breakeven operations by December 31 2009 and of the

remaining 133333 shares 33.3% shall vest on the date of grant and thereafter the balance will vest in equal installments of 33.3% on
each of the next two anniversaries of the grant date On December 31 2009 options to purchase 266667 shares were forfeited since the

vesting conditions were not met

The options granted on February 18 2010 were granted in conjunction with the implementation of compensation modification

program Pursuant to this program Mr Benjamin and Mr Marshall accepted reduction in their current base salary to 85% of their base

salary until such time as the company achieves cash flow breakeven The number of granted options is equal to 15% of their base
salary

and shall only vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that the company achieves cash flow breakeven or in the

event of termination of employment either without cause or for good reason

The options granted on February 2011 were granted in conjunction with the continuation of compensation modification program
Pursuant to this program Mr Benjamin and Mr Marshall continued the reduction in their current base salary to 85% of their base

salary

until such time as the company achieves cash flow breakeven The number of granted options is equal to 15% of their base salary and

shall only vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that the company achieves cash flow breakeven or in the event of

termination of employment either without cause or for good reason

Name

OConnell Benjamin 135000

50000

50000

100000

133333

43500

43500

50000 100000

6.28

4.50

1.36

1.25

0.39

1.01

0.44

1.14

4.50

1.36

1.01

0.44

4.54

4.50

1.36

01/03/15

08/23/15

08/08/17

12/05/17

05/06/19

92/18/20

02/04/21

q4/14/21

02/15/16

08/08/17

02/18/20

02/04/21

06/30/il

06/30/11

06/30/11

39000

39000
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Options are subject to time-based vesting requirements with 50000 options being exercisable on the date of grant and the balance of the

award vesting in two equal annual installments on each of the first two anniversaries of the date of grant

Mr Wendenburg employment with us ended as of April 2011 and each of the options he held as of such date expired on June 30

2011

Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

The discussion and tables below reflect the estimated benefits that would be paid or accrue to each of the

Named Executive Officers in the event of the following hypothetical scenarios

termination without cause or constructive good reason termination including upon the occurrence

of change lfl control of company

termination for cause

upon an executives disability or

in the event of the executive death

OConnell Benjamin

Death or Disability Pursuant to the terms of his 2011 Employment Agreement if Mr Benjamins

employment is terminated as result of his death Mr Benjamin or his estate as applicable would receive any

accrued but unpaid base salary bonus and expense reimbursement amounts through the dateof his death If

Mr Benjamins employment is terminated as result of disability under the 2011 Employment Agreement

Mr Benjamin or his estate as applicable would receive any accrued but unpaid base salary bonus and

expense reimbursement amounts through the date on which the disability oÆcurs severatice payment of

12 months of his base salary in effect on the termination date and continued participation in our benefit plans

or comparable plans for the longer of the natural expiration of the agreement or the end of the month of the

one-year anniversary of the termination of his employment Further in the event of termination due to his death

or disability under the 2011 Employment Agreement Mr Benjamins or his estates or legal representatives

right to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to any stock Option or stock option plan to the extent vested

as of the termination date shall remain exercisable in accordance with the terms of the euity compensation plan

under which such option was granted

Cause If Mr Benjamins employment is terminated for cause or he terminates his employment without

good reason he would be entitled to his base salary and expense reimbursement through the date of termination

and he shall have no further entitlement to any other compensation or benefits In the event of termination for

cause all stock options that have not been exercised as of the date of termination for causeshal1 be deemed to

have expired as of such date In the event of termination without good reason options vested as of the date of

termination may be exercised for limited period in accordance with the terms of the equity compensation plan

under which such option was granted

Without Cause or for Good Reason Under this 2011 Employment Agreement if Mr Benjamins

employment is terminated without cause by Mr Benjamin for good reason or either we fail to timely notify

him or our intent to renew his agreement or after providing such notice we fail to reach an agreement on

new employment agreement with him prior to the expiration date then we would be obligated to pay any

accrued but unpaid base salary bonus and expense reimbursement amounts through the date of termination

pay severance payment equal to 12 months of his base salary in effect on the termination date but in no

event less than $290000 provide for his continued participation in our benefit plans or comparable plans

for the longer of the natural expiration of the agreement or the end of the month of the one-year anniversary of

the termination of his employment Further under the 2011 Employment Agreement in the event of such .a

termination event certain of the options granted to Mr Benjamin prior to the date of the 2011 Employment

Agreement will be deemed vested and shall be exercisable for the duration of their original term In the event of

such termination the options granted under the 2011 Employment Agreement will be exercisable in accordance

with the terms of such agreement
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In addition in February 2010 we granted Mr Benjamin in consideration for his agreement to accept

reduction in his base salary options to purchase 43 500 shares of common stock The options were granted Under

the 2000 Plan are exercisable for period of ten 10 years at per share exercise price of $1.01 and shall only

vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that the company achieves Cash Flow Breakeven or

in the event of tennination of employment either without cause or for good reason as such terms are

defined in his employment agreement In February 2011 we granted Mr Benjamin an additional 43000 options

under the 2010 Plan exercisable at $0.44 per share in continuation of the salary reduction program

Change of Control In the event of change of control under the 2011 Employment Agreement

Mr Benjamin shall have the ngbt to terminate his employment with us for any reason within limited penod of

time of such change of control and such termination shall be deemed for good reason In such an event we would

be required to pay Mr Benjamin the amounts described above

Employee Covenants In the 2011 Employment Agreement Mr Benjamin agreed to keep confidential and

not disclose any confidential or proprietary information owned by or received by or on behalf of us or any of

our affiliates during the term of the agreement or at any time thereafter He also agreed to return such

confidential and proprietary information to us immediately in the event of any termination of employment

Mr Benjamin also agreed during hisemploymentwith the company and for period of one year thereafter to

not in any manner enter into or engage in any business that is engaged in any business directly competitive with

our business anywhere in the world with limited exceptions Moreover Mr Benjamin agreed during his

employment with the company and for period of 12 months thereafter to not directly or indirectly without our

prior written consent solicit or induce any employee of us or any of our affiliates to leave such employ or

ii solicit the business of any customer with respect to products or services that compete directly with the

products or services provided or supplied by us

William Marshall

Death or Disability Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement if Mr Marshall employment is

terminated as result of his death Mr Marshall or his estate as applicable would receiv any accrued but

unpaid base salary bonus and expense reimbursement -amounts through the date of his death If Mr Marshalls

employment is terminated as result of disability Mr Marshall or his estate as applicable would receive any

accrued but unpaid base salary bonus and expense reimbursement amounts through the date on which the

disability occurs severance payment equal to 12 months of his base salary in effect on the termination date

and continued participation in our benefit plans or comparable plans for the longer of the natural expiration

of the agreement or the end of the month of the one-year anniversary of the termination of his employment

Further in the event of termination due to his death or disability Mr Marshalls or his estates or legal

representatives right to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to any stock option or stock option plan to

the extent vested as of the termination date shall remain exercisable for period of twelve months following such

date but in no event after the expiration of the exercise period

Cause If Mr Marshalls employment is terminated for cause or he terminates his employment without good

reason he would be entitled to his base salary other accrued compensation and expense reimbursement through

the date of termination and he shall have no further entitlement to any other compensation or benefits All stock

options that have not been exercised as of thedate of termination for-cause shall be deemed to have expired as of

such date otherwise options vested as of the date of termination may be exercised for period of three months

thereafter

Without Cause or for Good Reason If Mr Marshalls employment is terminated without cause or by

Mr Marshall for good reason we would be obligated-to pay any accrued but unpaid base salary bonus and

expense reimbursement amounts through the date of termination we would be obligated to pay severance

payment of 12 months of his base salary in effect on the termination date and provide for his continued

participation in our benefit plans or comparable plans for the longer of the natural expiration of the agreement
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or the end of the month of the one-year anniversary of the tenniiiation of his employment Further in the event of

such termination event his right to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to any stock option shall

immediately fully vest andbecome exercisable and the exercise period in which he may exercise his options

shall be extended to the duration of their original term

In addition in February 2010 we granted Mr Marshall in consideration for his agreement to accept

reduction in his base salary options to purchase 39000 shares of common stock The options were granted under

the 2000 Plan are exercisable for period of ten 10 years
at per share exercise price of $1.01 and shall only

vest and become exercisable upon either the date determined that the company achieves Cash Flow Breakeven or

in the event ofa termination of employment either without cause or for good reason as such terms are

defined in his employment agreement In February 2011 we granted Mr Marshall an additional 39000options

under the 2010 Plan exercisable at $0.44 per share in continuation of the salary reduction program

Change of Control The benefits Mr Marshall would receive upon termination without cause or for good

reason shall not be adversely affected in the event of change of control

Employee Covenants In his employment agreement Mr Marshall agreed to keep confidential and not

disclose any confidential or proprietary information owned by or received by or on behalf of us or any of otir

affiliates during the term of the agreement or at any time thereafter He also agreed to return such confidential

and proprietary information to us immediately in the event of any termination of employment Mr Marshall also

agreed during his employment with the company and for period of one year thereafter to not in any manner

enter into or engage in any business that is engaged in any business directly competitive with our business

anywhere in the world with limited exceptions Moreover Mr Marshall agreed during his employment with the

company and for period of 12 months thereafter to not directly or indirectly without our prior written consent

solicit or induce any employee of us or any of our affiliates to leave such employ or ii solicit the business of

any customer with respect to products or services that compete directly with the products or services provided or

supplied by us

Jan Wendenburg

Effective asof April 2011 upon the closing of the companys disposition of its Authentidate International

AG subsidiary Mr Wendenburgis no longer named executive officer of the company and the companys

obligations under this agreement were assumed by the purchaser

2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan

Adjustments upon Merger or Change in Control The 2011 Plan provides that in the event of merger with

or into another corporation or change in control including the sale of all or substantially all of our assets

unless otherwise provided in an award agreement in the event of change in control in which the successor

company assumes or substitutes for an option stock appreciation right restricted stock award restricted stOck

unit awardor other share-based award if participants employment or service as director with such successor

company terminates within 24 months following suŁh change in control or such other period set forth in the

award agreement options and stock appreciation rights outstanding as of the date of such termination of

employment will immediately vest become fully exercisable and may thereafter be exercised for 24 months or

such other period of time set forth in the award agreement ii the restrictions limitations and other conditions

applicable to restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding as of the date of such termination of

employment shall lapse and such awards shall become free of all restrictions and iii the restrictions limitations

and other conditions applicable to any other share-based awards or any other awards shall lapse and such awards

shall become free of all restrictions However unless otherwise provided in an award agreement in the event of

change in control if the successor company does not assume or substitute for an option stock appreciation right

restricted stock award restricted stock unit award or other share-based award then immediately prior to the

change in control those options and stock appreciation rights outstanding as of the date of the change in
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control that are not assumed or substituted for shall immediately vest and become fully exercisable

ii restrictions limitations and other conditions applicable to restricted stock and restricted stock units that are

not assumed or substituted for shall lapse and the restricted stock and restricted stock units shall become free of

all restrictions and iiithe restrictions other limitations and other conditions applicable to any other share-based

awards or any other awards that are not assumed or substituted for shall lapse and such other share-based awards

or such other awards shall become free of all restrictions

Termination of Employment Under the 2011 Plan if grantees employment or service is terminated for

cause any unexercised option shall terminateeffective immediately upon such termination of employment or

service Except as otherwise provided by in an award agreement if grantees employment or service terminates

on account of death or disability then any unexercised option to the extent exercisable on the date of such

termination of employment or service may be exercised in whole or in part within the first twelve 12 months

after such termination of employment or service but only during the option term by his or her personal

representative or by the person to whom the option is transferred by will or the applicable laws of descent and

distribution

The 2011 Plan provides that except as otherwise provided by the Committee in the award agreement if

grantees employment or service terminates for any reason other than for cause death disability or pursuant to

change of control then any unexercised option to the extent exercisable immediately before the grantees

termination of employment or service may be exercised in whole or in part not later than three months after

such termination of employment or service but only during the option term and to the extent that any such

option was not exercisable on the date of such termination of employment or service it will immediately

terminate

Equity Compensation Plans

2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan

Background

At the companys special meeting of stockholders held on August 23 2011 our stockholders approved the

2011 Onmibus Equity Incentive Plan the 2011 Plan Our board of directors adopted the 2011 Plan on July 19

2011 subject to stockholder approval at the special meeting The 2011 Plan became effective as of August 23
2011 upon receipt of the requisite stockholder approval The

purpose of the 2011 Plan is assist us and our

subsidiaries in attracting and retaining selected individuals who serving as our employees directors consultants

and/or advisors are expected to contribute to our success and to achieve long-term objectives which will benefit

our stockholders through the additional incentives inherent in the awards under the 2011 Plan The maximum

number of shares of our common stock that are available for awards under the 2011 Plan subject to the

adjustment provisions of the 2011 Plan is 6700000 shares Under the 2011 Plan options stock appreciation

rights restricted stock awards restricted stock unit awards other share-based awards and performance awards

may be granted to eligible participants Subject to the reservation of authority by our board of directors to

administer the 2011 Plan and act as the committee thereunder the 2011 Plan will be administered by the

Management Resources and Compensation Committee which has the authority to determine .the terms and

conditions of awards and to interpret and administer the 2011 Plan As of September 2011 we have grantcd

70000 options under the 2011 Plan with an exercise price of $0.86

Our Management Resources and Compensation Committee the Committee of our board of directors

initially began to evaluate the adoption of anew equity-based plan for the companys non-employee directors as

the companys 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock OptionPian the 2001 Director Plan was set to expire later

in 2011 In conducting its evaluation of new equity plan for directors and in consultation with.Frederic

Cook Co Inc the Committee determined that the adoption of an omnibus equity incentive plan covering the

companys non-employee directors as well as its employees executive officers and consultants was more

attractive than adopting stand-alone plan solely for the benefit of the board members In addition the
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Committee and board wished to provide for more-flexible equity compensation program for all potential

participants than that offered imder the companys historical and current equity plans The Compensation

Committee also believed that it would simplify the administration of the equity compensation program by

consolidating all persons to whom the company may wish to grant equity based awards into one omnibus plan

instead of managing separate plans for each class of persons Following Frederic Cook Co.s assessment

and recommendations the Committee recommended to the board and the board adopted the 2011 Plan as well

as other changes to our director compensation program discussed below

Following stockholder approval of the 2011 Plan the 2011 Plan replaced both the 2001 Director Plan and

the 2010 Employee Plan as the companys vehicle for granting equity awards to its employees directors and

consultants Accordingly as of August 23 2011 all equity awards granted to our employees directors and

eligible consultants will be made pursuant to the 2011 Plan and shares remaining under our existing plans will no

longer be available for grants under such plans Holders of unexercised options granted under the 2001 Director

Plan and the 2010 Employee Plan will be able to exercise those options in accordance with the terms of such

grants until the expiration date set forth in theiroption certificates

Summary of the 2011 Plan

Shares Available The maximum number of shares of our common stock that are available for awards under

the 2011 Plan subject to the adjustment provisions described under Adjustments upon Changes in

Capitalization below is 6700000 shares If any shares of common stock subject to an award under the 2011

Plan oi after shareholder approval of the 2011 Plan an award under the 2010 Employee Plan are forfeited

expire or are settled forcash in whole or in part the shares subject to the award may be used again for awards

under the 2011 Plan to the extent of the forfeiture expiration or cash settlement

Eligibility Options stock appreciation rights SARs restricted stock awards restricted stock unit

awards other share-based awards and performance awards may be granted under the 2011 Plan Options may be

either incentive stock options as defined in Section 422 of the Code .or nonstatutory stock options Awards

may be granted under the 2011 Plan to any employee non-employee member of our board of directors

consultant or advisor who is natural person and provides services to us or subsidiary except for incentive

stock options which may be granted onlyto employees

Administration Subject to the reservation of authority by our board of directors to administer the 2011 Plan

and act as the committee thereunder the 2011 Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee or

subcominittee.The Committee has the authority to determine the terms and conditions of awards and to interpret

and administer the 2011 Plan

Stock Options The Committee may grant either nonstatutory stock options or incentive stock options

stock option entitles the recipient to purchase specified number of shares of our common stock at fixed price

subject to terms and conditions set by the Committee The purchase price of shares of common stock covered by

stock option cannot be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date the option is

granted Fair market value of the common stock is generally equal to the closing price for the common stock on

the Principal Exchange on the date the option is granted or if there was no closing price on that date on the last

preceding date on which closing price was reported Options are subject to terms and conditions set by the

Committee Options granted under the 2011 Plan expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant

Stock Appreciation Rights The Committee is authorized to grant SARs in conjunction with stock option or

other award granted under the 2011 Plan and to grant SARs separately The grant price of SAR may not be less

than 100% of the fair market value of share of our common stock on the date the SAR is granted The tenn of

an SAR may be no more than 10 years from the date of grant SARs are subject to terms and conditions setby the

Committee.Upon exercise of an SAR the participant will have the right to receive the excess of the fair market

value of the shares covered by the SAR on the date of exercise over the grant price
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Restricted Stock Awards Restricted stock awards may be issued either alone or in addition to other awards

granted under the 2011 Plan and are also available as form of paymcnt of performance awards and other

earned cash-based incentive compensation The Comirjitteedetermines the terms and.conditions of restricted

stock awards including the number of shares of common stock granted and conditiOns for vesting that must be

satisfied wbichmay be based principally or solely on continued provisionof services and also may inÆlude

performance-based component Unless otherwise provided in the award agreement the holder of restricted

stock award will have the rights of stockholder from the date of grant of the award including the right to vote

the shares of common stock and the right to receive distributions on the shares Except as otherwise provided in

the award agreement any shares or other property other than cash distributed with respect to the award will be

subject to the same restrictions as the award .- .-

Restricted Stock Unit Awards Awards of restricted stock units having a- value equal to an identical number

of shares of common stock may be granted eitheralone or in addition to other awards granted under the 2011

Plan and are also available as form of payment of performance awards granted under the 2011 Plan and other

earned cash-based incentive compensation The Committee determines the terms- and conditions of restricted

stock units including conditions for vesting that must be satisfied which may be based principally or solely on

continued provision of services and also may include performance-based component The holder of restricted

stock unit award will not have voting rights with respect to the award Except as otherwise provided in the award

agreement any shares or other property other than cash distributed with respect to the award will be subject to
the same restrictions as the award

Other Share-Based Awards The 2011 Plan also provides for the award of shares of our common stock and

other awards that are valued by reference to our common stock or other property Other ShareBased Awards..
Other Share-Based Awards may be paid in cash shares of our common stock or other property or combination

thereof as determined by the Committee The Committee determines the terms and conditions of Other Share-

Based Awards including any conditions for vesting that must be satisfied.

Petformance Awards Performance awards provide participants with-the opportunity to receive shares of our

common stock cash or other property based on performance and other vesting conditions Performance awards

may be granted from time to time as determined at the discretion of the Committee Subject to the share limit and

maximum dollar value set forth above under Limits on Awards to-Participants the Committee has the

discretion to determine the number of shares of common stock under or the dollar value of performance

award and ii the conditions that must be satisfied for grant or for vesting which typically -will .be based

principally or solely on achievement-of performance goals ---
No Repricing The 2011 Plan prohibits option and SAR repricings other than to reflect stock splits spin

offs or other corporate events described under Adjustments upon Changes in Capitalization below or in

connection with change in control of the company unless stockholder approval is obtained

Nontransferability of Awards No award under the 2011 Plan and no shares subject to awards that have not

been issued or as to which any applicable restrirtion performance or deferral period has not lapsed is

transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and an award may be exercised during the

participant.s lifetimeonly by- the participant or the participants estate guardian or legal representative except

that the Committee may provide in an award agreement that participant may transfer an award without

consideration to certain family.members family trusts or other family-owned entities or for charitable donations

under such terms and conditions determined by the Committee

Amendment and Termination The 2011 Plan will be effective upon the date of stockholder approval and

may be amended or terminated by our board of directors except that stockholder approval is required for any

amendment to the 2011 Plan which increases the number of shares of common stock available for awards under

the 2011 Plan expands the types of awards available under the 2011 Plan materially expands the class of-

persons eligible to participate in the 2011 Plan permits the grant of options or SARs with an exercise or grant
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price of less than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant amends the provisions of the 2011 Plan

prohibiting the repricing of options and SARs as described above increases the limits on shares subject to

awards or otherwise materially increases the benefits to participants under the 2011 Plan The 2011 Plan will

expire on the 10th anniversary of the Effective Date except with respect to awards then outstanding and no

further awards may be granted thereafter

Other Option Plans

2010 Plan

In May 2010 our stockholders approved the 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan the 2010 Plan which

provide1 for the grant of options to purchase up to 10000000 shares of our common stock .The 2010 Plan

served as our primary equity incentive plan for our employees and other eligible participants until the approval

by our shareholders of the 20 Plan The board of directors unanimously approved the 2010 PIanon January 20

2010 and our stockholders approved the 2010 Plan on May 19 2010 Under the terms of the 2010 Plan options

granted there under may be designated as options which qualify for incentive stock option treatment ISOs
under Section 422 of the Code or options which do not so qualify Non-ISOs As of the Record Date we have

granted 1146050 options under the 2010 Plan with exercise prices ranging from $0.44 to $1.20

Shares Reserved for Issuance The 2010 Plan included an initial reserve of 10000000 shares of our

common stock available for issuance under the plan subject to adjustment to reflect stock splits and similar

events Shares that are subject to issuance upon exercise of an option but cease to be subject to such option for

any reason other than exercise of such option and shares that are subject to an awardthatis granted butis

subsequentlyforfeited or that are subject to an award that terminates without shares being issued will again be

available for grant and issuance under the 2010 Plan

Duration Amendment and Termination The 2010 Plan was initially approved by pur board on January 20

2010 and will expire on such date in 2020 unless sooner terminated by the board of directors As stated above

upon the approval by our shareholders of the 2011 Plan we do not intend to make further option
awards under

the 2010 Plan In addition to the power to terminate the 2010 Plan at any time the board of directors also has the

power to amend the 2010 Plan provided no amendment to the 2010 Plan may be made without stockholder

approval if stockholder approval is required under the listing requirements of any securities exchange or

national market system on which our equity securities are listed or the amendment would increase the total

number of shares reserved underthe 2010 Plan ii change the minimum option prices set forth in the 2010 Plan

iiiincrease the maximum term of options iv materially increase the benefits accrüing to the participants
under

the 2010 Plan or materially modify the requirements as to eligibility under the 2010 Plan

2000 Plan

In March 2001 our stockholders approved the 2000 Employees Stock Option Plan the 2000 Plan which

provided for the grant of options to purchase up to 5000000 shares of our common stock In March 2004 our

stockholders approved an amendment to the 2000 Plan to increase the number of options which we can grant

pursuant to the 2000 Plan to 10000000 shares Under the terms of the 2000 Plan Options granted there under

may be designated as ISOs or Non-ISOs As of the Record Date there were outstanding an aggregate of

approximately 2797666 options under the 2000 Plan with exercise prices ranging from $039 to $6.61

Plan Administration

The 2010 Plan and 2000 Plan were administered by the Management Resources and Compensation

Comniittee designated by our board of directors This committee has the discretion to determine

the eligible employees to whom and the times and the price at which options will be granted

whether such options shall be ISOs or Non-ISOs
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the periods during which each option will be exercisable and

the number of shares subject to each ontion

The board or committee shall have full authority to interpret the 2010 Plan and 2000 Plan and to establish

and amend rules and regulations relating thereto Under the 2010 Plan and 2O00 Planthe exercise price of an

option designated as an ISO shall not be less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date the

option is granted However in the event an option designated as an ISO is granted to ten percent stockholder

as defined in the Plans such exercise price shall be at least 110% of such fair market value Exercise prices of

Non-ISOs options may be less than such fair market value The aggregate fair market value of shares subject to

opti6ns granted to participant which are designated as ISOs which become exercisable in any calendar year

shall not exceed $100000 The fair market value will be the closing Nasdaq price or if oUr common stock is

not quoted by Nasdaq as reported by the National Quotation Bureau Inc or market maker of Our common
stock or if the common stock is not quoted by any of the above by the board of directors actingingoodfaith

Non Executive Director Stock Option Plan

In January 2002 our stockholders approved the 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan Awards

were granted under the 2001 Director Plan until the approval by our shareholders of the 2011 Plan to non-

executive directorsas defined and iimembers of any advisory board we may establish who are not fulltime

employees of us orany of our subsidiaries Under the 2001 Director Planeach non-executive director was

automatically be granted an option to purchase 40000 shares upon joining the board and an option to purchase

10000 shares each September 1sttherafter pro rÆta based on the time the director has served during theprior

year The term non-executive directoirefers to those of our directors who are not otherwise afulltime employee
of Authentidate or any subsidiary In addition each eligible member of an advisory board will receive upon

joining the advisory board and on each anniversary of the effective date of his appointment an option to

purchase 5000 shares of our common stock

In addition under the 2001 Director Plan non-executive directors upon joining the board and for period

of one year thereafter were entitled to purchase restricted stock from us at price equal to 80% of the closing

price on the date of purchase up tO an aggregate purchase price of$ 100000 Since its initial adoption our

stockholders have approved the following material amendments to our 2001 Director Plan

Modify the terms of the option awards previously and to be granted to non executive directors to

provide thatall awards expire ten years from the date of grant

Modify the trrnis of the option awards previously and to be granted to non-executive dIrectors to

provide that in the event of non-executive directors termination of service as director other than for

cause or in the case of death or disability the options held by such director shall terminate two years

from the date of termination of service but in no event later than the stated expiration date of an option

award

Provide that non-executive directors shall have the option to elect to receive up to 100% of their cash

director compensation including amounts payable for committee service service as committee chair

and per meeting fees in restricted shares of the companys common stock The number of shares of

restricted stock that would be issued to director would be computed by dividing the cash amount to be

converted into shares of restricted stock by the fair market value of the companys common stock as of

the date the fees are earned The closing price of the companys common stock on the last trading day of

each fiscal quarter will be used to determine the fair market value of the common stoc1 which may be

issued in lieu of the fees paid for service as director during such period

As of the June 30 2011 there were 500000 options outstanding under the 2001 Director Plan The options

outstanding have exercise prices ranging from $0.58 to $7.15 The term of each option commences on the date it

is granted and unless terminated sooner as provided in the 2001 Director Plan expires ten years
fromthe date of
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grant As stated above following the approval of the 2011 Plan by our shareholders no further awards will be

granted under the 2001 Plan The 2001 Director Plan was administered by either our full board of directors or

committee of the board consisting of not less than two officers who are not entitled to participate in the 2001

Director Plan The administrator has no discretion to determine which non-executive director or advisory board

member will receive options or the number of shares subject to the option the term of the option or the

exercisability
of the option However the administrator will make all determinations of the interpretation of the

2001 Director Plan Options granted under the 2001 Director Plan are not qualified for incentive stock option

treatment The exercise pnce for options granted under the 2001 Director Plan is 100% of the fair market value

of the common stock on the date of grant The fair market value is the closing pnce of our common stock as

reported by Nasdaq or if our common stock is not quoted by Nasdaq the closing bid price as reported by the

National Quotation Bureau Inc or market maker of our common stock or if the common stock is not quoted

by any of the above by the board of directors acting in good faith The exercise price of options granted under the

2001 Director Plan must be paid at the time of exercise in cash

Director Compensation

Fox our 2011 fiscal year and through July 19 2011 our non-executive directors were compensated as

follows

The annual director fee for our non executive directors was $15 000

Committee chairmen were paid an additional annual fee as follows Chairman ofthe Board

$25000 per annum Chairman of the Audit Committee$ 15000 per annum and other

Committee Chafrmen_$500C per annum

Our Audit Committee financial expert received an additional annual fee of $10000 through May 19

2010 at which time the board elected to eliminate this fee and

Meeting fees for our indepetident directors were $1500 for each meeting of the board of directors and

$1 for each meeting of committee äf the board of directors For meetings held by.conference pall

fees were $750 per meeting Reasonable and customary expenses incurred in tttending the board and

committee meetings are reimbursable

Under the 2001 Director Plan as amended our non-executive directors received 40000 stock options upon

being elected tothe board and had the ability to purchase up to $100000 of restricted shares of our common

stobk at per share purchase price of 80% of the fair market value on the date of purchase during the initial

twelve month period following their election to the board Our non-executive directors also received options to

purchase 10000 shares each year of service under the 2001 Director Plan and are reimbursed for expenses

incurred in order tO attend meetings of the board of directors In addition under the 2001 Director Plan our

directors had the option to elect to receive up to 100% of their cash.director compensation including amounts

service service as committee chair and per meeting fees in restricted shares of our

common stock

The 2001 Director Plan provided that upon the termination of service of director options granted under

such plan shall terminate on the second anniversary of the date of termination of service Notwithstanding the

foregoing if termination of service is due to optionees death or permanent disability as determined by the

board the option shall terminate on the earlier of the expiration date of such option or 12 months following the

date of death or termination for permanent disability and if an optionee is removed from the board for cause

as determined by the board the option awards held by such optionee would terminate immediately upon removal

In any and all circumstances an option may be exercised following termination of the optionee service as

an advisor only as to that number of shares as to which it was exercisable on the date of termination of such

services
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Fees Earned or Stock Option
Paid in Cash Awards Awards$4 .$5

$34016 $34017$ 4570

5349 $32785

summary of non-executive director compensation for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 is as follows

Summary of Non Executive Director Compensation

Change in

Pension Value

and Nonqualified

Non-Equity Deferred

Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Compensation Earnings Compensation TotalName
____________ ________ ________

Edward Sheridan
$72603

Todd Borus
$38 134

David Luce $26282 4570 $30852

Harry Silverman $34500 4570 $39070

Ranjit Singh $13309 $13309 4570 $31188

JohnJ Waters $16533 $16ç533 4570 $37636

As of June 30 2011 each of our current directors had the following number of Director Plan options

outstanding Mr Sheridan90000 Mr Luce97500 Mr Waters40000 Mr Bdrus40000
Dr ToddBoruswas elected to the board of directors on May 2011
Messrs Harry Silverman andRanjit Singh did not stand for reelection at the companys most recent annual

meeting of stockholders held on May 2011 and their resignation from the Board became effective on such

date As of June 30 2011 Mr Silverman and Mr Singh had 50000 and 97500 options outstanding

respectively

For the year ended June 30 2011 the
following directOrs elected to receive portion of their cash director

fees in shares of common stock The number of shares of common stock earned for fiscal 2011 to each

person that served as non-employee director during our 2011 fiscal yearis as follows Mr Sheridan
53050 Mr Luce39908 Mr Waters----25459 and Mr.Singh22713
Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal

year ended
June 30 2011 computed in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718
CompensationStock Compensation and thus may include amounts from awards granted in and prior to

2011 discussion of the methods ued to calculatethese values may befound in Note2 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

yearendedJune302O11

On July 19 2011 our board approved the following new compensation policy for our non-employee directors

The annual director fee for our non executive directors is $30 000

Committee chairmen are paid an additional annual fee as follows Chairman of the Board$25 000

per annum Chairman of the Audit Committee$ 15000 per annum Chairman of the

Management Resources and Compensation Cornmittee$7500 per annum and other committee

Chairrnen$5000 per annum and

Meeting fees for our independent directors are $1 for each meeting of the board of directors and

$1500 for each meeting of committee of the board of directors. For meetings held by conferenºe call
fees are $750 per meeting Reasonable and customary expenses incurred in attending the board and
committee meetings are reimbursable

With respect to the $15000 increase in the annual director fee the board determined that for fiscal 2012
this amount shall be paid through the issuance of shares of restricted stock under the 2011 Plan in four equal

quarterly installments based on the fair market value of the companys common stock as of the last trading day
of each fiscal quarter
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Inaddition to theforegoing cash compensation effective with the approval by the companys stockholders

of the 201 1Plan each non-employee director will receive upon initial election to the board of directors

nonstatutory
stoºk option for the purchase of 40000 shares of the companys common stock which vests

immediately upon election and ii an annual stock option grant to be granted on September for the purchase

of 20000 shares of the companys common stock which also vests immediately provided that any

non-employee director who has not served as director for an entire year prior to September 1st of the reference

year shall receive pro rata number of options determined as follows

Date of Membership Options Granted

September through November 30 20000

Deceinber through February 28 15000

March through May 30 10000

June through August 31 sooo

On September 2011 we granted an aggregate of 70000 options to our non-employee directors pursuant

to the 2011 Plan These options have an exercise price of $0.86

The options shall be exercisable for period of ten years from the grant date The exercise price of such

options shall be equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date as determined under the

2011 Plan With respect to such options upon the termination of service of director options shall terminate on

the second anniversary of the date of termination of service Notwithstanding the foregoing if termination of

service is due to optionees death or permanent disability as determined by the board the option shall terminate

on the earlier of the expiration date of such option or 12 months following the date of death or termination for

permanent disability and if an optionee is removed from the board for cause as determined by the board the

option awards held by such optionee would terminate immediately upon removal

Non-employee directors will continue to have the option to elect to receive up to 100% of their cash director

compensation including amounts payable for committee service service as committee chair and per meeting

fees in restricted shares of our common stock issued under the 2011 Plan Under this program prior to the

commencement of each fiscal year each non-employee director has the right to elect to receive percentage up

to 100% of all cash compensation payable to such non-employee director for the fiscal year ending the

following June 30 in restricted shares of our common stock Notwithstanding the foregoing however on one

occasion during each fiscal quarter non-employee director prior to the first day of the last month of each fiscal

quarter may notify the company of his decision to modify prior election with any such revised allocation to be

effective for any subsequent fiscal quarter during the remainder of the fiscal year

If non-employee director elects to receive percentage
of his or her cash compensation in restricted

shares the number of restricted shares that will be issued to such director will be calculated by dividing the cash

amount to be converted into restricted shares by the fair market value of the companys common stock as of the

date the fees are earned which date shall be deemed to be the last trading day of each fiscal quarter Fair market

value will be determined in accordance with the provisions of the 2011 Plan Restricted shares will be restricted

from public resale in accordance with the provisions of Rule 144 as adopted by the Securities and Exchange

Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

Further in July 2011 the board also adopted stock ownership guidelines applicable to our non-employee

directors The Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Guidelines require all non-employee directors to hold

shares of our common stock with value equal to four times the amount of the base annual retainer fee paid to

non-employee directors for service on the board excluding additional committee retainer fees if any This

ownership guideline is initially calculated using the base annual retainer fee for service as non-employee

director as of the date we adopted these guidelines for current directors or for any new members of our board

such person first became subject to the guidelines These ownership guidelines will be re-calculated following

any adjustment to the applicable annual non-employee director retainer fees These guidelines will be based on

the applicable annual board retainer fee in effect on such calculation date
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Non-employee directors are required to achieve the applicable level of ownership within five
years of the

later of the date the guidelines were adopted and the date the
person first became non-employee member of the

board Shares that count toward satisfaction of the guidelines include shares owned outright by the director or his

or her immediate family members residing inthe same household and shares held in trust for the benefit of the

director or his or her family Unexercised and/or unvested equity awards do not count toward satisfaction of the

guidelines The value of share will be measured on the date of the companys annual meeting each year as the

greater of the average closing price over the 12 months preceding the date of calculation or ii the purchase

price actually paid by the person for such share of the companys stock The purchase price for shares acquired

pursuant to restricted stock units performance shares and other similar full value awards iszero Otir

Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Guidelines may be waived at the discretion of the boards

Management Resources and Compensation Committee if compliance would create tindue hardship or prevent

director from complying with court order as in the case of divorce settlement
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Report of the Management Resources and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The following report has been submitted by the Management Resources and Compensation Committee of

the board of directors

The Management Resources and Compensation Committee of the board of directors has reviewed and

discussed our Compensation Discussion and Analysis with managemenL Based on this review and discussion

the Management Resources and Compensation Committee recommended to the board of directors that the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

June 30 2011 as filed with the SEC

The foregoing report was submitted by the Management Resources and Compensation Committee of the

Board and shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC or subject to

Regulation 14A promulgated by the SEC or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

John Waters

Edward Sheridan

Todd Borus M.D

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

There are no compensation committee interlocks between the members of our Management Resources and

Compensation Committee and any other entity At present Messrs Waters Sheridan and Borus are the members

of this committee During the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 none of the members of the Management

Resources and Compensation Committee was an officer or employee of the company during the last fiscal

year was formerly an officer of the company or any of its subsidiaries or had any relationship with the

company requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain information as of September 2011 with respect to each director

and each executive officer ii and all directors and executive officers as group and iii persons including any

group as that term is used in Section 13d3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 known by us to be the

beneficial owner of more than five percent of our common stock Shares of common stock subject to options

exercisable within 60 days from the date of this table are deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned for

purposes
of computing the percentage ownership of such

person
but are not treated as outstanding for purposes

of

computing the percentage ownership of others

Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent of

Type of Class Name and Address of Beneficial Holder Ownership Class

5% Stockholders

Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP 6371160 13.7%

2401 Avenue Suite 600

Denver Colorado 80206

Directors and Executive Officers

Common OConnell Benjamin 703333 1.5%

do Authentidate Holding Corp

Connell Corporate Center

300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922
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Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent of

Type of Class Name and Address of Beneficial Holder Ownership Class

Common Edward Sheridan 163050
do Authentidate Holding Corp
Connell Corporate Center

300 Connll Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

Common David Luce 1333402 29%
do Authentidate Holding Corp
Conneil Corporate Center

300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

Common John Waters 656882 1.4%

do Authentidate Holding Corp
Connell Corporate Center

300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

Common Todd Borus M.D 50000
do Authentidate Holding Corp
Connell Corporate Center

300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

Common William Marshall 585 000 3%
do Authentidate Holding Corp
Connell Corporate Center

300 Connell Drive 5th Floor

Berkeley Heights NJ 07922

Directors/Executive Officers as group

234567 3491667 7.5%

Unless otherwise indicated below each director officer and 5% stockholder has sole voting and sole

investment power with respect to all shares that he beneficially owns

Based on 46 342 218 shares of common stock outstanding as of August 31 2011

Represents less than 1% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock as of the date of this table

Based oh Schedule l3G/A flied by the listed stockholder on February 15 2011 and Form filed by the

listed stockholder on April 15 2011 The Securities reported on this SchedUle as beneficially owned by

Lazarus Management are held by or for the benefit of Lazarus Partners The reporting person also owns

500000 shares of Series Preferred Stock and 2500000 common stock warrants which are not currently

exercisable and are not therefore deemed to be beneficially owned for purposes of Rule 3d-3 of the

Act Lazarus Management as the investment adviser of Lazarus Partners and as the general partner of

Lazarus Partners and Justin Borus as the managing member of Lazarus Management may be deemed to

beneficially own the Securities held by Lazarus Partners for the purposes of Rule 13d-3 of the Act insofar

as they may be deemed to have the power to direct the voting or disposition of those Securities Neither the

filing of this Schedule nor any of its contents shall be deemed to constitute an admission that Lazarus

Management or Mr Borus is for any other purpose the beneficial owner of any of the Securities and each

of Lazarus Management and Mr Borus disclaims beneficial ownership as to the Securities except to the

extent of his or its pecuniary interests therein

Includes vested options to purchase 518333 shares of common stock and excludes unvested options to

purchase 187000 shares of common stock Excludes options to purchase 300000 shares of common stock

granted to Mr Benjamin on September 2011 all of which are subject to vesting conditions

Includes vested options to purchase 110000 shares of common stock
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Includes vested options to purchase 117500 shares of common stock Includes 1077754 shares of common

stock owned by Duke 83 LLC Excludes unvested options to purchase 500000 shares of common stock

Includes vested options to purchase 60000 shares of common stock and 17000 shares of common stock

owned by Mr Waters spouse

Includes vested options to purchase 50000 shares of conmion stock

Includes vested options to purchase 350000 shares of common stock and excludes unvested options to

purchase 78000 shares of common stock

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information about our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of

options under all of our equity compensation plans as of June 30 2011 which consisted of the 2010 Employee

Stock Option Plan 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended and the 2001 Non-Employee Director Stock

Option Plan as amended Information concerning each of the aforementioned plans is set forth above On

August 23 2011 our stockholders approyed the 2011 Plan which is described in greater detail above

Weighted Number of Securities

Number of Securities Average Remafihing Available

to be Issued upon Exercise Price for Future Issuance Under

Exercise of of Outstanding Equity Compensation

Outstanding Options Options and Plans Excluding Seeurities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants Reflected in Colunrn

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by

Stockholders 4444000 2.27 8904000

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by

Stockholders 820000 1.00 NIA

Total 264 000 07 904 000

Includes 500000 options issued pursuant to our 2001 Director Plan as amended and 3944000 options

issued to employees pursuant to our 2000 Plan and 2010 Plan but does not include 15000 options issued

under Our 2010 Plan in July or 70000 options and 300000 options granted under our 2011 Plan on

September 12011 and September 62011 respectively

Reflects 8854000 options available for issuance as of June 30 2011 pursuant to our 2010 Plan and 50000

options that would have been granted under the 2001 Director Plan on September 2011 On August 23

2011 the stockholders approved the 2011 Plan that replaced the 2010 Employee Plan and 2001 Director

Plan Under the 2011 Plan 6700000 shares are available for issuance in lieu of the issuance of the options

under our other equity compensation plans

See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this AnnualReport on Form 10-K

for information related to common stock purchase warrants issued to certain consultants

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE MG TO UPDATE

Except as disclosed herein we have not entered into any material transactions or series of similar

transactions with any director executive officer or any security holder owning 5% or more of our common stock

For information concerning employment agreements with and compensation of our executive officers and

directors see the disclosure in the section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K captioned Executive

Compensation

On August 2009 the board of directors agreed to award options to purchase 500000 shares of common

stock to Mr David Luce member of the board of directors as fee for services rendered in connection with

our ExpressMDTM Solutions joint venture the Joint Venture The options were awarded under our 2000 Plan

and are exercisable for period of ten years at per share exercise price of $2.00 subject to vesting conditions

The options will vest solely in the event that the Joint Venture or successor achieves revenues in the

aggregate amount of at least $5000000 prior to the second anniversary of the option grant date the Target
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Date In the event such metric is achieved 250000 options will vest The remaining options will vest only if

the Joint Venture or successor achieves revenues in the aggregate amount of $10000000 prior to the Target

Date Due tothe this arrangement the companys board of directors determined that Mr Luce no longer satisfies

the criteria for independence under the applicable rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and accordingly Mr Luce

resigned from his membership on the companys Management Resources and Compensation Committee and

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee immediately prior to the board of directors consideration of

this matter Mr Luce however continues to serve as member of the companys board of directors On May
2011 the companys board of directors agreed to amend the vesting terms of this option award to provide that the

Target Date shall be the third anniversary of the date of grant

On September 23 2009the company entered into Standby Commitment the Commitment with an

accredited investor the Lenderursuant to which the Lender agreed to purchase senior secured convertible

debentures the Convertible Debentures in an aggregate principal amount of up to $3000000 the Total

Commitment Amount During the 12-month commitment term upon at least 30 days written notice by the

company the Jender will purchase Convertible Debentures in the aggregate principal amount specified in such

notice In the event Convertible Debentures are sold the company would also issue the Lender 13333 common

stock purchase watrants for each $100 000 of Convertible Debentures sold the Warrants In addition the

company issued an additional 400 000 Warrants to the Lenders in consideration of the commitment to provide

the financing Such \rrants are ØxØrcisabie for period of five years at an exercise price of $1.20 per share The

Commitment provided that if the company raised capital or received proceeds from this sale of certain assets

during the commitment term the amount of available borrowings under the Commitment would be reduced by

such amounts Accordingly following the completion of our registered direct offering in December 2009 and the

subsequent exercise of $500000 of common stock purchase warrants originally issued in such financing the

Standby Commitment automatically terminated in accordance with its terms No convertible debentures were

sold under this arrangement The Lender is an entity affiliated with Mr Douglas Luce who is brother of

Mr David Luce member of the companys board of directors

On October 12 2010 we entered.into securities purchase agreement with certain institutional and

accredited investors to sell and issue $5.0 million of units of our securities and in the aggregate we sold

1250000 units of securities at price of $4.00 per unit The units consisted of total of 7500000 shares of

common stock 1250000 shares of Series Preferred Stock and 6250000 Warrants This transaction closed on

October 13 2010 As result of the consummation of the offering two investors Lazarus Investment Partners

LLLP and AQR Capital Management LLC subsequently filed reports on Schedule 3G indicating that following

such transaction such persons became beneficial owners of in excess of 5% of our common stock As of the date

of this Annual Report on Form 10-K based upon report on Schedule 13G/A and Form filed by Lazarus

Investment Partners LLLP we believe that such entity is the beneficial ownership of approximately 13.7% of our

common stock Further we believe that AQR Capital Management LLC no longer beneficially owns in excess of

5% of our conmion stock In May 2011 our stockholders elected Dr Todd Borus to serve on our board of

directors Dr Borus is the brother of the manager of the general partner ofLazarus Investment Partners LLLP

As described in greater detailin Note 25 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on October 2011
the company entered into securities purchase greemen with certain accredited and/or institutional investors

relating to registered direct offering by the companyfor an aggregate of 5874998 shares of common stock of

the company and warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 2937497 shares of Common Stock One of the

investors in this offering Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP which was the beneficial owner of approximately

13.7% ofour outstanding shares of Common Stock immediately prior to the offering agreed to purchase

1428571 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 714285 shares of Common Stock The manager of

the general partner of Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP is the brother of Dr Todd Borus member of our

board of directors In addition Douglas Luce the brother of David Luce member of our board of

directors agreed to purchase 571428 shares of Common Stock and warrants to purchase 285714 shares of

Common StOck The participation by these investors was on the same terms as the other investors in the offering
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Approval for Related Party Transactions

Although we have not adopted formal policy relating to the approval of proposed transactions that we may

enter into with any of our executive officers directors and principal stockholders including their immediate

family members and affiliates our Audit Committee all of the members of which are independent reviews the

terms of any and all such proposed material related party transactions The results of this review are then

communicated to the entire board of directors which has the ultimate authority as to whether or not we enter into

such transactions We will not enter into any material related party transaction without the prior consent of our

Audit Committee and our board of directors In approving or rejecting the proposed related party transaction our

Audit Committee and our board of directors shall consider the relevant facts and circumstances available and

deemed relevant to them including but not limited to the risks costs and benefits to us the terms of the

transaction the availabihty of other sources for comparable services or products and if applicable the impact on

director independence We shall approve only those agreements that in light of known circumstances are in

or are not inconsistent with our best interests as our Audit Committee and our board of directors determine in

the good faith exercise of their discretion

Independence of our Board of Directors and its Committees

The listing rules established by the Nasdaq Stock Market LLC require that majority of the members of

listed company board of directors qualify as independent as affirmatively determined by the board meaning

that each independent director has no direct or indirect material relationship with company other than as

director and/or stockholder Our board of directors consults with legal counsel tO ensure that our boards

determination with respect to the definition of independent is consistent with current Nasdaq listing rules Our

board of directors reviewed all relevant transactions or relationships between each director or any of his family

members and our company and has affirmatively determined that each of our directors other than David Luce

and Connell Benjamin are independent directors under the applicable guidelines noted above Our board of

directors currently has four committees the Audit Committee the Management Resources and Compensation

Committee the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Executive Committee All of the

members of our Audit Committee meet the standards for independence required under current Nasdaq Stock

Market listing rules SEC rules and applicable securities laws and regulations All of the members of our

Management Resources and Compensation Committee and our Nominating and Corporate Governance

Committee satisfy the applicable independence standards

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The board of directors of Authentidate has selected EisnerAmper LLP formerly Eisner LLP as its

independent registered public accounting firm for the current fiscal year During the 2011 fiscal year the audit

services provided by EisnerArnper LLP consisted of an audit of the financial statements and services related to

filings with the SEC The following table presents the total fees billed for professional audit and non-audit

services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm for the audit of our annual financial

statements for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 and fees billed for other services rendered by our

independent registered public accounting firm during those periods

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010

Audit Fees $167000 $315000

Total $167000 $315000

Audit services consist of audit work performed on financial statements reviews of Annual Reports on Form

10-K reviews of financial statements and related Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q during the fiscal year as

well as work that generally only the independent registered public accounting firm can reasonably be

expected to provide including consents for registration statement filings and responding to SEC comment
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letters on annual and quarterly filings During the fiscal
years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 all reported

amounts were for services provided by EisnerAmper LLP We did not incur fees for audit related tax or
other service performed by EisnerAmner LLP dunng the fiscal years ended J..e 30 2011 and 2010

Our Audit Committee has determined that the services provided by our independent registered public

accounting firms and the fees we expensed for such services has not compromised the independence of our

independent auditors

Consistent with SEC policies regarding auditor independence the Audit Committee has responsibility for

appointing setting compensation and overseeing the work of the independent auditor In recognition of this

responsibility the Audit Committee has established policy to pre approve all audit and permissible non audit

services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm Pnor to engagement of the independent
auditor for the next year audit management will submit detailed descnption of the audit and permissible

non-audit services expected to be rendered during that year for each of four categories of services described

above to the Audit Committee for approval In addition management will also provide to the Audit Committee
for its approval fee proposal for the services proposed to be rendered by the independent auditor Prior to the

engagement of the independent auditor the Audit Committee will approve both the description of audit and

permissible non-audit services proposed to be rendered ly the independent auditor and the budget for all such

services The fees are budgeted and the Audit Committee requires the independent registered public accounting
firm and management to report actual fees versus the budget penothcally throughout the year by category of

service

Dunng the year circumstances may anse when it may become necessary to engage the independent

registered public accounting finn for additional services not contemplated in the onginal pre approval In those

instances the Audit Committee requires separate pre approval before engaging the independent registered public

accounting firm To ensure prompt handling of unexpected matters the Audit Committee may delegate

pre approval authonty to one or more of its members The member to whom such authonty is delegated must

report for informational purposes only any pre approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled

meeting The four categories of services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm are as

defined in the footnotes to the fee table set forth above

Each of the permitted non-audit services has been pre-approved by the Audit COmmittee or the Audit

Committees Chairman pursuant to delegated authority by the Audit Committee The Audit Committee has not

authorized our independent registered public accounting firm to provide any additional non-audit services
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

a1 Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements of AHC are set forth below

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

There are no schedules required for any of the years in the three year period ended June 30 2011 pursuant to

item 15

a3 Exhibits

The exhibits required by Item 15 are set forth in the Exhibit Index
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Dated October 13 2011

AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING Cotu

By Is OCONNELL BENJAMIN

OConnell Benjamin

Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Capacity

Is J.EDWARD SHERIDAN

Edward Sheridan

Chairman of the Board October 13 2011

Is OCONNELL BENJAMIN

OConnell Benjamin

Is TODD BORUS M.D
Tood Borus

Is DAVID LUCE

David Luce

/s JOHN WATERS

John Waters

Is WILLIAM MARSHALL

William Marshall

Chief Executive Officer President and

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Octobei 13 2011

October 13 2011

October 13 2011

October 13 2011

October 13 2011

Date
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The exhibits designated with an asterisk are filed herewith All other exhibits have been previously filed

with the Conmiission and pursuant to 17 C.F.R ss 230.411 are incorporated by reference to the document

referenced in brackets following the descriptions of such exhibits management contract or compensation plan

or arrangement
is indicated with fl Certain portions of exhibits marked with the symbol have been

granted confidential treatment by the Securities and Exchange Conunission Such portions were omitted and filed

separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission Certain portions of exhibits marked with the symbol

have been omitted and are subject to our request for confidential treatment by the Securities and Exchange

Commission Such portions have been omitted and filed separately
with the Commission

Item No Description

2.1 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 2002 by and among Authentidate Holding

Corp Authentidate International AG and PFK Acquisition Group LLC Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K

dated March 15 2002

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of May 31 2007 by and between Astria Solutions Group LLC

and Authentidate Holding Corp Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed June 11 2007

2.3 Share Purchase Agreement by and among Authentidate Holding Corp and Exceet Group dated

March 2011 filed as exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2011

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Bitwise Designs Inc-Delaware Exhibit 3.3.1 to Registration

Statement on Form S-18 File No 33-46246-NY

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation of Series Preferred Stock Exhibit 3.2.1 to Form 10-KSB dated

October 1999

3.1.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exhibit to Definitive Proxy

Statement dated 1ebruary 16 2001 as filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission

3.1.5 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights and Number of

Shares of Senes Convertible Preferred Stock Exhibit ito Form 10 for the quarter ended

December 31 2002

3.1.6 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exhibit to Definitive Proxy

Statement dated December 31 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

3.2 By-Laws as amended Exhibit 3.2.1 to Form iO-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004

3.2.1 Amendment to By-laws filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated

November 15 2007

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on Form S-18 File No
33-46246-NY

4.2 Form of Series Preferred Stock Certificates Exhibit 4.5 to the Registration Statement on form

SB-2 File No 33-76494

4.3 Senior Subordinated Secured Note dated as of May 31 2007 executed by Astria Solutions Group

LLC Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed June 11 2007

4.4 Form of Warrant issued to Placement Agent dated December 2009 filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated December 2009

4.5 Form of Warrant granted pursuant to Standby Commitment dated September 22 2009 filed as

Exhibit 4.6 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010

4.6 Form of Warrant granted to consultant filed as Exhibit 4.6 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended June 30 2010

87



Item No Description

4.7 Form of Warrant issued in private placement from October 2010 filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14 2010

Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights and Number of Shares of Senes 15%
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock filed as Exhibit to Current Report on Form filed

onOctoberl4 2010

4.9 Form of Warrant filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12 2011

10.1 Joint Venture Agreement between the Company AuthØntidate Inc and Windhorst New

Technologies Agi.G Exhibit 10.30 to the Companys Form i0-KSB dated June 30 2000

10.2 Technology License Agreement between the Company Authentidate Inc and Windhorst New

Technologies Agi.G Exhibit 10.31 to the Companys Form 10-KSB dated June 302000

10.3 Strategic Alliance AgEeement between Authentidate Holding Corp Authentidate Inc and United

States Postal Service dated as of July 31 2002 Exhibit 10.23 to Form 10-K dated September 30
2002

10.4 Agreement among Trac Medical Solutions Inc Homecare AssoCiation LLC and bConnected

Software Inc dated February 12 2904 Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

March 31 2004

10.5 Product Development and License Agreement between Trac Medical Solutions Inc and

bConnected Software Inc dated February 12 2004 Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended March 31 2004

l0.6 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended filed as Exhibit to DefinitiveProxy Statement

dated December 31 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Conmiission

10 Form of Stock Option Award Pursuant to 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended filed as

Exhibit 10.30.1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2004

10 Form of Stock Option Award Pursuant to 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan as

amended filed as Exhibit 10 311 to Annual Report on Form 10 for the fiscal year ended June 30

2004

109 Lease Agreement dated as of July 2005 between Authentidate Holding Corp and The Connell

Company filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11 2005

10.1 Employment Agreement between William Marshall and Authentidate Holding Corp filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15 2006

10.1 License Agreement between Authentidate Holding Corp and U.S Postal Service filed as Exhibit

10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2007

10.12 Employment Agreement between OConnell Benjamin and Authentidate Holding Corp filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 11 2009

10.13 Summary Term Sheet for Standby Commitment dated September 22 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.37 to

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30 2009

10.14 Limited Liability Company Agreement by and between Authentidate Holding Corp and

EncounterCare Solutions Inc filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated

November 10 2009

10.15 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement December 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report

on Form 8-K dated December 2009

10.l6 Compensation Modification Agreement with OConnell Benjamin filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated February 22 2010
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Item No Description

10.17 Compensation Modification Agreement with William Marshall filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated February 22 2010

10.18 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan filed as Exhibit to definitive Proxy Statement dated April 14

2010

10.19 Form of Stock Option Award Pursuant to 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan filed as Exhibit 10.22

to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June .30 2010

10.20 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan as amended filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Current

Report on Form 8-K dated May 25 2010

10.2 Purchase Agreement between Authentidate Holding Corp and Star Advisors LLC dated as of June

30 2010 filed as Exhibit 10.24 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended June 30

2010

10.22 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 12 2010 by and among Authentidate

Holding Corp and the Investors named therein filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October 14 2010

10.23 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated October 12 2010 by and among Authentidate

Holding Corp and the Investors named therein filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October 14 2010

10.24 Stipulation of Settlement filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended December 31 2010

10.25 Compensation Modification Agreement with OConnell Benjamin filed as Exhibit 10.5 to

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31 2010

10.26 Compensation Modification Agreement with William Marshall filed as Exhibit 10.6 to Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31 2010

10.27 Trademark License Agreement dated March 2011 between Authentidate Holding Corp and

Authentidate International AG filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April

72011

10.28 Intellectual Property License Agreement dated March 2011 between Authentidate Holding Corp
and Authentidate International AG filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

April 2011

10.29 Contract Award from U.S Department of Veterans Affairs filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2011

10.30 Employment Agreement dated September 2011 between OConnell Benjamin and the Company

filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 2011

10.31 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan filed as Appendix to the definitive proxy statement dated

July 27 2011

10.32 Form of Incentive Stock Option Grant Agreement under the 2011 Onmibus Equity Incentive Plan

l0.33 Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Grant Agreement under the 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive

Plan

10.34 Placement Agency Agreement by and between the Company and C.K Cooper Co Inc dated

October 2011 filed as Exhibit 1.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12 2010

10.35 Engagement Agreement by and between the Company and Rodman Renshaw LLC dated as of

October 2011 filed as Exhibit 1.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12 2011

10.36 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K dated

October 122011
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Item No Description

14 Code of Ethics Exhibit 14 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended June 30 2003

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23.1 Consent of EisnerAmper LLP formerly Eisner LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Authentidate Holding Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Authentidate Holding Corp and

subsidiaries the Company as of June 30 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of

operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each the
years in the three-year period ended June 30

2011 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement Our audits include

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis

for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Authentidate Holding Corp and subsidiaries as of June 30 2011 and 2010 and

the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended June 30 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Is EisnerAmper LLP

New York New York

October 13 2011
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30

in thousands except per share data 2011 2010

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1444 276

Restricted cash 256 256

Marketable securities 980 1079

Accounts receivable net 423 521

Inventory 4569 4589

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 557 665

Assets of discontinued operations
i- 694

Total current assets 8229 8080

Property and equipment net 680 520

Other assets

Software development costs net 695 1460

Other assets 1231 1152

Assets of discontinued operations 7332

Assets held for sale 2000

Total assets 10835 20544

Liabilities Redeemable Preferred Stock and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3198 4092

Deferred revenue 92 240

Liabilities of discontinued operations 1194

Total current liabilities 3290 5526

Long-term deferred revenue 140 140

Total liabilities 3430 5666

Commitments and contingencies Note 14

Redeemable preferred stock 2931

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock 10 par value 5000 shares aUthorized Series 28 shares issued

and outstanding on June 30 2010

Common stock $.OOl par value 75000 shares authorized 46323 and 38436

issued and outstanding on June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively 46 38

Additional paid-in capital 172786 170490

Accumulated deficit 168358 155518
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 135

Total shareholders equity 4474 14878

Total liabilities redeemable preferred stock and shareholders equity 10835 20544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

in thousands except per share data

Revenueshosted software services

Operating expenses

Cost of revenues

Selling general and administrative

Product development

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Other income expense net

Loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations including

loss on disposal in 2011 of $5405 net

Net loss

Basic and diluted loss per common share

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per common share

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

2795 2419 2790

1896 2016 1872

6024 7055 8132

829 1016 677

1197 1209 1472

9946 11296 12153

7151 8877 9363
365 170 550

6786 9047 8813

5769 42 554

$12555 9005 9367

0.16 0.25 0.25

0.13 0.00 0.02

0.29 0.25 $0.27

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Preferred stock dividends

Share-based cOmpensation

expense
Restricted shares issued for

services

Purchase of common
stock

Currency translation

adjustment

Unrealized holding gain
marketable securities

Net loss

Balance June 30 2009 ... 28

Preferred stock dividends

Share-based compensation

expense

issuance of common

stock

Exercise of stock options

Restricted shares issued for

services

Issuance of warrants for

commitment

Currency translation

adjustment

Net loss

Balance June 30 2010 ... 28

Preferred stock dividends

Share-based compensation

expense

Issuance of common stock

net

Restricted shares issued for

services

Issuance of warrants for

services

Currency translation

adjustment

Currency translation loss
discontinued operations

Reclass Series preferred

stock

Net loss

Balance June 30 2011

Authentidate Corp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part Of the consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

Number Number Other Total

of Preferred of Common Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders Comprehensive

in thousands Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital Deficit Loss Equity Income Loss

Balance June 302008 28 34537 $35 $165681 $137006 $522 28191 $16270

70

410 410

70

296 108 108

547 147 148

84 84 84

500 500 500

_________
9367 9367

$l06 19540 8951

70

311

3535 3539

54 54

533 533

______ ________
9367

$3 34286 $34 $166052 $146443

70

311

4099

43

______ ________
9005

38436 $38 $170490 $155518

285

7750 2637

29 29 29
9005 9005

$135 14878 9934

285

230 230

645

76 76

50 50

127 127 127

28

137

697 700
12555 12555 12555

$L_ 46323 $46 $172786 $16858 4474 $12420
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Authentidate Holding orp and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statementsof Cash Flows

in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating activities

Lossincome from discontinued operations

Depreciation and amortization

Share-based compensation

Warrants issued for services

Restricted shares issued for services

Amortization of deferred financing cost warrants

Net gain on sale of non-core assets

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Restricted cash

Purchases of property and equipment and other assets

Other intangible assets acquired

Capitalized Software development costs

Net proceeds from sale of non-core assets

Purchase of common stock

Sales of maiketable securities

Netcash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance of preferred and common stock

Proceeds from exercise of options

Dividends paid

Net cash provided used by financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash flow from discontinued operationsoperating activities

Cash flow from discontinued operationsinvesting activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash flowsdiscontinued operations

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalentsdiscontinued operations

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

June 30

2011 2010 2009

$12555 $9005$9367

5769 42 554

1197 1209 1472

226 283 383

50

76 54 108

533

351

98 80 82
20 4301 288

108 85 265
955 3084 298
148 71 361

6465 8109 8144

256

611 320 19
60 12

80 515
2351

148
99 5024 4722

1779 4868 4033

4645 3539

88 35 52

4557 35.09 52

129 268 4163
25 254 234

1277 13 19
29 84

37 296 131

276 4171

1444 276

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Autlientidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Finaflcial Statements

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Authentidate Holding Corp Authentidate or the company is provider of secure web-based software

applications and telehealth products and services that enable healthcare organizations to coordinate care for

patients and enhance related administrative and clinical workflows Authentidate and its subsidiaries provide

products and services that address variety of business needs for our customers including enabling healthcare

organizations to increase revenues improve productivity enhance patient care and reduce costs by eliminating

paper
and manual work steps from clinical administrative and other processes and enhancing compliance with

regulatory requirements Our web-based services are delivered as Soware as Service SaaS to our customers

interfacing seamlessly with billing and document management systems These solutions incorporate multiple

features and secunty technologies such as rules based electronic forms intelligent routing transaction

management electronic signatures identity credentialing content authentication automated audit trails and

remote patient monitoring capabilities Both web and fax-based communications are integrated into automated

secure and trusted workflow solutions

Our ExpressMDTM Solutions joint venture provides in-home patient vital signs monltonng systems and

services to improve care for patients with chronic illnesses and reduce the cost of care by delivenng results to

their healthcare providers via the Internet ExpressMD Solutions combines 1ncounterCare Electronic House

CallTM patient vital signs monitoring appliances with web-based management and monitOring software module

based on Authentidate Inscrybe Healthcare platform The joint venture also offers the ExpressMD Interactive

Voice Response IVR patient vital signs monitoring solution that provides an alternative for patients who

require flexible mobile solution for care plan reminders and vital signs monitoring Using any touch-tone

phone patients can answer their session questions and enter their vital signs test results verbally or by entering

their answers on their phone keypad Both solutions enable unattended measurements of patients vital signs
and

related health information and are designed to aid weilness and preventative care and deliver better care to

specific patient segments who require regular monitoring of medical conditions Authentidate currently operates

its business in the United States with technology and service offerings that address emerging growth

opportunities based on the regulatory and legal requirements specific to our market The business is engaged in

the development and sale of web-based services largely based on our Inscrybe platform and related capabilities

and telehealth services We also offer our patent pending content authentication technology AuthentiProof with

our services

Based on our business plan we expect our existing resources including the net proceeds generated from our

registered direct offering in October 2011 revenues generated from operations and proceeds received from the

exercise of outstanding warrants of which there can be no assurance to satisfy our working capital requirements

for at least the next twelve months however these resources may not be sufficient if we are required to redeem

our outstanding shares of Series and Series preferred stock within the next 12 monthS and we may attempt to

renegotiate the terms Of such securities If necessary management of the company believes that it can reduce

operating expenses and/or raise additional equity or debt financing to satisfy its working capital requirements

However no assurances can be given that we will be able to support our costs through revenues derived from

operations generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy our other obligations or successfully modify the terms of our

preferred securities In addition there can be no assurance that the company will be successful in raising

additional capital or securing financing when needed or on terms satisfactory to the company

As discussed more fully in Notes 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on April 2011 the

company announced that it had completed the sale of all the capital stock of its wholly-owned German

subsidiary Authentidate International AG to Exceet Group AG Accordingly the results of operations cash

flows assets and liabilities of the German subsidiary have been presented as discontinued operations and assets

and liabilities of discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements for all periods presented
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of Authentidate Holding Corp and its subsidiaries and Joint

venture Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated Equity investments where we do not

exercise significant influence over the investee are accounted for under the cost method

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash

equivalents At June 30 2011 and 2010 cash equivalents consisted pnmarily of investments in short term

investments such as overnight interest bearing deposits

Marketable Securities

Qur marketable securities as of June 30 2011 and 2010 consisted primarily of money market inyestments

We classify our invpstments as available for sale and they have been recorded at cost which approximates fair

market value due to their variable interest rates As result we have had no cumulative gross unrealized holding

gains losses or gross realized gains losses from such investments All income generated from these

investments is recorded as interest income

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represent customer obligations due under normal trade terms net of allowances for

doubtful accounts The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects our best estimate of probable losses inherent in

the accounts receivable balance We determine the allowance based on known troubled accounts historical

experience and other currently available evidence

Invntory

Inventory amounts are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined based on average cost for the

related inventory items

Long Lived Assets

Long-liyed assets including property and equipment software development costs patent costs trademarks

and licenses are reviewed for impairment using an undiscounted cash flow approach whenever events or changes

in circumstances such as significant changes in the business climate changes in product offerings or other

circumstances indicate that.the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization Depreciation

and amortization are determined using the straight-line method Estimated useful lives of the assets range from

three to seven years

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred Renewals arid betterments are capitalized

When assets are sold retired or otherwise disposed of the applicable costs and accumulated depreciation or

amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss if any is recognized
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Authentidate holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

Software Development Costs

Software development and modification costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological feasibility

are capitalized and amortized based on anticipated revenue for the related product with an annual minimum equal

to the straight-line
amortization over the remaining economic life of the related product generally three years

Amortization expense of $765000 $799000 and $866000 for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively is included in depreciation and amortization expense

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the

years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred taxi

assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includesthe enactment

date Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts

expected to be realized

Tax benefits froman uncertain taxposition are recognized only if it is more likely than not that thetax

position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authonties based on the technical merits of the position

The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such position are measured based on the largest

benefit thathas greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement Accrued interest

related to unrecognized benefits is recorded as interest expense and penalties are recorded as income tax expense

Revenue Recognitton

Revenue is derived from transaction fees for web-based hosted software and related services and post

contract

delivery has occurred the selling price is fixed and collectibility is reasonably assured Multiple element

arrangements are assessed to determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of accounting

multiple-element arrangement is separated into more than one unit of accounting if all of the following criteria

are met the delivered item has value to the customer on stand alone basis there isobjective and reliable

evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items in the arrangement if the arrangement includes general right

of return relative to the delivered items and delivery or performance of the undelivered item is considered

probable and substantially in our control Ifthese criteria are not met then revenue is deferred until such criteria

are met or until the period over which the last undelivered element is delivered which is typically the life of the

contract agreement If these criteria are met we allocate total revenue among the elements based on the sales

price of each element when sold separately which is referred to as vendor specific objective evidence or VSOE

Revenue from web-based hosted software and related services and post contract customer support services

is recognized when the related service is provided and when required accepted by the customer Revenue from

multiple element arrangements that cannot be allocated to identifiable items is recognized ratably over the

contract term which is generally one year

Warranty Provisions

We provide limited warranty on the web-based hosted software products and services sold Warranty

expense was not significant in any of the periods presented
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

June 30 20112010 and 2009

Advertising Expenses

We recognize advertising expenses as incurred Advertising expense was $37000 $12000 and $7000 for

the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Product Development Expenses

These costs represent research and development expenses and include salary and benefits professional and

consultant fees and supplies

Currency Translation Adjustment

Prior to the sale of our foreign operations on April 201 gains or losses resulting from translating foreign

currency financial statements were recorded as Other Comprehensive Income Loss and accumu1atedin-

shareholders equity in the caption Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Management Estimates

Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenue and expenses Examples include estimates- of loss

contingencies and product life cycles assumptions such as elements comprising software arrangement

including the distinction between upgrades/enhancements and new products when technological feasibility is

achieved for our products the potential outcome of-future tax consequences and determining when investment --

or other impairments exist We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the

inability of our customers to make required payments We make estimates on the future recoverability of

capitalized amounts we record valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when we believe it is more

likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized and we make assumptions in connection with the

calculations of share-based compensation expense Actual results and outcomes may differ from managements

estimates judgments and assumptions We have-based our estimates on historical experience and on various

assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances and we evaluate our estimates on a-

regular basis and make changes accordingly Historically our estimates relative to our critical accounting

estimates have not differed materially from actual results however actual results may differ from these estimates

under different conditions If actual results differ from these estimates and other considerations used in

estimating amountsrefiectŁd in Our consolidated financial statements the resulting changescouldhavea material

adverse effect on our consolidated statement of operations and in certain situations could have material

adverse effect on liquidity and our financial condition
--

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based employee compensation expense isdeterminedusing the Black-Scholes option pricing model

which values options based on the stock price at the grant date the exercise price of the option -the-expected life

of the option the estimated volatility expected dividend payments and the risk-free interest rate over the

expected life of the options
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

June 3020112010 and 2009

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents

marketable securities and trade accounts receivable To reduce credit risk we place our cash cash equivalents

and investments with several high credit quality financial institutions and typically invest in AA or better rated

investments We monitor our credit customers and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon

factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers historical trends and other information

We have no significant off balance sheet arrangements at June 30 2011 At June 30 2011 one customer

represented 21% of total accounts receivable At June 30 2010 three customers represented 35% of total

accounts receivable For the year ended June 30 2011 three customers accounted for aproximately 43% of

consolidated revenues For the year ended June 30 2010 two customers accounted for approximately 32% of

consolidated revenues

Investment in Health Fusion Inc

In fiscai.2005 we invested $750000 in an unaffiliated third party Health Fusion Inc in connectjon with

strategic relationsiiipstablished with this company We own less thn2% of the fully diluted shares of Health

Fusion and account for this investment using the cost method This investment is included in other assets

Investment in Joint Venture

In June2008 we formed joint venture with EncounterCare Solutions Inc called.ExpressMDTM Solutions

to provide in-home patient vital signs monitoring systems and services The company and EncounterCare

Solutions Inc each own fifty percent of the joint venture and neither party has any special rights under the joint

venture agreement At June 30 2011 and 2010 ExpressMDTM Solutions did not have any assets or liabilities and

EncounterCare Soiutios Inc does not have any recourse to our general credit EXPreSSMDTM Solutions is

consolidated in our financial statements because we are currently electing to provide the majority of funding for

the joint venture and are deened to be the
primary beneficiary For the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and

2009 we made advances of approximately $699 000 $498 000 and $392 000 respectively to the joint venture to

cover development and operating expenses To date the company total advances to the joint venture of

approximately $1732000 have been in excess of the amounts required under the joint venture operating

agreement entered into by the company Although we expect to recover these advances as the joint venture

generates revenues there can be no assurance that such amounts will be recovered Therefore these amounts

have been expensed as incurred and charged to selling general and administrative expenses In addition we may
decide to advance additional amounts to further joint venture activities Additionally the company has also

acquired inventory with carrying value of approximately $4569000 at June 30 2011 which relates to the joint

venture

Present Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In May 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement

Topic 80 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S

GAAP and IFRSs which provides converged guidance of the FASB and the IASB for common requirements for

fair value measurements and for disclosing information about fair value measurements including consistent

meaning of the term fair value The amendments in this ASU are to be applied prospectively and for public

entities are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 152011 Early application by

public entities is not permitted We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated

financial statements
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemffls.Continued

June 30 20112010 and 2009

In June 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU 2011-05 Comprehensive Income

Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive Income which provides an entity the option to present the total of

comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income

either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements

In both choices an entity is required to present each component of net income along with total net income each

component of other comprehensive income along with total for other comprehensive income and total

amount for comprehensive income ASU 2011-05 eliminates the options to prŁsºnt the cOmpôneCts of other

comprehensive incon as part of the statement qf changes in stockholders equity but does not change the Items

that must be reported in otIie comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income nwst be

reclassified to net income For public entities the amendments are effective for fiscal years and intenm penods
within those years beginning after December 15 2011 Early adoption is permitted We are currently evaluating

the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements

Share-Based Compensation

The accounting guidance requires all share-based payments including grants of stock options to be

recognized in-the statement of operations as compensation- expense based on their fair values Accordingly the

estimated fair -value of options granted under the comçanys share based comkensation plans are recognized as-

compensation expense over the option-vesting -period

Effective January 17 2007 the board of directors amended the term of existing stock options previously

granted to the companys current employees whereby such options expire ten years from the original grant date

The -incremental sharebased compensation expense related to -this change was- amortized- as the related options

vested and was fully amortized-as of June 30 2010

2OlOEmployee Stock Option Plan --

--
--

In May 2010 the shareholders approved the 2010 Employee Stock Option Plan the 2010 Plan which

provides for the grant of
options to purchase up to 10 000 000 shares of the company common stock The 2010

Plan expires in 2020 and replaced the 2000 Employees Stock Option Plan the 2000 Plan effective May 19

2010 Under the terms of the 2010 Plan options granted thereunder may be designated as incentive stock options

or non-qualified options

The 2010 Plan is administered by committeedesignated of- the-board-of directors cOmprised entirely-of

outside directors The board or the committee as the case may be has the discretion to determine eligible

employees -and the times and the prices at which options will be granted whether such options shall be ISOs or

non-qualified options the period during which each option will be- exercisable and -the number of shares subject
to each option Vesting generally occurs one4hird per yearovŁrthre years and options generally have life of

ten years The board or the conmittee has full authority to interpret the 2010 Plan and to establish and amend-

rules and regulations relating thereto Under the 2010 Plan the exercise price of an option designated as an ISO

may not be less than the fair market value of the companys common stock on the date the option is granted

However in the event an option designated as an ISO is granted to ten percent shareholder the exercise price

shall be at least 110% of such fair market value The aggregate fair market value on the grant date of shares

subject to options which are designated as ISOs which become exercisable in any calendar year shall not exceed

$100 000 per optionee

The board or the conmtittee may in its sole discretion grant bonuses or authorize loans to or guarantee loans

obtained by an optionee to enable such optionee to pay any taxes that may arise in connection with the exercise

or cancellation of an option As of June 30 2011 2010 find 2009 no loans had been granted-or guaranteed
Loans may not be granted or guaranteed for executive officers

F- 12



Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsContinued

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

As of June 30 2011 stock option activity under the companys employee stock option plans is as follows

in thousands except per share and average life data

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Employees Plan Options Price Life Years Value

Outstanding June 302008 3807 $3.87

Granted 504 0.44

Expired/forfeited 663 3.33

Outstanding June 30 2009 3648 3.49

Granted 1535 1.44

Exercised 0.61

Expired/forfeited 1394 2.32

Outstanding June 30 2010 3781 3.10

Granted 1184 0.87

Expired/forfeited 1021 3.68

Outstanding June 30 2011 3944 $2.28 7.38 $625

Exercisable at June 30 2011 846 $3 52 39 $177

ExpectedtovestatJune3O2011 1647 $1.18 9.13 $351

2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan

In January 2002 our shareholders approved the 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan to replace

the 1992 Non-Executive Director Stock Plan the 2001 Director Plan Under the 2001 Director Plan as

amended options may be granted through November 2011 to non-executive directors as defined and

ii members of any advisory board established by the company who are not full-time employees of the company

or any of its subsidiaries The 2001 Director Plan as amended provides that each non-executive director will

automatically be granted an option to purchase 40000 shares upon joining the board of directors and 10000

shares on each September 1st thereafter prorated based upon the amount of time such person served as director

during the period beginning twelve months prior to September 1st Additionally non-executive directors upon

joining the board and for period of one year thereafter will be entitled to purchase restricted stock from the

company at price equal to 80% of the closing price on the date of purchase up to an aggregate purchase price of

$100000 Each eligible director of an advisory board will receive upon joining the advisory board and on each

September 1st thereafter an option to purchase 5000 shares of the companys common stock provided such

person has served as director of the advisory board for the previous 12-month period

On January 17 2007 the shareholders approved several amendments to the 2001 Non-Executive Director

Stock Option Plan whereby non-executive director stock options expire ten years from the original date of grant

non-executive directors will have up to two years to exercise their options after leaving the board and may elect

to receive up to 50% of their cash director compensation in restncted common stock of the company issued at

fair value in accordance with the terms of the Plan On May 20 2009 the shareholders approved an amendment

to increase this percentage to 100% Dunng the year ended June 30 2011 the company issued 136 519 shares of

restricted common stock valued at approximately $76100 to certain non-executive directors in connection with

this program
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Authentidate Holding Corp and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements-Continued

June 30 20112010 and 2009

The exercise price for options granted under the 2001 Director Plan is 100% of the fair market value of the

common stock on the date of grant The exercise price of options granted under the 2001 Director Plan must be

paid at the time of exercise in cash Options are non-qualified options vest upon grant and generally have life

of ten years unless terminated sooner as provided in the 2001 Director Plan The 2001 Director Plan is

administered by committee of the board of directors composed of not fewer than three
persons who are officers

of the company The committee has no discretion to determine which non-executive director or advisory board

member will receive options or the number of shares subject to the option the term of the option or the

exercisability of the option However the committee will make all determinations of the interpretation of the

2001 Director Plan

In fiscal 2011 the company granted 90000 options under the 2001 Director Plan at an average exercise

price of $0.85 per share InJuly 2011 the company also issued 19492 shares of restricted common stock valued

at approximately $23391 to certain non-executive directors under the program discussed above

schedule of director stock option activity is as follows in thousands except per share and average life

data

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average emaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

NonExecutive Director Plan Options Price Life Years Value

Outstanding June 30 2008 410 $3.93

Options granted equal to market price 60 0.58

Outstanding June 30 2009 470 3.50

Options granted equal to market price 90 1.25

Options expired 67 3.72

Outstanding June 30 2010 493 06

Options granted equal to market price 90 0.85

Optionsexpired 83 5.98

Outstanding June 30 2011 500 $2.18 4.15 $65

Share-bnsed compensation expense by category is as follows in thousands

June 30

2011 2010 2009

SGA $194 $249 $345

Product development 23 24 33

Cost of revenues

Share-based compensation expense $226 $283 $383

The accounting guidance requires cash flows resulting from the tax benefits from tax deductions in excess

of the compensation cost recognized for those options excess tax benefits to be classified as financing cash

flows The company did not realize any tax benefits from the exercise of stock options during the years ended

June30 2011 2010 and 2009
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We computed the estimated fair values of all share-based compensation using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model and the assumptions set forth in the following table We based our estimate of the life of these

options on historical averages over the past five years and estimates of expected future behavior The expected

volatility was based on our historical stock volatility The assumptions used in our Black-Scholes calculations for

fiscal 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Weighted Average

Expected
Risk Free Dividend Volatility Option Life

Interest Rate Yield Factor Months

Fiscal year 2011 1.8% 0% 107% 48

Fiscal year 2010 2.5% 0% 103% 48

Fiscal year 2009 3.2% 0% 66% 48

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions Because our

employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and because

changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate in managements

opinion the existing models may not provide reliable single measure of the fair value of share-based

compensation for employee stock options Management will continue to assess the assumptions and

methodologies used to calculate estimated fair value of share-based compensation as circumstances change and

additional data becomes available over time which may result in changes to these assumptions and

methodologies Such changes could materially impact the companys fair value determination

As of June 30 2011 there was approximately $1097000of total unrecognized compensation expense

related to unvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plans Approximately $492000 of

this expense is expected to be reôognized over weighted-average period of 29 rnonths The remaining expense

will be recognized if certain vesting conditions are met during the next 15 months

The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $0 $3600 and $0 for fiscal years ended 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the fiscal years
ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 Was approximately $0.63 $076 and $0.24 The values were calculated using the

Black Scholes model

The total fair value of shares vested was $238000 $225000 and $401000 for the fiscal years ended

June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

On August 23 2011 the stockholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan the 2011 Plan

The 2011 Plan replaces the 2010 Plan and the 2001 Director Plan discussed above The 2011 Plan provides for

the issuance up to 6700000 shares of the company stock in connection with stock options restricted share

awards and other stock compensation vehicles more in-depth description of the 2011 Plan is included in

Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for the periods presented in
thousands except per share data

Year Ended June 30

Basic and diluted loss per common share

Continuing operations less preferred dividends 0.16 0.25
Discontinued operations 0.13 0.00

Basic and diluted loss
per common share 29 25

_______

All common stock
equivalents were excluded from the loss

per share calculation for all periods presented

because the impact is antidilutive At June 30 201 options 4444000 warrants 6820000 Series

preferred stock 5000000 and Series preferred stock 500000 were outstanding At June 30 2010 options

4274000 warrants 720000 and Series preferred stock 500000 were outstanding At June 30 2009
options 4118000 warrants 150000 and Series preferred stock 500000 were outstanding

Note Receivable and Assets Held for Sale

In June 2007 the company completed the sale of its Document Management Solutions and Systems

Integration businesses to Astria Solutions Group LLC Astria Under the terms of the definitive Asset

Purchase Agreement Astria issued to the company $2000000 seven-year note bearing interest at rate of

8.5% Note The reported gain onthis transaction did not include any value for the Note The Note was

secured by the assets of the acquired businesses and was subordinated to the interests of the senior creditor and

mezzanine lender to Astria The Note provided for monthly interest payments through May 2010 principal

based on 15-year amortization and interest payments thereafter through April 2014 and final payment of the

balance in May 2014 Based on the subordination the extended collection period and other factors the company
had no reasonable basis for estimating the degree of collectibility of the Note and elected to recognize in

accordance with the accounting guidance the additional gain if any on the sale of the businesses as management
determined that the debtors cash flows from operations were sufficient to repay the debt In connection with the

sale Astria also entered into
seven-year lease for portion of the building owned by the company in

Schenectady New York where the acquired businesses are located Under the terms of the lease Astria elected to

pay all taxes and operating costs for the land and building and rent and additional rent of approximately $186000

per year for the term of lease

On July 14 2010 the company completed the sale of certain non-core assets including the companys land

and building in Schenectady New York to Star Advisors LLC Star acting on behalf of Astria for total

purchase price of approximately $2.4 million Under the purchase agreement the company also disposed of the

Loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations including loss on disposal in 2011

of $5405 net

2011

6786

5769
Net loss 12555
Preferred stock dividends 285

$12840

43896

Net loss applicable to common shareholders

Weighted average shares

2010 2009

$9047 $8813

42 554

9005 9367
70 70

9075 9437

36493 34538

0.25

0.02

0.27
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$2.0 million Note and the balance of deferred receivables related to the businesses sold to Astria At June 30

2010 the land and building was classified in the companys financial statements as assets held for sale and the

Note and deferred receivables were fully reserved and had net carrying values of zero Net proceeds from the sale

were approximately $2 35 million after the payment of expenses and brokerage commissions related to the

transaction The company recorded
gain on the sale of such assets of approximately $351 000 in the quarter

ended September 30 2010

Inventory

In connection with our manufacturing and sales plans for the ExpressMDTM telehealth service the company

has purchased certain components and contract manufacturing services for the production of the monitoring

appliance Inventory consists of the following in thousands

June30

2011 2010

Purchased components $3687 $4017

Finished goods 882 572

Total inventory $4569 $4589

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following in thousands

Estimated
June 30

Useful Life

2011 2010 In Years

Machinery and equipment 4369 3917 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 236 236 5-7

Leasehold improvements 240 240

4845 4393

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 4165 3873

680 520

Depreciation expense on property and equipment for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was

approximately $292000 $284000 and $452000 respectively

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following in thousands

June 30

2011 2010

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $3198 $3972

Accrued severance 120

$3198 $4092
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At June 30 2011 the company had federal net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes of

approximately $132 000 000 of which $5 300 000 are Separate Return Limitation Year SRLY and can only be

used by the
entity that generated these losses in the separate return years These losses expire in various years

between fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2031 The company also has capital loss carryforward for tax purposes of

approximately $13600000 related to the sale of its German subsidiary which expires in fiscal 2016

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the

federal statutory rate of 34% as follows in thousands

Year Ended June 30

2011 2010 2009

Computed expected tax benefit $2307 $3076 $2997
Benefit attributable to net operating loss and other carryforwards and other

deductible temporary differences not recognized 2307 3076 2997

Income tax
expense

The compOnents of deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following in thousands

June 30

2011 2010

Deferred tax asset

Intangible assets

Deferred compensation

Deferred gain on sale of business

Accrued expenses and other

Net
Operating loss and other carryforwards

Total grOss deferred tax assets

Less Valuation allowance

Net deferred tax assets

The company has recorded full valuation allowance of an amount equal to its net deferred tax assets less

deferred tax liabilities since it believes it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009 was an

increase of approximately $4012000 $2729000 and $2959000 respectively As of June 30 2011 the

company has not recorded any unrecognized tax benefits which remains unchanged from previous years The

company tax years June 2007 through June 2010 remain open to examination for most taxing authonties
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Lease Commitments

The company is obligated Under operating leases for facilities vehicles and equipment expiring at various

dates through the year
2017 Future minimum payments are as follows in thousands

Operating
Leases

Year Ending June 30 2012 512

2013 512

2014 512

2015 512

2016 512

Thereafter 299

$2859

Rental expense was approximately $484000 $536000 and $538000 for the years ended June 30 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively At June 30 2011 and 2010 restricted cash was being held as collateral for letter

of credit securing certain lease payments

10 Preferred Stock and Redeemable Preferred Stock

The board of directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred stock $.10 par value per share from time to

time in one or more series The board may issue series of preferred stock having the right to vote on any matter

submitted to shareholders including without limitation the right to vote by itself as series or as class together

with any other or all series of preferred stock The board of directors may determine that the holders of preferred

stock voting as class will have the right to elect one or more additional members of the board of directors or

the majority of the members of the board of directors

In connection with the private placement transaction discussed in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements in October 2010 the company issued total of 1250000 shares of Series 15%

convertible redeemable preferred stock Each share of preferred stock has stated value of $1.60 per share and

subject to the rights of the company senior secunties has the following rights to receive dividends which

accrue at the rate of 15% per annum payable in shares of conimon stock upon conversion or in cash upon

redemption ii effective upon shareholder approval will convert into shares of common stock determined by

dividing the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends by the conversion price
which is initially $040

iiito receive liquidation preference equal to the sum of the stated value of each share of preferred stock plus

dividends and iv unless converted to be redeemed by the company 18 months from the date of issuance at

redemption price equal to the 102.5% of the stated value of the preferred stock plus any accrued but unpaid

dividends Conversion of the shares of preferred stock is subject to the approval of the companys stockholders in

accordance with the Listing Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market If the companys shareholders approve the

conversion the aggregate stated value of the shares of preferred stock will automatically convert into 5000000

shares of common stock At June 30 2011 the company has accrued dividends in the amount of approximately

$213000 related to these shares of preferred stock The stated value of the preferred shares and the related

accrued dividends are presented as temporary equity under the caption Redeemable preferred stock in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission

As of June 30 2011 there are 28000 shares of Series preferred stock outstanding The Series preferred

stock was originally issued in private financing in October 1999 and the conversion and redemption features
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were amended in October 2002 to provide for the rights and obligations described in this note The company has

the right to repurchase the outstanding Series preferred stock at redemption price equal to $25.00 per share

plus accrued and unpaid dividends The holder of such shares has the right to convert shares of preferred stock

into an aggregate of 500000 shares of our common stock at conversion rate of $1.40 per share In the event the

company elects to redeem these securities the holder will be able to exercise its conversion right subsequent to

the date that we issue notice of redemption but prior to the deemed redemption date as would be set forth in

such notice The company will be required to first redeem the Series preferred stock if it is required to redeem

the Series preferred stock Accordingly as of June 30 2011 the redemption value of the preferred shares and

the related accrued dividends are presented as temporary equity under the caption Redeemable preferred stock in

the Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission At

June 30 2011 the company has accrued dividends in the amount of $17500 which remain unpaid Since the

company will be required to first redeem the Series preferred stock before it redeems the Series preferred

stock amounts related to the Series preferred stock are presented as temporary equity as of June 30 2011

11 Common Stock Warrants

During fiscal 2008 the company issued warrants to purchase 150000 shares of the companys common
stock to consultant as compensation for services which expire April 15 2012 These warrants are fully vested

and have an exercise price of $0.39 per share The fair value of these warrants as determined under the Black

Scholes Model was charged to operations in fiscal 2008

As discussed more fully in Notes 18 and 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements during fiscal

2010 the company issued warrants to purchase 170000 shares of the companys common stock to the placement

agent for the registered direct offering completed by the company in fiscal 2010 and 400000 warrants to an

accredited investor in connection with standby cOniniitment for financing These warrants are fully vested and

have an exercise prices of $1.25 and $1.20 per share respectively The fair value of these warrants asdØtermined

under the Black Scholes Model was charged to operations in fiscal 2010

In August 2010 the company issued warrants to purchase 100 000 shares of the company common stock

to consultant for services These warrants have an exercise price of $0 70 per share vest in equal monthly

installments over the initial twelve month service period ending July 31 2011 and expire in August 2015 The

fair value of these warrants as deterimned under the Black Scholes Model will be charged to operations as the

warrants vest

As discussed more fully in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements during fiscal 2011 the

company issued warrants to purchase 250 000 shares of the company common stock to institutional and

accredited investors in private placement of company securities The warrants are fully vested and have an

exercise pnce of $0 70 per share
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All of the outstanding warrants are exercisable schedule of common stock warrant activity is as follows

in thousands except per share and average life data

Weighted

Weighted Average

Averagç Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic

Shares Per Share Years VaJue

Outstanding June 30 2008 400 $10.65

Warrants expired 250 16.80

Outstanding June 30 2009 150 0.39

Warrants issued 3970 1.03

Warrants exercised 699 1.00

Warrants expired 2701 1.00

Outstanding June 30 2010 720 04

Warrants issued 350 070

Warrants exercised 250 070

Outstanding June 30 2011 820 074 10 $3172

12 Commitments and Contingencies

Between June and August 2005 six purported shareholder class actions were filed in the United States

District Court for the Southern District of New York the District Court against our company and certain of

our current and former directors and former officers Plaintiffs in those actions alleged that defendants violated

Sections 10b and 20a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of

1933 The securities law claims were based on the allegations that we failed to disclose that our August 2002

agreement with the USPS contained certain performance metrics and that the USPS could cancel the agreement

if we did not meet these metrics that we did not disclose complete and accurate information as to our

performance under and efforts to renegotiate the USPS agreement and that when we did disclose that the USPS

might cancel the agreement the market price of our stock declined On October 2005 the Court consolidated

the class actions under the caption In re Authentidate Holding Corp Securities Litigation C.A No 05 Civ 5323

LTS and appointed the Illinois State Board of Investment as lead plaintiff under the Private Securities

Litigation
Reform Act The plaintiff filed an amended consolidated complaint on January 2006 which asserted

the same claims as the prior complaints and also alleged that Authentidate violated the federal securities laws by

misrepresenting that it possessed certain patentable technology On July 14 2006 the District Court dismissed

the amended complaint in its entirety certain claims were dismissed with prejudice and plaintiff was given
leave

to replead those claims which were not dismissed with prejudice In August 2006 plaintiff filed second

amended complaint which did not assert any claims relating to the company patents or under the Securities Act

of 1933 but which otherwise was substantially similar to the
prior complaint The second amended complaint

sought unspecified monetary damages The company moved to dismiss the second amended complaint on

November 13 2006 On March 26 2009 the District Court dismissed with prejudice the second amended

complaint The lead plaintiff filed an appeal On March 12 2010 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Second

Circuit issued an order affirming in part and vacating and remanding in
part the March 26 2009 order of

dismissal On December 23 2010 the company and certain of its current and former directors and former

officers entered into settlement of the consolidated class actions with the lead plaintiff As set forth more fully

in the Stipulation of Settlement upon final approval of the settlement by the District Court among other things

the class will consist of all persons who purchased the companys shares between July 16 2004 and May 27

2005 ii all claims of all class members whether class individual direct or derivatively arising out of or related
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to the plaintiffs allegations will be dismissed with prejudice and released and iii payment of $1.9 million

will be made for the benefit of the settlement class which will be funded by the companys insurance carrier On

February 2011 the District Court entered an order that preliminarily approved the Stipulation of Settlement

preliminarily certified settlement class of all
persons

who purchased the companys common stock between

July 16 2004 and May 27 2005 inclusive and scheduled hearing for July 20 2011 to determine whether to

grant final approval of the settlement The court granted final approval of the settlement and certification of the

class at the hearing and the settlement was effective as of August 23 2011

In addition to the class action complaints four purported shareholder derivative actions were filed against

certain current and former directors and former officers of the company in June and July 2005 in the S.DN.Y
These federal court derivative actions were based on substantially the same events and allegations as the original

class action complaints and asserted claims that Authentidate was injured by an alleged breach of fiduciary duty

waste mismanagement violations of Sarbanes-Oxley and misappropriation of inside information The

derivative complaints sought among other things damages equitable relief restitution and payment of costs

and expenses incurred in the litigation including legal fees Plaintiffs in the derivative actions entered into

Court-approved stipulation providing for the consolidation of their actions and the selection of Maxine Philips as

the lead plaintiff Plaintiffs filed consolidated complaint on November 14 2005 which defendants moved to

dismiss on January 13 2006 on the ground that plaintiffs had not made proper demand on the board of

directors On March 20 2006 before the motion to dismiss was decided plaintiffs in the federal court derivative

action voluntarily dismissed their complaint without prejudice On April 2006 the court held hearing to

confirm among other things that plaintiffs had not received any payment or other consideration ior the dismissal

of their claims At the hearing plaintiffs agreed to file amotion seeking court approval for the dismissal

Plaintiffs filed this motion on April 18 2006 and the court entered an order dismissing the consolidated

complaint on May 2006 Subsequently on May 25 2006 the plaintiffs sent letter to the board of directors

demanding that it file derivative suit on behalf of the companywhich asserts the same claims as the complaint

which plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed only weeks earlier

On December 13 2005 purported shareholder derivative action was filed in the Supreme Court of New

York Schenectady County entitled Elkin Goldman etal No 2005-2240 Plaintiff in that action demanded

that our board of directors file derivative action on behalf of the company against nine of its current and former

directors and former officers The complaint asserts the same claimsthat are alleged in the derivative actions in

the S.D.N.Y The board of directors following recommendation from committee of the Board composed of

outside non-employee directors who were advised by independent outside counsel concluded that commencing

litigation as demanded by Elkin is not in our best interest There were no further pleadings or proceedings on

that action

Management believes that these legal matters individually or in aggregate will not have material adverse

effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows in as much as the company believes its

current liability insurance is adequate to cover all reasonably anticipated costs settlements and judgments with

respect to these proceedings However litigation such as described above is subject to inherent uncertainties and

there can be no assurance that management opinion
of the anticipated effect of these matters will be correct or

that it will not change in the future

We are engaged in no other litigation which would be anticipated to have material adverse effect on our

financial condition or results of operations

We have entered into employment agreements with our chief executive officer and chief financial officer

that specify the executives current compensation benefits and perquisites the executives entitlements upon

termination of employment and other employment rights and responsibilities
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We have entered into various agreements by which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party with

respect to certain matters Generally these indemnification provisions are included in contracts arising in the

normal course of business under which we customarily agree to hold the indemnified party harmless against

losses arising from breach of representations related to such matters as intellectual property rights Payments by

us under such indemnification clauses are generally conditioned on the other party making claim Such claims

are generally subject to challenge by us and to dispute resolution procedures specified in the particular contract

Further our obligations under these arrangements may be limited in terms of time and/or amount and in some

instances we may have recourse against third parties for certain payments made by us It is not possible to

predict the maximum potential amount of future payments under these indemnification agreements due to the

conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts of each particular agreement Historically we have not

made any payments under these agreements that have been material individually or in the aggregate As of

June 30 2011 we are not aware of any obligations under such indemnification agreements that would require

material payments

13 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

We did not pay any income taxes or interest during the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 2010 or 2009

During fiscal 2009 we recorded cumulative gross unrealized holding gain of $500000 as we recovered the par

value of certain marketable Securities that offset cumulative gross unrealized holding loss recorded in fiscal

2008

14 Employee Benefit Plan

The company maintains qualified defined contribution 401k profit sharing plan for all eligible employees

and may make discretionary contributions in percentages of compensation or amounts as determined by our

board of directors The company did not make any contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30 2011

2010 and2009

15 Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of the following in thousands and are included in other assets

June 302011 June 302010

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net Book Carrying Accumulated Net Book Useful Life

Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value In Years

Patents 342 196 $146 342 176 $166 17

Trademarks 165 68 97 146 60 86 20

Acquired technologies 72 72 72 72

Licenses 294 229 65 253 1145 108

Total $1873 $1565 $308 $1813 $1453 $360

As of June 30 2011 and 2010 goodwill amounted to $50 000 and is included in other assets
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The company amortizes other intangible assets using the straight line method Amortization expense was

approximately $112000 $126000 and $154000 for the years ended June 30 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively Amortization expense for the next five fiscal years and thereafter is expected to be as follows in

thousands

2012. $67

2013 35

2014 35

2015 35

2016 33

Thereafter 103

$308

16 Financial Instruments

The following methods and assiimptionswere used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value including cash and cash equivalents marketable

securities accounts receivable other currents assets accounts payable and accrued etpenses and other current

liabilities The carrying amount of these assets and liabilities approximates fair value because of the short

maturity of these instruments For additional information regarding marketable securities see Note of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Discontinued Operations and Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

On April 1201 1Jhe company completed the sale of all of the capital stock of its wholly-owned Germa

subsidiary Authentidate International AG to Exceet Group AG Swiss corporation Under the terms of the

Share Purchase Agreement dated as of March 2011 the company sold and transferred all of the capital stock of

the subsidiary for purchase price of $1433000 Exceet Group also agreed to acquire certain the companys

claims regarding its interest in the subsidiary for 70000 $97300 and to assume net liabilities related to the

business of the subsidiary of approximately $7 16000 In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement the

company and Authentidate International also entered into two license agreements relating to certain of their

intellectual property rights Pursuant to Trademark License Agreement the company granted Authentidate

International license to use the Authentidate trademark in the field of use defined in the Trademark License

Agreement and only in the territory consisting of the European Economic Area and limited number of other

countnes In addition pursuant to separate Intellectual Property License Agreement Authentidate International

granted the company license to utilize patent software and certain other intellectual property rights Further in

connection with the foregoing the company agreed to provide the chief executive officer of Authentidate

International bonus payment equal to 5% of the net sale price received by the company in consideration of his

efforts with respect to the transaction In connection with the sale of the subsidiary the company recorded

non-cash loss of approximately $5 405 000 related to the goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition of

this subsidiary in 2002 The company initially recorded the estimated loss related to its German subsidiary as

non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $5400000 during the quarter ended December 31 2010 based

primarily on lowered expectations for growth in future revenues and cash flows certain unsolicited market

information regarding the business and uncertainty regarding the recovery in the market for comparable assets In

accordance with the applicable accounting guidance this amount has been reclassified to discontinued operations

and adjusted based on the estimated net proceeds from the sale
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summary of the operating results for the discontinued operations is as fOllows in thousands

Year ended June30

2011 2010 2009

Revenues $2893 $4327 $4086

Operating gain loss 365 42 554

Assets and liabilities of discontinted operations consist of the foflowing in thousands

June 30

2011 2010

Current assets 694

Goodwill 7291

Other 41

Assets of discontinued operations $8026

Liabilities of discontinued operations $1194

18.EquityOfferings

In February 2004 the company completed private sale of its common stock to certain accredited investors

pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 the Securities Act as amended and Regulation

promulgated thereunder The company sold total of 360 370 common shares at price of $13 75 per share

and realized gross proceeds of $73 million After payment of offering expenses and broker commissions the

company realized $69 million in net proceeds The shares of common stock issued are restricted securities and

have not been registered under the Securities Act or any state securities law and unless so registered may not be

offered or sold in the United States absent registration or applicable exemption from the registration

requirements
of the Secunties Act and applicable state securities laws

During fiscal 2000 the company sold 50000 shares of newly created Class of Series convertible

cumulative preferred stock the Series preferred stock The Series preferred stock was sold at $25 00 per

share for an aggregate offering price of $1 million Dividends on the Series Preferred Stock are payable at the

rate of 10% per annum semi annually in cash Each share of Series preferred stock is convertible into shares

of the company common stock or is converted into such number of shares of the common stock as shall equal

$25 00 divided by the conversion price of $1 875 per share subject to adjustment under certain circumstances

Commencing three years after the closing the conversion price shall be the lower of $1 875 per share or the

average of the closing bid and asked pnce of the company common stock for the 10 consecutive trading days

immediately ending one trading day prior to the notice of the date of conversion provided however that the

holders are not entitled to convert more than 20% per month of the Series preferred shares held by such holder

on the third anniversary of the date of issuance The Series preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the

company at any time commencing one year after issuance or not less than 30 nor more than 60 days after written

notice at redemption priCe of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends provided the public sale

of the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series preferred stock the Conversion

Shares are covered by an effective registration statement or are otherwise exempt from registration and

ii during the immediately preceding 20 consecutive trading days ending within 10 days of the date of the notice

of redemption the closing bid price of the companys cOmmon stock is not less than $3.75 per share The

Series voting rights are limited to any issue which would adversely affect their rights
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On October 30 2002 the company filed Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Designations
Preferences and Rights and Number of Shares of Series preferred stock with the Secretary of State of the State

of Delaware The amendment provides that the conversion rate applicable to the outstanding shares of Series

preferred stock will be fixed at $1.40 Previously the conversion rate was equal to the lower of 1.875 and the

average of the closing bid and asked prices of the companys common stock for the immediately preceding ten
consecutive trading days ending one day prior to the notice of conversion provided however that the conversion

rate would not be below $0.875 Accordingly the outstanding 28000 shares of Series preferred stock are

presently convertible into an aggregate of 500000 shares of the companys common stock Prior to the

amendment the outstanding shares of Series preferred stock were convertible into maximum of 800000
shares of the companys common stock In consideration of obtaining the consent of the holder of the outstanding
Series preferred stock the company agreed to defer its ability to redeem those shares for period of two years

As of June 30 2010 22000 Series preferred shares have been converted leaving 28000 shares

outstanding Commencing October 2004 the Series preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the company
without regard to the closing price of the companys common stock During the fiscal years ended June 30 2011
and 2010 no Series preferred stock was redeemed

In December 2O09 the company entered into Placement Agency Agreement in which Rodman
Renshaw LLC the Placement Agent was engaged as the Placement Agent relating to registered direct

offering by the company of up to an aggregate of 3400000 shares of common stock of the company par value

$0.P0l per share the common stock and common stock purchase warrants the warrants to purchase up to

an aggregate of 3400000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $1 00 per warrant On December

2009 the company entered into secunties purcliase agreement with certain institutional and/or accredited

investors pursuant to which the company agreed to sell an aggregate of 400 000 shares of its common stock and
warrants to purchase total of 3400 000 shares of its common stock to the investors for gross proceeds of $3
million The purchase price of share of common stock and warrant was $1 00 per share The warrants were
exercisable for enod of 90 days following the closing date of the offering at an exercise price of

$1 00 Through March 10 2010 the expiration 4ate of these warrants an aggregate of 698 986 warrants were
exercised and the remainder expired on the stated expiration date The Łompany received proceeds of $0.7

million from the exercise of such warrants The net proceeds to the company from the offering and subsequent

warrant exercises after deducting Placement Agent fees and the company estimated offering expenses were

approximately $3 54 million Pursuant to the Placement Agency Agreement the company agreed to pay the

Placement Agent an aggregate fee equal to 0% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised in connection with the

offering excluding warrant exercises and issued the Placement Agent warrant to purchase 170 000 shares of

common stock at per share exercise price of $1 25 which warrants will be exercisable for penod of five
years

from the effective date of the registration statement The common stock
warrants to purchase common stock and

shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants were issued pursuant to prospectus supplement
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 2009 in connection with takedown from
the companys shelf registration statement on Form File No 333 161220 which was declared effective by
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30 2009

On October 12 2010 the company entered into Securities Pi.rchase Agreementthe Purchase

Agreement with selected institutional and accredited investors the Investors to sell and issue $5 million of

units of its securities in private placement under Section 42 of the Securities Actqf 1933 as amended and
Rule 506 of Regulation promulgated thereunder the Private Placement In the aggregatethe company
agreed to sell 1250000 units of seeuijties at price of $4.00 per unit with the units consisting of total of

7500000 shares of common stock 1250000 shares of Series 15% convertible redeemable preferred stock
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the Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase an additional 6250000 shares of common stock the

Warrants Each individual unit consists of six shares of common stock one share of preferred stock and five

warrants The transaction closed on October 13 2010 and the company received net proceeds from the Private

Placement of approximately $4.46 million after the deduction of offering expenses of approximately $0.54

million

In this transaction the company issued total of 250 000 shares of Preferred Stock Each share of

Preferred Stock has stated value of $1 60 per share and subject to the rights of the company senior secunties

has the following rights to receive dividends which accrue at the rate of 15% per annum payable in shares of

common stock upon conversion or in cash upon redemption ii effective upon shareholder approval will

convert into shares of common stock determined by dividing the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends

by the Conversion Price which is initially $0.40 iii to receive liquidation preference equal to the sum of the

stated value of each share of Preferred Stock plus dividends and iv unless converted to be redeemed by the

company 18 months from the date of issuance at redemption price equal to the 102.5% of the stated value of the

Preferred Stock plus any accrued but unpaid dividends Conversion of the shares of Preferred Stock is subject to

the approval of the companys stockholders in accordance with the Listing Rules ofthe Nasdaq Stock Market If

the companys shareholders approve the conversion the aggregate stated value of the shares of Preferred Stock

will automatically convert into 5000000 shares of common stock

Commencing on the six month anniversary of the closing the Warrants will be exercisable for shares of the

companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share for period of 54 months and will be

exercisable for cash or by net exercise in the event that there is no effective registration statement covering the

resale of the shares of common stock underlying the Warrants No Investor is permitted to exercise Warrant or

part thereof if upon such exercise the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by the Investor

would exceed 19.99% of the number of shares of common stock then issued and outstanding unless the

companys stockholders have approved such issuance The value of these warrants using the Black-Scholes

option pricing model was approximately $2.85 million

In connection with the Purchase Agreement the company entered into Registration Rights Agreement

with the Investors Pursuant to the RegistrationRights Agreement the company agreed to file registration

statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission the Commission within 45 days from closing to

register the resale of the shares of common stock to be issued at closing and the shares of common stock

underlyingthe Preferred Stock and the Warrants collectively the Registrable Securities The company also

agreed to use its best efforts tohave the registration statement declared effective as promptly as possible after the

filing thereof but in any event Within 90 days from the filing date

This registration statement was declared effective on December 2010 In the event it ceases to remain

continuously effective as required by the Registration Rights Agreement each such event Registration

Default then the company has agreed to pay each Investor as liquidated damages an amount equal to 1.0% of

the purchase price paid by each such Investor with respect to any Registrable Securities then held and not

registered pursuant to an effective registration statement per 30-day period or portion thereof during which the

Registration Default remains uncured thereafter subject to limitation of 6% per Registration Default In

addition the company agreed to keep the Registration Statement continuously effective until the earlier to occur

of the date after which all of the Registrable Shares registered thereunder shall have been sid and ii the date

on which 100% of the Registrable Securities covered by such Registration Statement may be sold without

volume restrictions pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended
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19 Related Party Transactions

On March 31 2009 we entered into an agreement with CCM Master Qualified Fund Ltd CCM
holder of in excess of 5% of our outstanding common stock to repurchase 547 000 shares of common stock held

by CCM for an aggregate purchase price of $147690 In addition four of our officers and directors executed

similar
agreements with CCM whereby such persons purchased an aggregate of 990000 shares of our common

stock for an aggregate purchase price of $272250 The shares acquired by the companys affiliates are as

follows Connell Benjamin185 000 shares William Marshall185 000 shares John Waters370 000
shares and David Luce through an affiliated entity250 000 shares These transactions were privately

negotiated transactions among CCM the company and the other purchasers

On August 2009 the board of directors agreed to award options to purchase 500000 shares of common
stock to Mr David Luce member of the board Of directors as fee for services rendered in connection with

our ExpressMDrM Solutions joint venture the Joint Venture The options were awarded under our 2000 Plan

and are exercisable for period often years at per share exercise price of $2.00 subject to vesting conditions

The options will vest solely in the event that the Joint Venture or successor achieves revenues in the

aggregate amount of at least $5000000 prior to the second anniversary of the Option grant date the Target
Date In the event such metric is achieved 250000 options will vest The

remaining options will vest only if

the Joint Venture or successor achieves revenues in the aggregate amount of $10000000 prior to theTarget
Date Due to this arrangement the companys board of directors determined that Mr Luce no longer satisfies the

criteria for independence under the applicable rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and accordingly Mr Luce

resigned from his membership on the companys Management Resources and Compensation Committee and

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee immediately prior to the board of directors consideration of

this matter Mr Luce however continues to serve as member of the companys board of directors On May
2011 the companys.board of directors agreed to amend the vesting terms of this option award to provide thatthe

Target Date shall be the third anniversary of the date of grant

On September 23 2009 the company entered into binding Standby Commitment the Commitment
with an accredited investor the Investor pursuant to which the Investor agreed to purchase senior secured

conveitible debentures in an aggregate principal amount of up to $3000000 during the 12-month commitment
term The Conmiitment provided that if the company closed financing with third party or sold certain of its

assets then the company would redeem any outstanding convertible debentures and the Commitment amount
would be reduced to the extent of the remaining net proceeds from such transactions As discussed more fully in

Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements the company completed registered direct offering of

common stock and warrants in December 2009 The net proceeds from the offering of approximately

$2.9 million and the subsequent exercise of certain warrants in January 2010 exceeded the Commitment amount

whereby such Commitment was reduced to zero The company did not issue any convertible debentures pursuant
to the Commitment In connection with the Commitment the company granted 400000 warrants to the Investor

in consideration of the Commitment to provide the financing The warrants will be exercisable for five years at

an exercise price of $1.20 per share The Investor is an ntity affiliated with Mr Douglas Luce who is brother

of Mr David Luce member of the companys board of directors The warrants will be restricted securities

issued in.reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended In connection with issuance of the 400000 warrants related to the Commitment the company recorded

non-cash deferredfinancing costs and additional paid-in capital ofapproximately $533000 These warrants were
valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model Since the Commitment amount had been reduced to zero
the deferred financing costs were fully amortized as other expense during the quarter ended December 31 2009

As discussed in greater detail in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on October 13
2010 the company completed transaction in which it sold total of 1250000 units of its securities to certain
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institutional and accredited investors for gross proceeds of $5.0 million As result of the consummation of this

transaction two investors Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP and AQR Capital Management LLC subsequently

filed reports on Schedule 3G indicating that following such transaction such persons became beneficial owners

of in excess of 5% of the companys common stock As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K based

upon report on Schedule 13G/A and Form filed by Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP the company believes

that such entity is the beneficial ownership of approximately 13.7% of the companys common stock Further

the company believes that AQR Capital Management LLC no longer beneficially owns in excess of 5% of the

companys common stock In May 2011 the companys stockholders elected Dr Todd Borus to serve on its

board of directors Dr Borus is the brother of the manager of the general partner of Lazarus Investment

Partners LLLP

As described in greater detail in Note 25 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on October 2011

the company entered into securities purchase agreement with certain accredited and/or institutional investors

relating to registered direct offering by the company for an aggregate of 874 998 shares of common stock of

the company and warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 2937497 shares of Common Stock One of the

investors in this offering Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP which was the beneficial owner of approximately

13.7% of the companys outstanding shares of common stock immediately prior to the offering agreed to

purchase 1428571 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 714285 shares of common stock The

manager of the general partnetof Lazarus Investment Partners LLLP is the brother of Dr Todd Borus

member of our board of directors In addition Douglas Luce the brother of David Luce member of our

board of directors agreed to purchase 571428 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 285714 shares

of common stock The participation by these investors was on the same terms as the other investors in the

offering

20 Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense consists of the following in thousands

June 30

2011 2010 2009

Interest income 177 $364

Rental income 187 187

Net gain from sale of non-core assets 351

Deferred financing costs 533
Miscellaneous income expense

Total other income $365 $170 $550

As discussed more fully in Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemetits deferred financing costs

relate to the expiration of standby commitment for financing

21 Fair Value Measurements

The company measures fair value for financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the provisions of the

accounting guidance regarding fair value measurements The guidance utilizes fair value hierarchy that

pnontizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels brief

description of those three levels is as follows

Level Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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Level Inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities that are observable for the asset

or liability either directly or indirectly

Level Significant unobservable inputs

The company assets subject to fair value measurements as of June 30 2011 and 2010 are as follows in

thousands

Fair Value Measurements

Using Fair Value hierarchy

Fair value Level Level Level

June 30 2011

Current marketable securitiesavailable for sale 980 980

Total 980 980

June 302010

Current marketable securitiesavailable for sale $1079 $1079

Assets held for sale 2000 2000

Total $3079 $1079 $2000

At June 30 2010 the company has approximately $2.0 million of assets held for sale that are valued on

non-recurring basis using level inputs For the year ended June 30 2011 and 2010 no gains or losses resulting

from the fair value measurement of financial assets were included in the companys earnings

The accounting guidance regarding fair value measurements permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair

value and establishes
presenttion

and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between

entities that choose different measurement attributes for similar assets and liabilities The company has elected

riot to measure any eligible items at fair value

22 Merger

During fiscal 2009 we entered into definitive merger agreement to acquire all of the membership interests

of Parascript LLC and certain of its subsidiaries The agreement also provided that either party could terminate

the agreement if the proposed transaction was not consummated by December 31 2008 On January 21 2009 the

company received notice of termination from Parascript In connection with the termination of the merger

agreement the company wrote-off deferred deal expenses of approximately $907000 during the quarter ended

December 31 2008 These expenses are included in the selling general and administration expenses

23 Accounting Standards Adopted in Fiscal 2011

The company adopted the following FASB Accounting Standards Updates ASU during fiscal 2011

ASU 2009 13 Revenue Recognition Topic 605 Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements which

addresses the accounting for multiple deliverable arrangements to enable vendors to account for

products or services deliveries separately rather than as combined unit This guidance establishes

selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of deliverable which is based on vendor-

specific objective evidence third-party evidence or estimates This guidance also eliminates the
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residual method of allocation and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception

of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method In addition this guidance

expands disclosures related to vendor multiple deliverable revenue arrangements

ASU 2009-14 Software Topic 985-Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements

which changes the accounting model for revenue arrangements that include both tangible products and

software elements Under this guidance tangible products containing software components and

nónsoftware components that function together to deliver the tangible products essential functionality

are excluded from the software revenue guidance in Subtopic 985-605 Software-Revenue Recognition

In addition hardware components of tangible product containing software components are always

excluded from the software revenue guidance

ASU 2009-17 Consolidations Topic 810improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises

Involved with Variable interest Entities which changes how reporting entity determines when an

entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting or similar rights should be

consolidated and requires additional disclosures about involvement with variable interest entities and

changes in risk exposure related to such entities The determination of whether reporting entity is

required to consolidate another entity is based on among other things the other entitys purpose and

design and the reporting entitys ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly

impact the other entitys economic performance

ASU 2010-29 Business Combination Topic 805 Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma

information for Business Combinations which clarifies that for business combinations that are material

on an individual or aggregate basis public entity that presents comparative financial statements should

disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combinations that

occurred during the current year had occurred as of-the beginning of the comparable prior annual

reporting period only The ASU also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures to include

description of the nature and amounts of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly

attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings

The adoption of ASUs described above had no impact on the companys results of operations or financial

position
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24 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

in thousands

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2011

Continuing operations

Revenues 680 698 709 708

Operating expenses 2456 2430 2412 2648

Loss 1411 1732 1703 1940
Net loss 1597 7275 L621 2062
Loss per share 0.04 0.16 0.04 0.05

2010 ..
Continuingoperations

Revenues 526 624 .$ 610 659

Operating expenses 2922 2801 2837 2736

Loss .2302 2626 2136 1983
Net loss 2J13 2819 2268 1805
Loss per share 006 0.08 0.06 0.05

2009

Continuing operations

Revenues ... 707 667 820 596

Operating expenses 3090 3280 2961 2822

Loss 2185 2474 2028 2126
Net loss 2446 2554 2095 2272
Loss per share 0.07 0.07 0.06 0.07

25 Subsequent EventsRegistered Dfrect Offering

On October 2011 the company entered into Placement Agency Agreement the Placement Agency

Agreement with C.K Cooper Co Inc CKCC and an Engagement Agreement the Engagement

Agreement with Rodman Renshaw LLC Rodman whereby it engaged them as co-placement agents the

Placement Agents relating to registered direct offering by the Company to select investors In addition as of

October 2011 the company entered into securities purchase agreement with certain institutional and/or

accredited investors pursuant to which the company will sell an aggregate of 5874998 shares of its common

stock par value $0.00 per share the Common Stock and warrants to purchase total of 2937497 shares of

Common Stock the Warrants to the investors for gross proceeds of $4112499 The purchase price of share

of Common Stock and Warrant is $0.70 The Warrants will be exercisable for period of four years commencing

on the six month anniversary of the date on which they are issued and will have an initial exercise price of $1.00

per share The exercise price of the Warrants is subject to adjustment in the case of stock splits stock dividends

combinations of shares and similar recapitalization transactions The transaction closed on October 13 2011 and

the net proceeds to the company after deducting placement agent fees and expenses and the companys estimated

offering expenses are approximately $3638000

In connection with the offering the company agreed to pay CKCC fee equal to 75% of the gross proceeds

from the sale of the shares of Common Stock and Warrants in this offering provided that if any shares and

Warrants are issued and sold to any of the investors previously identified by the company and approved by them
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then the fee payable to CKCC shall be equal to 2.5% of the proceeds from such investor Further CKCCs fee

shall be equal to 3.5% of the proceeds received by us from the sale of securities to certain investors agreed upon

by both placement agents CKCC will not be entitled to fee with respect to any investor introduced solely by

the co-placement agent In addition the company agreed to reimburse CKCC for its reasonable expenses up to an

amount equal to 1.2% of the gross proceeds of the offering The company agreed to pay Rodman fee equal to

5% of the gross proceeds raised in the offering from investors introduced by it and fee of 2.5% of the gross

proceeds raised from other investors Further we agreed to reimburse Rodman for its expenses up to maximum

of 1% of the aggregate gross proceeds raised in the offering provided that such reimbursement shall not cause its

aggregate compensation to exceed 3.3% of the aggregate proceeds of the offering The Placement Agency and

Engagement Agreements contain other terms and conditions that are generally customary for transactions of this

nature
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